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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

The Chinese property market was strong in 2013,
but we expect the market will stabilize in 2014.

At the beginning of the year, the government, concerned with the
potential of a property bubble, implemented what is known as
the “Five Measures” to control prices: setting home price control
targets; strictly implementing existing home purchase restrictions
and expanding these restrictions to more cities; increasing housing
and land supply; speeding up construction of affordable housing;
and carefully monitoring market irregularities. Despite these
measures, given ample liquidity and strong demand, property
prices continued to rise for most of the year, particularly in first tier
cities such as Beijing, Shanghai, and Guangzhou.

However, in the second half of the year and the beginning of 2014,
credit has tightened somewhat. As a result, the Group expects
prices to stabilize for 2014. Large increases in prices in 2013 from
pent up demand are not likely to be repeated in the coming year.
More supply is expected to enter the market. This is expected
to lead to a cooler land and property market in 2014, with profits
mainly driven by volume.
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Over the long term, the property market will benefit
from urbanization.

Over the long term, the property sector is poised to benefit from
sustained long term growth due to steady growth in demand
from urbanization. According to the United Nations, the urban
population as a percentage of total population in China is 50.6%
compared to an average of 78% in developed countries in 2011.
With increased urbanization, and more rural workers migrating to
cities, housing demand is expected to increase.

For 2013, the Group recorded significantly
improved sales and gross profit.

The Group’s property sales in 2013 improved considerably as
more products were available for sale. Contracted sales have risen
as the Group has increased promotional efforts and the brand
name has become better recognized on the local market. Sales
were particularly strong in Tianjin and Jiangmen. For 2013, total
contracted sales reached RMB848.0 million, an increase of 46.9%
compared to 2012. Tianjin recorded contracted sales of RMB544.0
million, an increase of 117.0% year on year. In Jiangmen, HKC
recorded RMB142.7 million in contracted sales, a decrease of
25.8% compared to 2012. Shenyang recorded contracted sales
of RMB161.3 million, an increase of 20.3% year on year. However,
only part of these contracted sales, accumulated since 2011, have
been recognized in 2013. Under Hong Kong accounting standards,
contracted sales can only be recognized at the time properties
are completed and notification is given to buyers that units will be
handed over.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEHREE(E)

For 2013, recognized revenues increased by 338.3% to
HK$1,441.0 million. Gross profit increased 137.7% to HK$426.2
million for the year, reflecting strong core property earnings.
Without the gain from the one off sale of an asset in 2012, the Group
would have also recorded year on year increases in operating and
net profit.

For the Group’s residential property markets in
Tianjin, Shenyang, and Jiangmen, we expect the
market to remain stable for 2014.

While the government is concerned about the large price
appreciation in the first tier residential markets, and will make an
effort to control prices in these markets, the Group’s residential
markets are not expected to be adversely affected given
speculative demand has been much less in Tianjin, Shenyang,
and Jiangmen compared to the first tier markets. In the Group’s
property markets, demand comes mainly from end users, not from
speculative investors. Therefore, given the current environment,
we do not anticipate the government imposing more severe
administrative measures or implement a real estate tax in the
Group’s markets to control prices.
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With more completions, the Group will have more property
available for sale. In Jiangmen, for the first half of 2014, the Group
is planning to focus on sales on both high rise apartments (Phase
2) and higher margin townhouses. In Tianjin, the Group will focus
on sales of its high rise apartments, service apartments and
townhouses as construction has been mostly completed. Additional
gross floor area (“GFA”) will also be available for sale in Shenyang.

China Renewable Energy (“CRE”) returns to
profitability.

The environment for windpower improved considerably in 2013
after a difficult year in 2012. According to the World Bank, China
now has 16 of the world’s most polluted cities in the world, with
Beijing making frequent warnings for the elderly and children to
remain indoors. As a result, pollution now is a potential leading
cause of social unrest in the country. Therefore, over the last year,
the government implemented a number of policies to support the
renewable energy sector: increased investment in the transmission
grid; an increased clean energy subsidy tax on non-residential
users that will reduce accounts receivables; and a clear directive
for all officials to place less emphasis on growth at the expense of
the environment, and to make environmental protection a priority.

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited recorded a HK$27.6
million net profit, reversing the previous year’s loss. Power
curtailment in the first half of the year remained severe. However,
curtailment dropped significantly in the second half of the
year. Combined with improved weather conditions, the Group’s
windfarm operating hours increased. As a result, revenues for 2013
increased by 14.3% to HK$113.7 million.

The Group will continue disposing non-core assets.
As part of the Group’s strategy to focus on the core property
development business, the Group will continue to look for
opportunities to dispose of its non-core assets, with the goal of
realizing profits and unlocking value from these exercises.

Balance sheet remains strong.

The Group continues to maintain a strong balance sheet, with a
net debt ratio of 7.1%. For 2014, the Group expects its debt to rise
given the progress of the projects under construction. However, the
Group expects the net debt to remain at a comfortable level.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEHEE(E)
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Financial Review

The Group recorded a net profit attributable to equity holders of
HK$72.8 million for the year under review. The net profit attributable
to equity holders in the same period in 2012 was HK$103.3 million.
Basic profit per share for the year amounted to HK0.6 cents per
share, while basic profit per share for the same period in 2012 was
HKO0.9 cents per share. During the year ended 31 December 2013,
turnover amounted to HK$1,441.0 million, an increase of 338.3%
compared to 2012, while gross profit for the year of HK$426.2
million also recorded an increase of 137.7% over the gross profit of
HK$179.3 million in the last year.

The Group generated significant contracted sales in 2013. As
the Group’s development projects have all started construction
in the past two years, presales generated from these projects will
be recognized as revenue of the Group in the next few years as
construction is completed and buyers are notified that the units will
be handed over.

Still, for 2013, the Group recorded revenues on property sales of
HK$1,143.8 million, a significant 4,350.6% increase compared to
2012. The Group recorded revenues of HK$758.2 million in Tianjin,
HK$267.7 million in Jiangmen, and HK$117.9 million in Nanxun.

While making significant progress on various projects under
development, the Group has successfully contained its operating
expenses for the year. General and administrative expenses
have been reduced. On the other hand, selling and distribution
expenses have increased to coincide with the increased property
sales activities.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group continues to maintain a strong financial position. As
at 31 December 2013, the Group’s total borrowings amounted to
HK$3,516.9 million, representing an increase of 17.6% compared
with HK$2,991.8 million as at 31 December 2012. Total borrowings
as at 31 December 2013 included Hong Kong Dollar borrowings of
HK$180.9 million (2012: HK$80.3 million) and Renminbi borrowings
equivalent to HK$3,336.0 million (2012: HK$2,911.5 million).

The maturity dates for most of the Group’s outstanding borrowings
are long term, with HK$418.5 million repayable within one year or
on demand, HK$2,115.4 million repayable within two to five years,
and HK$983.0 million repayable after five years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENWR DN (&)

Most of the Group’s outstanding borrowings take the form of
interest-bearing loans, with floating interest rates.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had restricted cash of
HK$1,064.0 million (2012: HK$314.1 million) and unrestricted cash
and cash equivalents amounting to HK$1,364.3 million (2012:
HK$2,317.9 million).

The Group did not use financial instruments for financial hedging
purposes during the year under review.

The Group will continue its efforts to create an optimum
financial structure that best reflects the long-term interests of its
shareholders, and will actively consider a variety of alternative
sources of funding to finance future investments.

Details of Charges in Group Assets

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group and certain of
its subsidiaries had charged certain properties worth HK$9,624.8
million (2012: HK$3,989.0 million) as security for bank and other
loans.

Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio, defined as total borrowings divided by
total equity, as at 31 December 2013 was 22.9%, compared with
20.3% as at 31 December 2012. The Group’s net debt ratio was
7.1%, compared with 2.4% as at 31 December 2012. This ratio
represents total borrowings minus cash and divided by total equity.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group had contingent liabilities, details are set out in Note 39
to the consolidated financial statements.

Business Model

The Group is a Hong Kong based property developer focusing on
investing and developing property projects in the Mainland China,
and aims to develop high quality products to create sustainable
value for its shareholders.

HKC (Holdings) Limited
Annual Report 2013
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The Group has a diversified property portfolio with investments in
both residential projects mainly for sale; and commercial projects
mainly for rental income. The residential projects currently under
development are located in Tianjin, Jiangmen and Shenyang. The
Group’s commercial projects, which are primarily involved in office
buildings and retail malls, are located in prime business areas in
Shanghai, Shenzhen, Beijing and Guangzhou.

Over the long term, the Group seeks to maintain a balance between
residential development for sale and commercial investment
properties for lease in order to create a sustainable model with
growth potential. Residential properties for sale generate higher
margins over the short term, and fast turnover, which should
enhance return on equity. Investment properties for lease, on the
other hand, create steady recurring income and cash flow as well
as long term capital appreciation.

The Group adopts a very prudent financial policy, and given
the volatility of the property industry, HKC aims to maintain a
conservative net debt ratio.

The Group has also made an investment in the alternative energy
sector, and believes shareholders may benefit from China’s need to
develop non polluting sources of energy.

Business Risks

As a China property developer, the Group is subject to China
government property policies, development, marketing, and other
execution risks.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENWR DN (&)

Business Review

Properties

Property Investment, Development and Management

The Group’s existing property investment portfolio, consisting
largely of premium commercial and retail developments in
Shenzhen, Guangzhou and Beijing, continued to generate a steady
stream of rental revenue for the Group during the year under
review.
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Tianjin

Tianjin Eka Garden is on a prime location in the Nankai District of
Tianjin. The project consists of townhouses, high rise apartments,
and service apartments totaling gross floor area (“GFA”) of
approximately 150,000 square meters. Construction of phase
1, which consists of 52 units of townhouses, was completed.
Construction of phase 2, which consists of 7 tower blocks with 404
units was also completed, and handover of sold units commenced
in December 2013. For phase 3, all two towers topped out in the
third quarter of 2012. Mechanical and electrical works, fitting
out works and facade work are progressing well. Construction
is planned for completion by the middle of 2014, with sales and
handover of units expected soon after.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENWR DN (&)

For 2013, the Group pre-sold 29,597 square meters of GFA,
resulting in contracted sales of RMB544.0 million. The total
accumulated contracted sales in Tianjin reached RMB830.4 million
as of the end of 2013. Assuming favorable market conditions,
contracted sales should remain strong in 2014 as more units are
released for sale.

At Tuanbo Lake in Tianjin, the Group is still waiting for the
government to release the controlling planning parameters for the
area.

Jiangmen

Jiangmen Eka Garden is a residential project consisting of GFA of
approximately 189,000 square meters of townhouses and high rise
apartments. The project is located on an excellent site along a river
bank, within walking distance to the Jiangmen/Hong Kong ferry
terminal and an international school. The site is also close to the
Guangzhu Intercity Railway’s Waihai Station connecting Jiangmen
to Guangzhou and Zhuhai.
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Construction of phase 1 was completed in the fourth quarter
of 2013, and handover of phase 1 sold units commenced in
December 2013. Phase 2 began construction in December 2012,
and all towers topped out by October 2013. Construction is
expected to be completed by mid-2014. Construction of phase 3
will commence in March 2014.

Except for the show flats and some of the townhouses, all phase 1
high rise apartments available for presale have been sold. Phase 2
apartments have also sold well. For full year 2013, the Group pre-
sold 20,357 square meters of townhouses and high rise apartments,
recording contracted sales of RMB142.7 million. Total contracted
sales in Jiangmen has reached RMB335.0 million as of the end of
2013. Sales will continue in 2014 with the completion of a man-made
lake and landscaping and intensive promotional activities.

Shenyang

Shenyang Eka Garden, located in one of Shenyang’s prime
residential areas, is adjacent to Shenyang’s Nanhu Park in the
centre of city. The project, subdivided into sites A, B, and C,
consists of GFA of approximately 266,000 square meters of
townhouses, high rise apartments, and a small commercial
centre. For site B (GFA: approximately 133,500 square meters),
construction is on schedule, and all towers topped out in 2013.
Completion is expected by stages starting from the end of 2014
until the third quarter of 2015, with first handover to buyers
expected during the first half of 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENWR DN (&)

For site C (GFA: approximately 57,500 square meters),
construction will be completed in the third quarter of 2014. This
site is mainly for housing resettled residents and consists of a
small commercial area and 12 units of townhouses. The 2 high
rise resettlement blocks and the commercial block topped out
in August 2013. Preparation for development of site A, with GFA
of approximately 75,000 square meters, is underway. The Group
continues to work with the local government to complete the
relocation of the residents on site A.

For the full year of 2013, the Group pre-sold 12,564 square meters
of GFA, resulting in contracted sales of RMB161.3 million. The
accumulated contracted sales in Shenyang reached RMB295.4
million by the end of 2013.

Shanghai

The Shanghai commercial market remains stable. As China’s
financial center, the city has attracted a large number of
multinational corporations, with 491 of the Fortune 500 companies
having offices in the city. The opening of China’s first Free Trade
Zone at the end of 2013 further strengthens the attractiveness of
the market. According to market research, citywide prime office
average rents were stable in 2013, with availability around 8.6% at
the end of 2013.

The Group has two commercial projects in the Hongkou District
of Shanghai, an area that is benefitting from the improvement
in infrastructure, including the opening of Metro Line 12, the
completion of the International Cruise Terminal, and the completion
of an underground road connecting to the Bund and a new tunnel
linking Hongkou and Pudong. Of particular interest, the district
has made plans to make Hongkou attractive for hedge funds and
investment firms.

HKC (Holdings) Limited
Annual Report 2013

FLCH PR (AL : 457,500 F5K)mE -
BERIEBEN-_ZE—NFE=FTT - ZHiRE
EREEEAPZEE  RA—E/EEESL
M12EBEERIEAN - MESEEELNB LA
E¥PLERZE—=FNAZE - AR (EE
WERE : #)75,000F 5 oK) 2 FRETENERS
Hh o REBEREREMBTAE  THRIEBHEA
MW ER -

R =—F2FmMs  A5EEEEEDL
HE12564F H K GRHEBARARE
161,300,0007T - HE T~ =K ' EB 2
A HEREE ER AR 295,400,0007T °

b
LEREMSHE - EAPEMNESRPL - L8
MRS TRELHGE  BMERBALEZHRE
AN ERE EBREMERE - PRR =T —=
FEAMEEAHESE @ #E—F e LemE
TISHWS| 7 - REMGHARER  2TaRE
FREPHEENR -_E—=FEE R_T—=F
FEZA AL AR8.6% °

AEEHAMEMN LEBINRZHEER -
1258 EAREE  BRBHBEIZN - AR
RS2 TR BRI A RO IR Z HTRE
BERBRRERS DBINERE - FHEIE
B2 - EBEHETTZ A S BRI DT &K
HHEGRIRERAINEE °



e
T

T

The Sichuan North Road Lot 108 development project, which
the Group has a 60% interest in, has a GFA of approximately
161,000 square meters (a GFA of approximately 248,000 square
meters including basement) office and retail complex. Foundation
and piling work were completed by the fourth quarter of 2012.
Excavation, earthwork disposal and basement construction are
underway. The entire development project is expected to be
completed by the end of 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
BEEENRR DN (&)

The North Bund project, in which the Group has a 25% interest,
has a GFA of approximately 259,000 square meters (a GFA of
approximately 427,000 square meters including basement) of
office, hotel, and retail space. The hotel tower has already topped
out. The office tower has reached the 48th floor by end February
2014. The Group targets completion by the end of 2015.
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Shanghai North Bund Project _ti&4b4N#%1E B
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Nanxun

The project is a complex of mainly three-storey buildings
completed as a trading centre for furniture and building materials.
The GFA of Nanxun International Building Materials City is
approximately 180,000 square meters, in which approximately
83,000 square meters are offered for sale and the remaining GFA of
approximately 97,000 square meters are for lease or ancillary uses.

Beijing

The Group operates a 17,100 square meters retail complex at
Chienmen 23, the former site of the United States diplomatic
compound in Beijing, which is situated along the southeast corner
of Tiananmen Square. The Group has converted the compound into
a high end retail shop and restaurant complex. Operating results
for the project have improved significantly for the year as a result of
higher occupancy rates and improved tenancy mix. The compound
is now close to 100% leased out.
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Beijing Chienmen 23 1t 5 51 F9235%

Alternative Energy

All of the Group’s alternative energy projects are under its
subsidiary, China Renewable Energy Investment Limited. The
market for windpower improved considerably during the second
half of 2013 as government support resulted in reduced curtailment
for most of CRE’s windfarms, and therefore higher power dispatch
and higher revenues.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENWR DN (&)

Power curtailment for CRE’s windfarms declined. Combined with
improved weather conditions, the Group’s windfarm operating
hours increased. As a result, revenues for 2013 increased by
14.3% to HK$113.7 million. The turnaround was particularly
pronounced in the second half of 2013. For example, at the
Lunaobao windfarm, due to heavy curtailment during the first
half of the year, dispatch for the full year was 255 hours lower
compared to 2012. However, in the second half of the year,
dispatch increased by 344 hours compared to the same period in
2012. Curtailment for this windfarm should continue dropping over
the next couple of years as a new high voltage transmission line
is currently under construction. Curtailment for the CRE’s other
windfarms should also drop as other transmission lines complete
construction.

Please refer to CRE’s annual report for more details.

Infrastructure

The Group’s Build-Operate-Transfer (“BOT"”) toll road project in
Guilin, which links up with China’s Western Expressway, continues
to make progress. For the year of 2013, traffic revenue increased
14.7% to RMB40.5 million.
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Prospects and Strategy

Properties

2014 is expected to be a stable year for the PRC property industry.
While the PRC government will continue to maintain its controls
on the sector, particularly in the first tier cities where prices have
risen the most, the Group does not anticipate that the government
will impose any new major control measures in the areas where
the Group operates in Tianjin, Shenyang, and Jiangmen. It is end
user demand, not speculative investment demand that is currently
supporting these markets, and prices increases have been
relatively moderate.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENWR DN (&)

For 2014, the Group will continue focusing on sales or presale of RZ-ZT—INF  KAEBBEE T - K2
its residential properties in Jiangmen, Tianjin, and Shenyang. In  ZEBZEEMELERTEE - BT - KNEE
Jiangmen, the Group will focus on sales of townhouses and phase FIRHEFER-_HEEETF - RAE - A%
2 high rise apartments. In Tianjin, the Group will continue selling EH#EELEELSEETFT  REXRBREE -
its high rise apartments, serviced apartments and townhouses. In W& - AEEGHELESBEFT LR -
Shenyang, the Group will continue selling the high rise apartments

and townhouses.

At the same time, construction for Shanghai North Bund and B ILRIF - £G4 A0EE K /Y1 b B 1088 B Ay 22
Sichuan North Road Lot 108 will continue, with the goal of RIBESHEE BEESFIN_T—HFR=
completion by 2015 and 2016 respectively. T—REFxEIo
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The Group will continue exploring to sell its non-core properties
and projects which no longer match with the growth direction of the
Group. Management believes these sales, if completed, will unlock
the value of the Group’s assets and strengthen the balance sheet
so that the Group will be focused on its core business of property
development.

With completion and successful sales of existing projects, we have
started looking for new investment opportunities in China assuming
land prices are reasonable. These potential investments can
enhance our position as a PRC property developer and can create
long term sustainable growth.

Alternative Energy

The outlook for 2014 is expected to be positive for the renewable
energy industry. To continue combating urban pollution, we expect
the PRC government to continue its support for the industry. In
addition, the commencement of a local Carbon Emission Reduction
(*CER”) trading market in Shenzhen in 2013 may provide further
support for the industry and revitalise the CER market.

Siziwang Qi phase 2 wind farm is under construction and is
expected to be completed by the first half of 2014. Given the
improved environment, CRE is looking for additional development
opportunities, and is commencing a preliminary study for the
development of phase 3. Other windfarm opportunities in other
regions are also being pursued. Please refer to CRE’s annual report
for more information.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENWR DN (&)

Environmental, Social and Governance Issues BiIE - HgNEREE

The Group recognizes China’s increasing environmental problems,  ZAf£EE#HEFEIREMBERBS - NMEZK
and seeks to conduct its business in a manner that is not only &% RAKGEERRENZZ A KLHE
profitable, but also beneficial to the environment. The wind power 7§ o AEEAE 7 8 N T A A =05 LR
that the Group produces obviates the need for power produced EEBMELBNZHE - MuRBERIE R
from highly polluting coal power plants, and its waste to energy JREFEIBRHE o fHd - REBEAIITHER
plant helps resolve garbage disposal problem. Moreover, the T REETYEMRBLBEBERAAIFELER
Group uses sustainable technologies in some of its property i » SIAKBREB MR AR HI;T - tEA—FKER
developments, such as solar panels and heat pump technology #EVMHHNAR  AEE—EZIBNETYE
where feasible. As a company in its early growth stage, the Group — FIZ TS - BREERFIE I - AEEBH2ET
has focused its efforts on building the property development  Zit&EEEH ZHEMDEF -

business; but as profitability increases, the Group anticipates

greater involvement in sharing some of its profits with community.

Employees 3=

As of 31 December 2013, the Group employed approximately 527 RZ-E—=F+Z-_A=+—H A£EEEFER
employees across its operations in Hong Kong and the Mainland B A2 256 HIEALH27EEE - TG R
China. All employees are remunerated according to the nature EB#HEIZHEEHEME - BRI TIERR - ~5E
of their jobs, their individual performances, the Group’s overall EERREBITTIRET °

performance and prevailing market conditions.
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Corporate Governance Practices

HKC (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”, and with its subsidiaries,
collectively, the “Group”) is committed to good corporate
governance principles and practices and its board of directors
(the “Directors” or the “Board”) recognizes that it is essential to
safeguard the interests of shareholders, customers and employees
and uphold accountability, transparency and responsibility of the
Company.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with the
code provisions and certain recommended best practices set out
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”), contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) during the year ended 31 December 2013, save
for the deviations with considered reasons as explained stated in
the following relevant paragraphs.

Board of Directors

Board Composition

The Company has at all time during the year ended 31 December
2013 maintained a balanced board with strong independent
element. The Board currently comprises ten Directors with
four Executive Directors, two Non-executive Directors and four
Independent Non-executive Directors. Each Director possesses
expertise and experience and provides checks and balances for
safeguarding the interests of the Group and the shareholders as a
whole. In addition, the Company had maintained four Independent
Non-executive Directors which formed at least one-third of the full
Board. Biographical details of the Directors and their relationships,
where applicable, are set out in pages 45 to 50 of this Annual
Report.

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three Independent Non-executive Directors with at least one
Independent Non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The independence of the Independent
Non-executive Directors was assessed in accordance with the
applicable Listing Rules. Each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors has provided to the Company an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all of them are independent.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
hEERRE (HE)

Board of Directors (continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
were exercised by two different individuals. Mr. OEl Tjie Goan is
the Chairman and Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric is the Chief Executive Officer
(“CEQ”) of the Company. Their responsibilities had been clearly
set out and approved by the Board. The Board considers that
this arrangement facilitates the execution of the Group’s business
strategies and maximizes effectiveness of its operation. The
Board shall nevertheless review its structure from time to time and
will consider appropriate move to take should circumstances so
required. Mr. OEI Tjie Goan, the Chairman of the Company, is the
father of Mr. OEI Kang, Eric, CEO.

Responsibilities of Directors

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s affairs
and formulating business strategies with a view to maximizing its
financial performance and shareholders’ value.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities and powers to
the Board committees to assist it in efficiently implementing those
functions specified in written terms of reference.

Decisions relating to the long-term objectives and viability of the
Company, and any acquisitions or disposal of transactions and
investments of any kind with value exceeding the authority of
the Executive Committee set out in its terms of reference or the
threshold for discloseable transactions for the Company as defined
in the Listing Rules from time to time are reserved for the Board;
whereas decisions on matters set out in the terms of reference of
the Executive Committee and those not specifically reserved for the
Board are delegated to the Executive Committee and management,
as applicable.

Directors are provided with sufficient resources to seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties at
the Company’s expense and are encouraged to consult with the
Company’s senior management independently. The management
provides monthly management accounts of the Group to the
Directors to apprise them of the Group’s latest performance and
financial position.

HKC (Holdings) Limited
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Board of Directors (continued)

Responsibilities of Directors (continued)

Directors are requested to disclose to the Company at the time
of his/her appointment and in a timely manner for any change,
the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organizations and other significant commitments. Such changes
will be updated and published in the annual and interim reports as
appropriate.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify the Group’s Directors for their liabilities arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.

Nomination, Appointment and Re-election of Directors
All new appointment of Directors and nomination of Directors
proposed for re-election at the annual general meeting are
first considered by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent on criteria such
as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit time and effort
to carry out the duties and responsibilities. Having due regard for
the benefits of diversity of the Board, the Nomination Committee
will then put recommendations to the Board for decision. Details of
the role and function as well as a summary of the work performed
by the Nomination Committee are set out under the heading of
“Nomination Committee” below.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws (“Bye-laws”), the
nearest to but not less than one-third of the Directors shall
retire from office by rotation but are eligible for re-election by
shareholders at the annual general meeting provided that every
Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. New appointments to the Board are also subject to
re-election by shareholders at the next following annual general
meeting.

All non-executive directors of the Company were appointed with no
specific term, but are subject to the aforesaid rotation requirement
in the Bye-laws, accomplishing the same purpose as being
appointed for a specific term pursuant to code provision A.4.1 of
the CG Code. The rotating Directors who are subject to retirement
and re-election at the 2014 annual general meeting are set out on
page 53 of this Annual Report.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
hEERRE (HE)

Board of Directors (continued)

Nomination, Appointment and Re-election of Directors
(continued)

Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico and Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo joined the
Group as independent non-executive directors in April 2004 and
July 2004 respectively. They will be subject to re-election as
Directors in the forthcoming annual general meeting. Both Mr.
CHUNG and Mr. CHENG do not play any management role in the
Group. The Board considers that Mr. CHUNG and Mr. CHENG have
maintained independent views in relation to the Company’s affairs.

Board Diversity Policy
The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) on 8 July 2013.

Below is the summary of the Board Diversity Policy:

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board, and sees increasing diversity at Board level as
an essential element in maintaining a competitive advantage. All
appointments of the members of the Board are made on merit,
in the context of the skills and experience the Board as a whole
requires to be effective. In designing the Board composition, the
Company is committed to equality of opportunity in all aspects and
does not discriminate on the grounds, including but not limited to,
ethnicity, gender, age, cultural and religious background.

The Nomination Committee discussed and agreed the measurable
objectives for achieving diversity on the Board and recommended
them to the Board for adoption. During the year, the Committee
reviewed the existing composition of the Board and identified
the key business skills and experience required in line with the
business strategy. It also monitored the review of the Company’s
recruitment process to reinforce its commitment to the principle of
equal opportunity.

Meetings of the Board and Board Committees

The Directors meet from time to time to discuss and exchange
ideas on the affairs of the Company. The Board has set up
various Board Committees, among others, the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Executive Committee and the Investment Committee for overseeing
particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. The terms of reference
of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee are available on both the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Meetings of the Board and Board Committees (continued)
During the year, the following meetings of the Board, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee were held and the attendance of the individual Directors
at these meetings is set out in the table below:

Number of meetings attended/
number of meetings held during the term of office

BHEGRHE RERNETEERE

Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee
A EVEEE FHEES RRZE®
Executive Directors TES
Mr. OFI Kang, Eric %A 414 2/2(Noteff7E)  2/2(Notef{7)  1/1(NotePfiz)
Mr. CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph BEIEFAE(RZE—=F
(appointed on 1 September 2013) NA—REZAF) 11 N/ATE A N/ATE A N/ATE R
Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie RUBFEERZT—HF
(retired on 1 January 2014) —R—BEf) 34 2/2(NoteffzE)  1/2(NotelftzE) 1/1(Noteffist)
Mr. CHUNG Wai Sum, Patrick BERLE(NZZT—=F
(retired on 1 July 2013) +A—BEM) 2/2 N/ATN i A N/ATN i A N/ATN i
Non-executive Directors FBTES
Mr. OEI Tjie Goan FERLE 0/4 N/AT A N/ATE A N/ATE
Ms. YEN Teresa HRET L 4/4 N/ATE A N/ATNEF N/ATN A
Mr. WAN Ming Sun FRLEE(RZT-—NF
(resigned on 23 January 2014) —BZt+=HE&{) 414 N/ATE P N/ATNEF N/ATN A
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFRTES
Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip (ceasedtobea B E&4(R-ZT—N4E
member of the audit committee on —A—BRIERBEZ
1 January 2014) ZEBKE) 4/4 2/2 2/2 11
Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico BREELE 2/4 2/2 2/2 11
Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo BEMEE 4/4 2/2 2/2 111
Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior EHEEE 4/4 2/2 2/2 1/1

Note: The Executive Directors attended the relevant meetings as invitees.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Meetings of the Board and Board Committees (continued)
Notices of not less than fourteen days are given for all regular
board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to
attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.
For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is
generally given. The agenda and accompanying board papers are
dispatched to the Directors or committee members at least three
days before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to
review the papers and be adequately prepared for the meetings.
When Directors or committee members are unable to attend a
meeting, they are advised of the matters to be discussed and given
an opportunity to make their views known to the Chairman and/or
the CEO prior to the meeting

Minutes of the board meetings and committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail on the matters considered by the
Board and the committees and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each board
meeting and committee meeting are sent to the Directors for
comments within a reasonable time after the date of the meeting.
All Directors have access to the Company Secretary, who is
responsible for ensuring that the board procedures are complied
with and advising the Board on compliance matters.

The Board continues to maintain a culture of openness and
constructive relations between Executive and Non-executive
Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors). In the
absence of the Chairman, the CEOQ is in the position to facilitate the
effective contribution of Non-executive Directors, and ensure their
views are communicated and heard by the Board. During the year,
the Chairman did not hold any formal meeting with Independent
Non-executive Directors and other Non-executive Directors without
the Executive Directors present (as provided for in code provision
A.2.7 of the CG Code) due to the tight schedule of the Chairman
and Non-executive Directors.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee, chaired
by an Independent Non-executive Director, comprises four
members namely Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip, Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee,
Mico, Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo and Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior,
all of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for Directors and senior management,
and reviewing their remuneration packages. In arriving at its
recommendations, the Remuneration Committee will consult
with the Chairman and/or the CEO whenever it thinks fit and
take into consideration factors such as the remuneration paid by
comparable companies, skill, knowledge, time commitment and
responsibilities of Directors. The Remuneration Committee has the
responsibility, powers and discretion to determine, with delegated
responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee held
two meetings to review, inter alia, the remuneration policy and
structure of Directors including those retired and re-elected at the
2013 annual general meeting of the Company and approve the
year-end bonus and salary increment of the Executive Directors.
The Remuneration Committee also approved the remuneration
packages of the newly appointed Executive Directors. No Director
was involved in deciding his/her own remuneration. The attendance
records of each member at the meetings of the Remuneration
Committee held during his/her term of office are set out on page
29. Details of the Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in Note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference. The Nomination Committee, chaired by an
Independent Non-executive Director, comprises four members
namely Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip, Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico, Mr.
CHENG Yuk Wo and Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior and,
all of whom are independent. The Nomination Committee held
one meeting during the year, and the attendance details of each
member are set out on page 29.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board at least annually,
identifying suitable candidates for directorship, assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors, and
making recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

During the year, the work performed by the Nomination Committee
includes the following:

° reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board;

o reviewing the structure of board committees;

o assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors and sufficient number of independent directors to
maintain a balanced board;

. assessing the qualification and experience of new candidates
for directorship and making recommendation to the Board on
matters relating to the appointment of Directors;

o making recommendation to the Board relating to the
re-appointment of the retiring Directors; and

o formulating the Board Diversity Policy, setting the measurable
objectives for implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and
making recommendation to the Board on the adoption of the
Board Diversity Policy.

The Company had provided the Nomination Committee sufficient
resources to perform its duties. Where necessary, the Nomination
Committee could seek independent professional advice, at the
Company’s expense, to perform its responsibilities.
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Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written
terms of reference which have been updated from time to time to
align with the code provisions set out in the CG Code. The Audit
Committee, chaired by an Independent Non-executive Director,
comprised four members namely Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip, Mr.
CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico, Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo and Mr. Albert Thomas
DA ROSA, Junior, all of whom are Independent Non-executive
Directors at all time during the year ended 31 December 2013.
Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip ceased to be a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company on 1 January 2014.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to,
inter alia, review and supervise the Group’s financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management procedures, as
well as oversee the adequacy of the accounting and financial
reporting resources. While recognized corporate governance is the
collective responsibility of all Directors, the Board has delegated
the corporate governance functions to the members of Audit
Committee who are in an objective and independent position to
oversee the corporate governance compliance.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two
meetings together with senior management and external auditor.
The attendance details of each member are set out on page 29.
The major work performed by the Audit Committee during the
year included reviewing interim and annual financial statements,
continuing connected transactions, internal audit reports on the
internal controls and risk management matters, the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance as well as
reviewing and recommending re-appointment of external auditor.

The Company has adopted a whistleblowing policy for employees
to raise concerns, in confidence, with the designated executive
who is accountable to the Audit Committee about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, unlawful activities, or activities
violating the Group’s Code of Conduct and Business Ethics or
otherwise amounting to serious improper conduct and to ensure
protection from possible retaliation against any of our employees
who has reported concerns in good faith.
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Executive Committee

The Company has established an Executive Committee with the key
initiatives to manage the Group’s business activities, and oversee
the operating performance and financial position of the Group and
all strategic business units. The Committee comprises all Executive
Directors and some executives of the Group. Mr. OEl Kang, Eric is
the Chairman of the Executive Committee.

During the year under review, the Executive Committee met
regularly to review the performance of various business units of
the Group, co-ordinate overall resources, made financial and
operation decisions delegated by the Board, review and develop
investment strategy and policies of the Company and make
relevant recommendations to the Board.

Investment Committee

The Company has established an Investment Committee with
written terms of reference. The Investment Committee, chaired
by Mr. OEl Kang, Eric, comprises three members namely Mr. OEl
Kang, Eric and Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy, who are Executive
Directors, and Ms. YEN Teresa, who is Non-executive Director.

The objectives of the Investment Committee are to oversee the
Group’s investment transactions, including review of establishment
of investment benchmarks and review of investment performance
as well as to report and make recommendation to the Board in
relation to the foregoing matters.

Delegation by The Board

The management, consisting of the Executive Directors of the
Company and other executives, is delegated with responsibilities
for implementing the strategy and direction as adopted by the
Board from time to time, and conducting the day-to-day operations
of the Group. Executive Directors and senior executives meet
regularly to review the performance of the businesses of various
business units of the Group as a whole, co-ordinate overall
resources and make financial and operation decisions. The Board
also gives clear directions as to their powers of management
including circumstances where management should report back,
and will review the delegation arrangements on a periodic basis to
ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiries, the Company has obtained confirmation from all
Directors that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2013.

The Company has also adopted a code for dealing in the Company’s
securities by relevant employees, who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished inside information in relation to the securities of the
Group, on no less exacting terms than the Model Code.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company
and the Group and of the Group’s results and cash flows. In
preparing the financial statements, the Directors have adopted
generally accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong and
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, made
judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The statement of the Company’s auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 82 to 83.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the fees in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided to the Group by the auditor
amounted to approximately HK$5.9 million and HK$3.7 million
respectively. The non-audit services mainly consist of tax advisory
services, corporate exercise professional fee, due diligence
services and corporate governance consultation.
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Directors’ Training EEEI

During the year, all Directors have participated in continuous FR > 2EBBEHCL2EBERERLEFHESNENL
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge AL ZFBEEHRE - BB RIEEELE
and skills. The training programmes included seminars and 12 - #%R&IARE  ABELEN - ARENEE
courses, reviewed the updated laws, rules and regulations FEBEMRBENME - EFARAQRFREFRSS
and materials on topics relevant to the director’s duties and B ZEJIZE - FFZAE S 2 HFIIEEEZIL0
responsibilities. Directors are requested to provide the Company T :

with their respective training record. The areas of training received

by each Director are set out below:

Areas of Training

EAEE
Directors’
Corporate Law and duties/
strategy and regulatory  governance Risk
businesses  compliance practices management
PERR EEH EERE/
Name of Directors EERS MEH RE ERER ERER
Executive Directors YTES
Mr. OFI Kang, Eric & &E v/ v/ / v/
Mr. CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph BREFLE(RZS—=F
(appointed on 1 September 2013) NLA—BEZT) v/ v/ v/
Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie RUBEER_Z-WEF
(retired on 1 January 2014) —A—HERA) v v v v
Mr. CHUNG Wai Sum, Patrick BEREE(R=Z-—=F
(retired on 1 July 2013) T A—RHEME) 4
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. OEl Tjie Goan BEEREE 4 v / /
Ms. YEN Teresa EF3i S e v
Mr. WAN Ming Sun FRLEE(R=S-—NF
(resigned on 23 January 2014) —RAZ+=RE{T) v/ v/
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip BLBLE v/ v/ v/
Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico BREELE v
Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo AHEMLE v/ v/ v/ v
Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior RIELE v/ 4 4 v/

The Company continuously updates Directors on the latest ARARFHERESREHEEGHETREERERE
developments in the statutory and regulatory regime and BREZFRZ&ENER  ABBKSETRS
the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their U5 ARAFTEHSBERREEB LHHRAK
responsibilities. In addition, the Directors are regularly encouraged — HEMEERTE 2Bz EFERRIENERE - AN
to enroll in a wide range of professional development courses REFHRFPEERAFTROTH -

and seminars regarding the Listing Rules and other regulatory

requirements to enhance their awareness of good corporate

governance practices.
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Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the Group’s internal control system
and reviewing its effectiveness, while management is charged
with the responsibility to design and implement the internal control
system to manage risks and compliance. The Group has in place
a framework of internal controls that is consistent with the COSO
(the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway
Commission) framework which has the following five components:

. Risk awareness and control consciousness are built into the culture of
the Group.

o RAKENCEUCANBRTREBRIRELEE

. Channels to communicate the Company’s commitment to integrity
and high ethical standards to the staff are established.

o RURBEAE TEREAREE BN ERFRERDEIBIRT A

. Organisation structure, limits of authority and responsibility are set
and communicated to staff concerned.

o EAEBEE  BHERREEHE - YHEREE TEELAL -

. Identification, evaluation and assessment of the key risks affecting the
achievement of the Group’s objectives are conducted regularly,
forming the basis for determining control activities.

o EHRA - HMERARFEAKEERRGEZIREAR  HMERE
TEEIER 2 EE o

. Policies and procedures for ensuring management directives are
carried out.

o HIEBERREF  BREZREZETRSURHNT

. Control activities include authorisation, approval, performance review,
segregation of duties, asset security, access control, documentation
and records, etc.

o EETEEGHERE B KRR BENS  AERE  HFIUZ
Bl X FERCHES -

. Pertinent information is identified, captured and provided to the right
person in a timely manner.

o ERRA - BRREEEATREEEAR -

. Channels of communication across the Group and with external
parties are established.

. AR E P2 A REINEA L ZBREE -

. Channels of communication exist for people to report suspected
improprieties.

o MERSMTETARLBERE -

Ongoing assessment of control systems’ performance.
PRI B R AR -

Close supervision of management and designated executives.
EREEREATHRABREEES -

Internal audit activities.

AEREZIE -

-
.

AR RS

EFEeREREASE Y ANEERS - Wi
SEKR - MEREEERF RBITRE
ERTENEERRBRRERESE - XAEEEP
% 3 B2 COSO (the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the Treadway Commission)
RE—H o NEBEERE  EAB T REE

7
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Internal Controls (continued)

Control Environment

The actions of management and its demonstrated commitment to
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance practices
within the Group are transparent to all. The Group strives to
conduct all business affairs based on good business ethics and
accountability. We have in place a formal Code of Conduct &
Business Ethics that is communicated to all staff members. We aim
to build risk awareness and control responsibility into our culture
and regard them as the foundation of our internal control system.

The internal control system is designed to manage the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives and can provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss. We
maintain an effective internal audit function, the Internal Control
and Risk Management (“ICRM”) Department, whose main features
include:

(i)  independence from operational management;

(i) fully empowered auditors with access to all data and every
operation of the Group;

(iii) adequate resources and well qualified and capable staff; and

(iv) risk-based auditing, concentrating on areas with significant
risks or where significant changes have been made.

Risk Management

Management has an ongoing process to identify and evaluate
the significant risks facing the Group and prioritise resources
to manage those that arise. Mitigation strategies and plans with
respect to each key risk identified are developed and implemented
with regular review and update, which include establishing or
enhancing internal controls.

Heads of the departments, projects and business units regularly
review and analyse the key risks associated with achieving
the objectives of their particular departments, activities and
businesses to provide reasonable assurance that internal
controls are both embedded and effective within their areas of
accountability.
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Internal Controls (continued)

Control Processes

The Board maintains a sound and effective internal control system
through the following:

(i)

(i)

(iiif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The Board reviews the Group’s strategic plans and objectives
on an annual basis.

An organisation structure with defined lines of responsibility
and delegation of authority is devised.

Systems and procedures are in place to identify and evaluate
risks on an ongoing basis. Senior executives review the risk
assessment process and monitor the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management systems.

Appropriate policies and key control activities are maintained
with regular review on their effectiveness.

Financial performance is analysed against budget with
variances being accounted for and appropriate actions are
taken to rectify deficiencies.

Senior executives ensure compliance with relevant laws,
regulations, standards and ordinances, including Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, the Listing Rules and the
Companies Ordinance, under their responsibility.

The ICRM Department reports directly to the Audit Committee
and the CEO, and carries out independent reviews on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system in
accordance with its annual audit plan approved by the Audit
Committee. Key audit findings and implementation progress
of internal control recommendations are regularly reported
to the Board through the Audit Committee. Head of the ICRM
Department also serves as the contact person under the
Whistleblowing Guideline of the Company.

Review of Internal Control Effectiveness

The Executive Directors of the Company conduct reviews of the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and risk management
systems, and submit to the Audit Committee a certification
of compliance for effectiveness and efficiency of operations,
reliability of financial reporting, and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations bi-annually. The scope of this review covers
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function.
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Internal Controls (continued)

Review of Internal Control Effectiveness (continued)

The Audit Committee regularly reviews the audit findings and
implementation progress of internal control recommendations,
and opinion of the ICRM Department on the control systems’
performance of the Group. External auditor also reports on any
control issues identified in the course of their audit work.

Taking the above into consideration, the Audit Committee reviews
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system at least
once each year and reports to the Board on such reviews.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, reviewed and
considered the Group’s internal control system effective and
adequate for the year ended 31 December 2013. No significant
areas of concern that might affect the operational, financial, and
compliance controls and risk management function of the Group
were identified.

Inside Information
With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company:

(i) is aware of the obligations under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, the applicable Listing Rules and other statutory
regulations with regard to the timely and proper disclosure of
inside information, announcements and financial disclosures
and authorises their publication as and when required.

(i) has adopted and implemented its Inside Information
Disclosure Policy.

(iii) has in place a Code for Securities Dealing for governing the
securities transactions of those employees who, because of
their positions, are likely to have access to confidential or
inside information.

(iv) identifies and authorises members of the Group’s senior
management to act as the Company’s spokespersons and
respond to external enquiries.

HKC (Holdings) Limited
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary reports to the CEO on Board or committee
matters and to the Head of Legal on administrative matters. All
Directors have direct access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary for the ongoing discharge of their duties
and responsibilities. For the financial year ended 31 December
2013, the Company Secretary took more than 15 hours of relevant
professional training organized by the Stock Exchange and various
professional bodies.

Constitutional Documents of The Company

The Company has published its updated and consolidated version
of Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws of the Company at
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. During the
year, there was no alteration on the constitutional documents of the
Company.

General Meeting

The last annual general meeting of the Company was held on 31
May 2013 (the “2013 AGM”). The CEO chaired the 2013 AGM in
the absence of the Chairman of the Board due to the Chairman’s
prior business engagement. The external auditor attended the
2013 AGM to answer questions about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the auditors’ report, the accounting
policies and auditor independence.
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ERHE(R)

General Meeting (continued)
The attendance record of the individual Directors at the 2013 AGM
is set out in the table below:

ETN-AE )
TEHINGESHR -_T——ERFAEAS T
FERsE

2013 AGM attended

HE—Z—=F
Name of Directors EEHR BRRBEFAS
(Note)
(BE)
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. OEI Kang, Eric EHRISTAE 4
Mr. CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph PR 75 58 A&
(appointed on 1 September 2013) (RZZE—=FNA—BHEZMT) -
Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie R FRE
(retired on 1 January 2014) (R-—Z=—WF— A —HIEM) v
Mr. CHUNG Wai Sum, Patrick BERLE
(retired on 1 July 2013) (R=ZZ—=FtA—HEMT) 4
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. OEI Tjie Goan ERREAE X
Ms. YEN Teresa BRELZ+ X
Mr. WAN Ming Sun FEALEAE
(resigned on 23 January 2014) (R—Z=—NFE—A-+=H&1T) X
Independent Non-executive Directors BN kHITES
Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip SBICESRAE 4
Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico BREELLE 4
Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo BN 4
Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior wI\ B TE v

Note:

Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Directors
are required to attend general meetings pursuant to code provision
A.6.7 of the CG Code. All Independent Non-executive Directors and
Non-executive Directors were encouraged to attend the general
meeting to inter-face with shareholders of the Company but the Non-
executive Directors were not in a position to attend the 2013 AGM due
to overseas commitment and pre-arranged business engagements.

Shareholders’ Rights

"42

Procedures for the shareholders of the Company to
convene a special general meeting

Under section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, any members holding not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
shall have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition (“Requisitionists”).
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Shareholders Rights (continued)

Procedures for the shareholders of the Company to
convene a special general meeting (continued)

The written request must state the resolution, preferably
accompanied by a statement of not more than one thousand
words with respect to the matter referred to in the proposed
resolution for the Company’s reference and consideration,
signed by the all Requisitionists concerned.

The written request must be deposited at the head office
of the Company at 9/F., Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75
Mody Road, Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong, for the
attention of the Company Secretary.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer agent in Hong Kong (the “Branch Share
Registrars”). Upon the Branch Share Registrars’ confirmation
that the request is proper and in order, the Company will
convene a special general meeting within two months after
the deposit of such requisition, and will serve sufficient notice
in accordance with the statutory and regulatory requirements
to all members of the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings

Pursuant to sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act of
Bermuda, either any number of members representing
not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of
all the members, or not less than one hundred members
(“Requisitionists”) can submit a written request to move a
resolution at an annual general meeting or to circulate a
statement of not more than one thousand words in relation to
business to be dealt with in any general meeting to members
of the Company.

If a resolution is proposed by the members, the written
request must state the resolution (preferably accompanied by
a statement of not more than one thousand words with respect
to the matter referred to in the proposed resolution), signed
by all the Requisitionists concerned.

The written request must be deposited at the registered office
of the Company and preferably with a copy of such request
sent to the head office of the Company at 9/F., Tower 1, South
Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road, Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary
not less than six weeks before the meeting in the case of a
requisition requiring notice of a resolution, and not less than
one week in the case of any other requisition.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

ii. Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings (continued)
The request will be verified by the Branch Share Registrars.
Upon the Share Registrars’ confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, and the Requisitionists have deposited
a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses
in giving effect thereto, the Company will send the notice of
resolution or the statement to its members.

iii. Procedures for election of directors of the Company
The procedures for the shareholders of the Company to
propose a person for election as a director of the Company
are available and accessible on the Company’s website at
www.hkcholdings.com.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board believes regular and timely communication with
shareholders forms part of the Group’s effort to help our
shareholders understand our business better. Copies of the
annual reports and interim reports of the Company are distributed
to its shareholders in accordance with statutory and regulatory
requirements and also to interested parties recorded in the
Company’s mailing lists. The publications of the Company,
including financial reports, circulars and announcements, are also
available on the Company’s website at www.hkcholdings.com.

The Company acknowledges that general meetings are good
communication channel with the shareholders. At the general
meeting, each substantially separate issue is considered by a
separate resolution, including election of individual directors, and
the poll procedures are clearly explained. The CEO attended the
2013 AGM in the absence of the Chairman of the Board due to
the Chairman’s prior business engagement. Other members of
the Board, the Chairmen of the relevant Board Committees and
the external auditor of the Company also attended the annual
general meeting to inter-face with, and answer questions from the
shareholders of the Company.

Shareholders can send their enquiry to the Board by the following
ways:

Post: 9/F., Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road,
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong

E-mail: info@hkcholdings.com

Fax: (852) 2722 6266

HKC (Holdings) Limited
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Senior Manager
= | | o

Mr. OEI Tjie Goan
(Non-executive Director)

Mr. OEI Tjie Goan, aged 69, is the Chairman and an non-executive
director of the Group since April 2004. Mr. OEI was a graduate of the
Mathematics & Dynamics Department of Beijing University where he
majored in Computational Mathematics. Involved in Asia’s pulp and
paper, finance, banking, property and agricultural industries since
1974, Mr. OEl sits on the board of two listed companies in Indonesia:
PT. Indah Kiat Pulp & Paper Tbk. and PT. Pabrik Kertas Tjiwi Kimia
Tbk. Mr. OEl is the father of Mr. OEI Kang, Eric, an executive director
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

Mr. OEI Kang, Eric
(Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. OEI Kang, Eric, aged 43, has been executive director of
the Group since April 2004. Mr. OEIl is the Chief Executive
Officer and the chairman of the Investment Committee and
Executive Committee of the Company. Mr. OEIl also holds
several directorships in other members of the Group. Mr. OEI
was educated in the USA, and obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in
Economics (with a minor in Electrical Engineering) and a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration. Earlier in his career, Mr. OEl
worked with Peregrine Securities Ltd. and PCCW in Hong Kong,
the LG Group in Seoul and McKinsey & Co. in Los Angeles, USA.
Mr. OEl is a son of Mr. OEI Tjie Goan, the Chairman of the Group.
Mr. OEl is also a director and a shareholder of Claudio Holdings
Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. OEI
currently is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of China
Renewable Energy Investment Limited (“CRE”), a subsidiary of the
Company and the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
ESREREEEE)

Mr. CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph
(Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph, aged 53, has been appointed as
executive director of the Company since September 2013. Mr.
CHAN also serves as a director of certain members of the Group
and a member of the Executive Committee of the Company. Mr.
CHAN holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from York
University in Canada. He has over 25 years’ solid experience in
banking and finance field. Mr. CHAN was employed as the Group’s
Chief Financial Officer from August 2006 to October 2009 and
served as an Executive Director of the Company and director of
some subsidiaries of the Group for the periods from June 2007
to September 2009 and from March 2007 to September 2009
respectively. During the period from April 2008 to September 2009,
Mr. CHAN acted as an executive director of China Renewable
Energy Investment Limited (formerly known as J.I.C. Technology
Company Limited, stock code: 987), a subsidiary of the Company
and the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. CHAN re-joined the Group as the Chief Financial
Officer on 10 June 2013.

Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel
(Executive Director)

Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel, aged 48, is an executive director of the
Company since January 2014. Mr. LEE also serves as a director
of certain members of the Group and a member of the Executive
Committee of the Company. Mr. LEE is the Project Director of
Property Department of the Group since December 2010. Mr.
LEE holds a Professional Diploma in Quantity Surveying (Hong
Kong Polytechnic), a Bachelor of Laws (LLB) degree with honours
(City University, Hong Kong) and an MSc degree in Construction
Management (Reading University, UK). He is a Registered
Professional Surveyor, a member of The Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors and a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors. Mr. LEE has over twenty years of project management
experience in property developments in Hong Kong and China.
Before joining the Group, Mr. LEE was the General Manager
(Property Projects) of the Property Department of CITIC Pacific
Limited.
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Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy

(Executive Director)

Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy, aged 53, has been appointed as
executive director of the Company since January 2014. He has
been instrumental in raising funds for the Group and is serving as
a member of Investment Committee and Executive Committee and
director of certain members of the Group. Mr. WONG is the Investor
Relations Director of the Group and has been with the Group since
2007. He has also served as a former Chief Financial Officer.
Mr. WONG is an executive director of China Renewable Energy
Investment Limited, a subsidiary of the Company and the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. WONG received a Bachelor’s degree in the geophysical
sciences from the University of Chicago and an MBA from the Yale
School of Management. He started his career as an investment
banker at Kidder, Peabody in New York, where he was involved in
project finance. He moved to Hong Kong with Bear Stearns, and
was involved in a variety of corporate finance activities, and was
involved in some of the first H share IPOs out of China. Mr. WONG
then worked in equity research at Societe Generale in Shanghai,
and later as head of China Research at Credit Suisse in Hong
Kong. Before joining the Company, Mr. WONG served as a Chief
Financial Officer for DVN Holdings Limited, where he was involved
in fund raising and introducing strategic investors to the company.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
ESREREEEE)

Ms. YEN Teresa
(Non-executive Director)

Ms. YEN Teresa, aged 44, is a non-executive director of the
Company since October 2007 and is a member of the Investment
Committee of the Company. Ms. YEN is a Senior Advisor to
Cerberus Asia Capital Management, LLC. (“Cerberus”), a
substantial shareholder of the Company. In her capacity as Senior
Advisor, Ms. YEN is responsible for advising the Cerberus group
on all of its investments in the Greater China region, including the
PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan. Moreover, Ms. YEN brings particular
expertise to real estate and real estate related transactions. Prior to
joining Cerberus, she was part of the KPMG real estate consulting
practice where she managed real estate consulting engagements
involving United States, Japan, Korea and Taiwan, and worked
extensively in the distressed debt market in Japan between
1999 and 2001. She also has corporate and real estate banking
background from her earlier career with Sumitomo Bank, Long-
Term Credit Bank of Japan and Heller Financial. Ms. YEN received
her undergraduate degree from University of California at Berkeley
and her master degree in business administration from University
of Southern California, Marshall School of Business. Ms. YEN is
currently an independent non-executive director of Yue Yuen
Industrial (Holdings) Limited, a listed company in Hong Kong.

Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip
(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip, aged 64, is a non-executive director
of the Group since November 1999 and re-designated as an
independent non-executive director on 1 March 2010. Mr. FAN
holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Industrial Engineering, a Master’s
Degree in Operations Research from Stanford University and a
Master’'s Degree in Management Science from Massachusetts
Institute of Technology. Mr. FAN is presently an independent non-
executive director of China Everbright International Limited, Hysan
Development Company Limited and First Pacific Company Limited
(all companies listed on the Stock Exchange) and an independent
director of Goodman Group (a company listed on the Australia
Securities Exchange). Mr. FAN was an independent director of
Suntech Power Holdings Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the New
York Stock Exchange) and Zhuhai Zhongfu Enterprise Co., Ltd. (a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange).
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or Management (continu

Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico, aged 53, is an independent non-
executive director of the Group since April 2004. Mr. CHUNG
graduated from the University College, University of London,
England with a Law Degree in 1983. After qualifying as a solicitor
in Hong Kong in 1986, Mr. CHUNG spent 2 years working with the
commercial department of a local law firm. He subsequently joined
the corporate finance department of Standard Chartered Asia Ltd.,
the investment banking arm of Standard Chartered Bank, in 1988.
In 1990, Mr. CHUNG became a director and General Manager of
Bond Corporation International Ltd., leaving to join China Strategic
Holdings Ltd in 1992.

In March 1999, he joined the Pacific Century Group as executive
director with responsibility for the group’s merger and acquisition
activities. Mr. CHUNG is currently the executive chairman of CSI
Properties Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange, and
a non-executive director of HKT Limited and HKT Management
Limited (in its capacity as the trustee — manager of the HKT Trust).
Mr. CHUNG was a non-executive director of PCCW Limited.

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo, aged 53, is an independent non-executive
director of the Group since July 2004. Mr. CHENG holds a Master
of Science Degree in Economics, Accounting and Finance and a
Bachelor of Arts (Hons.) Degree in Accounting. He is a fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and a member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario. His career
includes more than 20 years’ accounting and corporate advisory
services expertise in several listed companies in Hong Kong. The
co-founder of a Hong Kong merchant banking firm, Mr. CHENG is
the proprietor of a certified public accountancy practice in Hong
Kong.

Mr. CHENG is currently an independent non-executive director of
CSI Properties Limited, Goldbond Group Holdings Limited, C.P.
Lotus Corporation, Chong Hing Bank Limited, CPMC Holdings
Limited, Imagi International Holdings Limited, Top Spring
International Holdings Limited and Liu Chong Hing Investment
Limited, all being Hong Kong listed companies. Mr. CHENG was an
executive director of 21 Holdings Limited and an independent non-
executive director of South China Land Limited, both companies
listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
ESREREEEE)

Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior
(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior, aged 60, is an independent
non-executive director of the Group since September 2004. Mr. DA
ROSA holds both Bachelor's and Master’s Law Degrees from the
University of Hong Kong. He qualified as a solicitor in Hong Kong in
1980. He currently is a practicing solicitor and a partner of Messrs.
Cheung, Tong & Rosa, Solicitors, Hong Kong.

Mr. DA ROSA is a fellow of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators
and the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, a member of the Hong
Kong Securities Institute and the Society of Registered Financial
Planners and an Accredited Mediator with certain institutions in the
U.K. and Hong Kong.

He is a non-executive director of TCL Multimedia Technology
Holdings Limited and the company secretary of Y.T. Realty
Group Limited and Yugang International Limited, all of which are
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. In the
past three years, Mr. DA ROSA had been a non-executive director
of eSun Holdings Limited.

Mr. DA ROSA serves as the Chairman of the Appeal Tribunal
(Buildings) Panel, the Tribunal Convenor of the Solicitors
Disciplinary Tribunal Panel, and the Chairman of the Panel of the
Board of Review (Inland Revenue Ordinance) respectively. He also
served as member of the Academic and Accreditation Advisory
Committee of the Securities and Futures Commission from February
2003 to March 2009.
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The directors of HKC (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”)
(the “Directors” or the “Board”) have pleasure in presenting
to shareholders of the Company their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis of
Operations

The principal activities of the Group are property development
and investment, alternative energy investment and operation and
infrastructure. The activities of its principal subsidiaries, associated
companies and joint ventures are set out in pages 218 to 227 of the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
December 2013 by geographical and business segments is set out
in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 84.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in Note 18 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Principal Properties
Details of the principal properties held for development and
investment purposes are set out on pages 229 to 232.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws of
the Company (“Bye-laws”) and there is no restriction against such
rights under the law of Bermuda.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEaREE (@

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in Note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2013, the distributable reserves of the Company
available for distribution was HK$730.7 million (2012: HK$730.7
million), calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended).

Five-year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 228.

Donations
During the year, the Group made no charitable and other donation
(2012: Nil).

Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

* OEl Tjie Goan (Chairman)

# OEl Kang, Eric (Chief Executive Officer)

CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph (Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed on 1 September 2013)

LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel (appointed on 1 January 2014)

WONG Jake Leong, Sammy (appointed on 1 January 2014)

CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie (retired on 1 January 2014)

CHUNG Wai Sum, Patrick (retired on 1 July 2013)

YEN Teresa

WAN Ming Sun (resigned on 23 January 2014)

FAN Yan Hok, Philip

CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico

CHENG Yuk Wo

Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior

B3

ok o H o H

® @06

Executive Directors
Non-executive Directors
@ Independent Non-executive Directors

o

HKC (Holdings) Limited
Annual Report 2013

i 1E
FRN - ARRMAEERZ FEEZSDFBIANGE
B HR R MIFESS -

A5 IS
R-F—Z=ZF+-"A=+—H ARRAIHIIK
2 Al IR A730,700,0008 T ( — 2 — —4F ¢
730,700,000/8 L) * BHIEBERE—NLN—F
NENE(IBET)ETH -

T FMBEERME
AEBBERAVREFEZEEUREERARG
BEHNE228H -

B
FR - AEBTEELEEREMBBR(ZZ
—ZF &)

=
FARBEAREAMZESMOT -

- BER(EE)
=W (7TEAAE)

RES (BRMHBE)
(RZB—=FhA—HEZE)
FERN_T—NOF-—A—HEZME)
BEER(R-_F-HF—A—BEZE)
RUB(R-T—NFE—A—HEE)
FEERN-ZB-—=FtA—BEME)

A B
FRLUR=-F-NF—A=T=HEHL)
B
EEER AN
#Eem

#H

Q@ ® ©® ® * * #H H H H

*

HITES
FHMITES
@ BYFRTES



Directors (continued)

In accordance with Bye-law 85 of the Bye-laws, Mr. OEl Tjie Goan,
Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico and Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
(*AGM”) and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election as
directors of the Company. Mr. CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph who was
newly appointed by the Board on 1 September 2013, and Mr. LEE
Shiu Yee, Daniel and Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy who were
newly appointed by the Board on 1 January 2014, will also retire
from office in accordance with Bye-law 84 of the Bye-laws and will
offer themselves for re-election as directors of the Company.

The Company has also received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company
considers that all of them to be independent.

Mr. OEIl Tjie Goan, a Non-executive Director and Chairman of the
Company, has voluntarily agreed to waive his annual director’s fees
with effect from 1 January 2010 until further notice to the Company,
and the director’s fee he waived for the year ended 31 December
2013 amounted to HK$100,000.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Report of the Directors (continued)
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Share Option Schemes

Share Options of the Company

The Company’s existing share option scheme (the “HKC Option
Scheme”) was adopted on 16 June 2006. Particulars of the HKC
Option Scheme are set out below:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

<P -

Purpose

The principal purposes are to recruit and retain high caliber
Eligible Persons (as defined below) and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group or any entity in
which any member of the Group holds an equity interest
(“Invested Entity” or “Invested Entities”), to recognise the
significant contributions of the Eligible Persons to the growth
of the Group or Invested Entities by rewarding them with
opportunities to obtain ownership interest in the Company
and to further motivate and give incentives to these Eligible
Persons to continue to contribute to the long term success
and prosperity of the Group or Invested Entities.

Eligible Persons

Any employee (whether full time or part time), senior
executive or officer, manager, director (including
independent non-executive director) or consultant of any
members of the Group or any Invested Entity who, in the sole
discretion of the Board, have contributed or will contribute
to the growth and development of the Group or any Invested
Entity.

Maximum number of shares available for issue
The total number of shares of the Company available for issue
under the HKC Option Scheme is 587,875,982 shares which
represent approximately 5.23% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of this Annual Report.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person
The total number of shares of the Company issued and to
be issued upon exercise of options (whether exercised or
outstanding) granted in any 12-month period to:

(i) each Eligible Person must not exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue;

(i) a substantial shareholder or an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company must not exceed
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue and not
exceed HK$5 million in aggregate value.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)
Share Options of the Company (continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

(M

Period within which the shares must be taken up under an
option

An option must be exercised within ten years from the date on
which it is granted or such shorter period as the Board may
specify at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option must be held
At the time of the grant of an option, the Board must specify
the minimum period(s), if any, for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised.

Period open for acceptance of an option and amount
payable upon acceptance

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of ten business days from the date
of offer and a consideration of HK$1.0 must be paid upon
acceptance.

Basis of determining the subscription price of an option
The exercise price must be at least the higher of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in daily quotations sheet on the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing
prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share.

Remaining life

The HKC Option Scheme has a life of ten years and will expire
on 16 June 2016 unless otherwise terminated in accordance
with the terms of the HKC Option Scheme.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
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Share Option Schemes (continued) BT &)
Share Options of the Company (continued) KRB ZBIRAE(E)
Movements of share options granted under the HKC Option FR - RESBEREBERE SR 2 BRIES
Scheme during the year are as follows: BFBEET
Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding Outstanding at Exercise price
Nature of at 1 January Granted Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Names interest 2013 (Note 1) Exercised Lapsed 2013 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
R-g-z% RZ%-Z%
-A-8 BRI Bi#/ t-A=t-8 BRTEE
% BtE WAL (1) Bt BAN HATE RHAH fif:2 (Bx)
Directors
g2
OEIKang, Eric Personal 749,757 - - - 749,757 15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 1.066
Bt A “EERELCATREA 14 December 2016
“ERFT-AtRAR
ZE-NETZATER
1,249,596 - - - 1,249,596 15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 1.066
“ETRAET-ATREE 14 December 2016
“TE\F+-ATRAZ
ZERETZATRE
399,870 - - - 399,870 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
ZET/\EZA-H 31 January 2018
“ETNF-A-HE
“E-\§-A=t-H
599,806 - - - 599,806 1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 1.242
ZZE)\EZA-H 31 January 2018
ZE-%F-R-RE
ZE-\§-A=1-A
999,676 - - - 999,676 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.242
“ET\FZF-H 31 January 2018
“Z——£-f-BZ
ZE-\E-A=1-H
- 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 15 April 2013 15 April 2014 1o 0.269
“E-ZEMATRA 14 April 2016 (Note 2)
“E-MENATRAZ
ZE-EMATRA
GiE2)
- 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 15 April 2013 15 April 2015 1o 0.269
“E-ZEMATRA 14 April 2017 (Note 2)
“E-TENATRAZ
“E-tEMATRA
GiE2)
- 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 15 April 2013 15 April 2016 1o 0.269
“E2--EQmATAA 14 April 2018 (Note 2)
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Share Option Schemes (continued)
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Share Options of the Company (continued) RATZBRAEE)
Number of share options
EREHA
Outstanding Outstanding at Exercise price
Nature of at1 January Granted Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Names interest 2013 (Note 1) Exercised Lapsed 2013 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
K-%-z% R=%B-=F
-A-H BEL Bi#/ t-A=t-8 BRiTEE
e BhlE HATE GE BfTE BAX HATE RAAH fif:E (1)
Directors
£
OFI Kang, Eric Family 749,757 - - - 749,757 15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 1.066
B Rk TEENETCATREE 14 December 2016
ZERYETCATRAZ
ZE-NETZATER
1,249,596 - - - 1,249,596 15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 1,066
“EEREHCATREA 14 December 2016
ZEI\ETZATRAZ
ZE-NETZATER
399,870 - - - 399,870 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
ZET\FZF-H 31 January 2018
“ETNF-A-BE
ZF-\F-A=1-A
599,806 - - - 599,806 1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 1.242
“ET\FZf-H 31 January 2018
TE-RECR-RE
“B-N\E-A=t-H
999,676 - - - 999,676 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1,242
ZETN\FZR-H 31 January 2018
“2—-EZf-H%
“E-\§-A=t-H
- 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 15 April 2013 15 April 2014 1o 0.269
ZE-ZENATRA 14 April 2016 (Note 2)
“E-WENATRAZ
ZF- FmATRA
(H3t2)
- 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 15 April 2013 15 April 2015 10 0.269
ZE-=ENATRA 14 April 2017 (Note 2)
ZE-TENATRAZ
“T-+FmATRA
(Mte)
- 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 15 April 2013 15 April 2016 to 0.269
“E-ZEMATRA 14 April 2018 (Note 2)
“Z-NEMATRAR
ZE-/\EMATEA
(Mte)
EBERER)ERAT

T -ZFER
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Share Option Schemes (continued) BT &)
Share Options of the Company (continued) KRB ZBIRAE(E)
Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding Outstanding at Exercise price
Nature of at 1 January Granted Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Names interest 2013 (Note 1) Exercised Lapsed 2013 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
R-B-zf R-%-z§
-A-H BEL Bif#/ t-A=t-A BRIOEE
e BIE HATE (GE BiTE BAX HATE RAAH &8 (r)
Directors
gz
FAN Yan Hok, Philip  Personal 799,741 - - - 799,741 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
fint: A “ET/\EZf-H 31 January 2018
=
“3-)\E-A=t-8
1,199,613 - - - 1,199,613 1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 1.242
ZET\5ZF-H 31 January 2018
“Z-FF-f-HE
“§-/\E-A=1-8
1,999,354 - - - 1,999,354 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.242
ZET\5ZF-H 31 January 2018
“E--F-f-HE
“§-)\E-A=1-8
CHUNG Cho Yee,  Personal 799,741 - - - 799,741 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
Mico “S5\E-A-H 31 January 2018
%2 ZEENF-R-RE
“E-\§-A=1-A
1,199,613 - - - 1,199,613 1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 1.242
ZET/\EZA-H 31 January 2018
“Z-2E_f-BE
“E-\§-A=1-A
1,999,354 - - - 1,999,354 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.242
ZET/\EZA-H 31 January 2018
“Z——£_f-B%
“F-\§-A=t-A
CHENG Yuk Wo Personal 799,741 - - - 799,741 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
=yl A Z3Z/\5ZA-H 31 January 2018
= R
“§-)\E-A=t-8
1,199,613 - - - 1,199,613 1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 1.242
ZEE)\EZA-H 31 January 2018
“Z-FF-f-pE
“F-\§-A=t-H
1,999,354 - - - 1,999,354 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.242
ZZE)\EZA-H 31 January 2018
“E--F-f-fE
“F-\§-A=t-H
Albert Thomas DA Personal 799,741 - - - 799,741 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
ROSA, Junior A “ZE\EZf-H 31 January 2018
B “TINF-R-BE
“E-\§-A=1-A
1,199,613 - - - 1,199,613 1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 1.242
ZET/\EZA-H 31 January 2018
Z5-FF-f-RE
“E-\§-A=1-A
1,999,354 - - - 1,999,354 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1,242
ZET/\EZA-H 31 January 2018
“Z——£_f-BZ
“F-\§-A=1-A
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

IR REST Bl ()

Share Options of the Company (continued) RATZBRAE(E)
Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding Outstanding at Exercise price
Nature of at 1 January Granted Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Names interest 2013 (Note 1) Exercised Lapsed 2013 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
H-%-z% R=B-=F
-A-B 254 Bif#/ t-A=t-A BRIOEE
e BhlE HATE (1) BiTE B&H HATE RAAH &8 (m)
Directors
£
CHANG LiHsien,  Personal 6,609,440 - - (6,609,440) -1 September 2010 1 September 2011 to 0443
Leslie (refiredon ~ EA ZZ-TENA-H 31 August 2013
1 January 2014) ZE——FNA-RE
FUB(R-F-MF ZE-ZFN\A=1-A
—F—-RBiEf) 9,914,160 - - - 9,914,160 1 September 2010 1 September 2012 to 0.443
ZE-2FNA-A 31 August 2014
ZZ-ZENR-BE
ZE-MENA=T-A
16,523,601 - - - 16,623,601 1 September 2010 1 September 2013 to 0.443
“E-ZENA-H 31 August 2015
ZE--EnA-RE
“Z-nEN\A=t-R
- 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000 15 April 2013 15 April 2014 o 0.269
“E-ZEMATRA 14 April 2016 (Note 2)
ZE-MENATRAZ
ZE-EmATRA
iE2)
- 15,000,000 - - 15,000,000 15 April 2013 15 April 2015 to 0.269
“E-ZEMATRA 14 April 2017 (Note 2)
“Z-n§NA+ERE
ZT—tEMATRA
B2
- 25,000,000 - - 25,000,000 15 April 2013 15 April 2016 to 0.269
“E-Z%¥MATEA 14 April 2018 (Note 2)
“T-§METRAZ
“Z-/\EmATRA
(fi2)
CHUNG Wai Sum,  Personal 2,203,146 - - - 2,203,146 10 June 2011 10 June 2012 to 0327
Patrick (refired ~ fAA “E--FxA1H 9 June 2014
on 1 July 2013) ZE-CERRTRE
BERR-Z-=% ZZ-WERANA
+tA-REA) 3,304,720 - - - 3304720 10 June 2011 10 June 2013 o 0327
ZE-——%xATH 9 June 2015
ZE-E7RTRE
ZE-RERANA
5,507,866 - - - 5,507,866 10 June 2011 10 June 2014 o 0327
ZE——55A1H 9 June 2016 (Note 2)
ZE-TERRTRE
ZE-"FRANE
GiE2)
Sub-fotal’5r 68,055,175 65,000,000 - (6,600440) 126445735
e aRan s €

T -ZFER



Report of the Directors (continued)

EEEREE(H)

Share Option Schemes (continued)
Share Options of the Company (continued)

RS (®)
AATZBRE &)

Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding Outstanding at Exercise price
Nature of at 1 January Granted Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Names interest 2013 (Note 1) Exercised Lapsed 2013 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
RZB-Z% RZE-ZF
-B-8 &Y BEE/ t2AZt-A SRAER
e BRIE HATE (H31) BiTR BAX HATE RAAH &8 (m)
Employees and other 6,131,344 - - (533,160) 5,598,184 15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 1.066
participants “EERETZATRE 14 December 2016
EEREMZEAL ZISHETCATRAE
BT ATEA
10,463,281 - - (799,741) 9,663,540 15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 1.066
“ETNETCATEE 14 December 2016
“2Z/\E+-A+RAZ
“EF—7E+-AtmA
12,995,804 - - (1,332903) 11,662,901 15December2006 15 December 2009 to 1,066
TETNETCATRE 14 December 2016
:ZEHH ATHRZ
_z- A¢+ H+EE
6,664,518 - - - 6,664,518 3 July 2007 15 December 2007 to 1.726
ZEStECA=H 2 July 2017
:§§t¢+ ATHRZ
S—tE+AZA
3,332,259 - - - 3,332,259 3Ju|y2007 15December2008t0 1.726
“RREELAZR 2 July 2017
%% \¢+ ATLRE
:K—titﬂ H
3,332,259 - - - 3,332,259 3Ju%2007 15 December 2009 to 1.726
ZEStELACH 2July 2017
ZEINETZATRAR
“ET-tELACH
15,861,534 - - (3198967) 12,662,567 1 February 2008 1February2009to 1.242
“ET\5ZF-H 31 January 2018
“ERNECR-BE
“F-\E-A=t-A
23,792,307 - - (4798,451) 18,993,856 1 February 2008 1February2010to 1.242
ZETN\FZR-H 31 January 2018
FE_f-BE
:K—)\E A=t-H
39,653,865 - - (79974200 31,656,445 1February2008 1February2011to 1.242
ZERN\EZA 31 January 2018
—777 ﬂiai
“E-)\E-A=1-H
- 8,500,000 - - 8,500,000 15 April 2013 15Apr||20 to 0.269
“EF-ZEQMATEA 14 April 2016 (Note 2)
“E-NEMATRAZ
T:Aﬁ“ﬂ%@ﬁ
(fizt2)
- 12,750,000 - - 12,750,000 15 April 2013 15Apn|205 0.269
“F-ZEQmA+AA 14 April 2017 (Note 2)
ZT-hEMATRAR
‘fntﬁlﬂ+@5
(fizt2)
- 21,250,000 - - 21,250,000 15 April 2013 15Apnl20 0.269
“E-=%#MATEA 4Apn|2018(N0te2)
“Z-~FMATRAZ
—2-\EMATHE
(fizt2)
Sub-totalst 120207470 42,500,000 - (18660,642) 146,066,529
Totalf i 190,282,346 107,500,000 - (25,270,082) 272,512,264
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

Share Options of the Company (continued)
Notes:

1. The closing price of the Company shares immediately before the date
on which the options were granted on 15 April 2013 was HK$0.265.

2. The share options will be vested and exercisable subject to the
attainment of the performance target as determined by the Board.

Using the Binominal Valuation model, the fair value of 107,500,000
share options granted on 15 April 2013 was HK$7.69 million for the
year under review. The significant inputs into the model were share
price of HK$0.265 at the grant date, exercise price of HK$0.269,
volatility ranging from 35.0% to 50.2%, dividend yield of 4.139%, an
option life of 3 years to 5 years and a risk-free interest rate ranging
from 0.193% to 0.346%. The volatility measured at the standard
deviation of share returns is based on statistical analysis of weekly
share prices over the past 3 to 5 years. The vesting period is
between 15 April 2014 to 15 April 2016. The value of the share
options is subject to a number of assumptions and with regard to
the limitation of the model. Therefore, the value may be subjective
and difficult to determine.

Save as disclosed above, no share option was granted, exercised,
cancelled nor lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2013
under the HKC Option Scheme.

RS (®)
RAT ZBRE(#F)
=R

1. ARAROREEBERER-_Z—=FMA
+H AR B BT 2 (B R0.26578 7T °

2. BREARE
BRI

EEEEMENRAEBRRTE

FR-_BEXNGHEEAFE  RZT—=FNA
+ # B % tH 2 107,500,000 17 & A% 1 7 [ FE 4F
N2 AF1EA7,690,000/8 7T B AZIRE K E
RNEHAERE L A ZRE.2658 T « 1T E
0.269/8 7T * KB F35.0%%50.2% KB X
B4.139%  BREFHA=ZEZAF - WIKER
B FE AN F0.193% E0.346% 15 o LARL {7 B ¥
R BEEREFE LG DIREBEBA=ZZRF
2 EHBARER;AOWHE - BBEBHEN T 2Z—I
FMA+HEBE-_ZT—XRFWNUA+HH - B%HXFE
ZEEZIZEBREREEEXRIMTE -

b HEEAERTERHEUET -

BREXEEEN RBE-_FT—=F1+_A
=T—HLEFE  BEEABREREETEER
BBRERT EIER L - 176 - RO KK -

BRRR(ERERAR
—T-=FGH
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Report of the Directors (continued)
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

Share Options of subsidiary of the Company

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited (*“CRE”), a subsidiary
of the Company, adopted a share option scheme (the “CRE Option
Scheme”) on 27 May 2008. Particulars of the CRE Option Scheme
are set out below:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

"62

Purpose

The principal purposes are to recruit and retain high caliber
Eligible Persons (as defined below) and attract human
resources that are valuable to the CRE Group or any entity
in which any member of the CRE Group holds an equity
interest (“Invested Entity” or “Invested Entities”), to recognise
the significant contributions of the Eligible Persons to the
growth of the CRE Group or Invested Entities by rewarding
them with opportunities to obtain ownership interest in CRE
and to further motivate and give incentives to these Eligible
Persons to continue to contribute to the long term success
and prosperity of the CRE Group or Invested Entities.

Eligible Persons

Any employee (whether full time or part time), senior
executive or officer, manager, director (including
independent non-executive director) or consultant of any
members of the CRE Group or any Invested Entity who, in
the sole discretion of the board of directors of CRE, have
contributed or will contribute to the growth and development
of the CRE Group or any Invested Entity.

Maximum number of shares available for issue

The total number of shares of CRE available for issue
under the CRE Option Scheme is 70,978,475 shares which
represent approximately 3.01% of the issued share capital of
CRE as at the date of this Annual Report.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person

The total number of shares of CRE issued and to be issued
upon exercise of options (whether exercised or outstanding)
granted in any 12-month period to:

HKC (Holdings) Limited
Annual Report 2013

RS (®)
AATIMEB AT ZEIRE
ARRMBLARRREEERIREARAE ([
BELERE DR -_EENFRA -+ BEH—
TEF AT B ([ R E AR ARAESTE]) o
B A AR AR 2 S I T

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

B
TZENARBELRBEBREFZABRAL
(EERTXOUEBRSIHFEBFLEELRSE
B E T EAIK B R AR A RAER Z
MER(IREER)BEBEZANER
BRRHEMEERERALTRETEEE
ERZBARER  RBRFHTEBE
EREEXREBRZERMELEAR
B XE-TEBEREBZEFAERAL
BERTEBLREREEIREERZK
ERELERL

BERBAL
TEBLEREFTE2RNERRETMNE
B HPEBEEREERETARE
ERZERNERFHERMZTEB AR
BREBETEMKEARNKREER S
B FBER SRITBRABRKTIEA
B R BR(BRELIFATES)X
R o

ARFTROZESHE

RHER B A A RERET S A 3T 2
FEIB A RERIR (D 8 A70,978,4750% -
HERPEBLEERRAFREBZE®
TR AN493.01% ©

EEERALZEERE
REHZER+ZEASRE - TEERE
B (T B BT M ARTTE) B
TATRETERBTETZPEBLERER
Bt s
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Share Option Schemes (continued)
Share Options of subsidiary of the Company (continued)

(d)

(e)

()

(9)

(h)

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person (continued)
(i) each Eligible Person must not exceed 1% of the shares
of CRE in issue;

(i) a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of CRE must not exceed 0.1% of the
shares of CRE in issue and not exceed HK$5 million in
aggregate value.

Period within which the shares must be taken up under an
option

An option must be exercised within 10 years from the date
on which it is granted or such shorter period as the board of
directors of CRE may specify at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option must be held
At the time of the grant of an option, the board of directors of
CRE must specify the minimum period(s), if any, for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised.

Period open for acceptance of an option and amount
payable upon acceptance

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of 10 business days from the date
of offer and a consideration of HK$1.0 must be paid upon
acceptance.

Basis of determining the subscription price of an option
The exercise price must be at least the higher of (i) the closing
price of the shares of CRE as stated in the Stock Exchange'’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing prices of the shares of CRE as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of a share of CRE.

Remaining life

The CRE Option Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire
on 27 May 2018 unless otherwise terminated in accordance
with the terms of the CRE Option Scheme.

RS (®)
AATMB AT ZERE &)

(d)

(e)

()

(9)

(h)

BERERALTZBSRE(HE)
() BRAEBAL THEBTES
HEREREHITIRM 1%

(i) EEZRHEFKFHBALFEBILIEH
TEZ  TEEBEFEBLERE
BEITRR 19 0.1% M #8185,000,000 78
7TE o

REBREARBERG 2 HE

BREANE L AMEF10FTEBE
REREFS A ENE L EH 2 82 MR
MTTEE ©

BFHEBREZ&EHR(M0AE)
REBRERHE  PEBLEREESA
FIAEAITTER A B 2 &2 HR (10
B

BEABREZHRUREAREN 2SR

RERHMZBRETBRE AL 101
EXAHRARTHER  BRBAXN1.0
BILHRIE

EEBREIBREZEE
TEEARIRUATERE  ()PEBLE
EERBRONEHL A BERI SR RER
FREVWCTE (i) B 5 A B R A ) B IR0
BREBAMAAEEXAERMEARE
RFFHIFHWTE © (i) BB LR
AEE

BT EH
RIEFEBARERENE 2G5 B
FEFITHRIE - TP EF AR E R
FEIFHAIOF  BR=ZZ—N\FHA
—t+tBEm-

BRRR(ERERAR
—T-=FGH
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Report of the Directors (continued)
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Share Option Schemes (continued) RS (m)
Share Options of subsidiary of the Company (continued) ZARATMBL T ZBEBREH)
Movements of share options granted under the CRE Option FRIREHRBEEAEREFREREEIC T LB RE

Scheme during the year are as follows: ZEBFBOT
Number of share options
EREHE
Outstanding Outstanding Exercise
at at price per
Nature of 1 January Cancelled/ 31 December share
Names interest 2013 Granted  Exercised Lapsed 2013 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
H=%-z% R=E-z% =l
-A-B Bif#/ tZA=t-H ke
e BEME WATE ERL o3t B&H HATRE RELRH s (Bx)
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Personal 550,000 - - (550,000) - 20 January 2010 20 January 2011 to 0764
Samuel (Director of CRE)  fEA “E-ZE-A-+HE 19January 2013
2R E(PEEENFES) ZF——5-fZtHE
ZZ-Z5-AtNA
825,000 - - - 825,000 20 January 2010 20 January 2012 to 0.764
“E-ZE-A-+B 19 January 2014
Z2-C§-fCtHE
“E-WE-ATNE
1,375,000 - - - 1,375,000 20 January 2010 20 January 2013 to 0.764
“E-FE-BHE 19January 2015
ZE-=E-f-tHE
ZZ-RE-FTNR
Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie  Personal 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) - 1September 2010 1 September 2011 to 0570
(Director) (refiredon 1 A ZZ-2FNA-H 31 August 2013
January 2014) “E--FNA-HE
FUBiE(E2)(R_T-mE ZE-ZE\A=1-H
-A-BEfF) 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 1 September 2010 1 September 2012 to 0570
ZE-FENA-H 31 August 2014
“Z-ZEAA-BE
ZE-MENAZT-R
2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000 1September 2010 1 September 2013 to 0.570
ZZ-2FNA-H 31 August 2015
ZE-ZENA-BE
ZE-RE/\A=1-H
An ex-director of CRE Personal 1,100,000 - - (1,100,000) - 20 January 2010 20 January 2011 to 0.764
—LPEELHFNES fEA “E-FE-A-+8 19 January 2013
i
ZE-=E-ffNR
1,650,000 - - (1,650,000) - 20 January 2010 20 January 2012 to 0.764
ZE-FE-BZHE 19January 2014
ZF-C§-fZtHE
ZZ-MmE-ATNA
2,750,000 - - (2,750,000) - 20 January 2010 20 January 2013 to 0.764
“E-ZE-A-+B 19 January 2015
ZZ-ZE-ftHE
ZT-RE-ATAB
Total &3t 13,250,000 - - (7,050,000) 6,200,000
Save as disclosed above, no share option was granted, exercised, K EXHEZEN  REBEEZE_ZT—=F+_H
cancelled nor lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2013 =+—BILFE - BB (IERERETEHE
under the CRE Option Scheme. SEIRFE IR RERT SR - 17(F - RSB KRB .
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Directors’ Interests in Securities

At 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules adopted by the Company were as follows:

(i) Long positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company:

EERNEZ 2R
RZE—ZF+ZA=+—H EEFERELRH
TETRABRARERE(ENER(FEH
REsRBEEA(ESREBEEG]))EXVE
2B MEARORESFTPHEEELNESF R
HIE 15 BIE 35216 R EF B B R M 2 B as Mok
B RBARRERA 2 E TR BT S ATE
METABFETEFRZOREST ([ RAEST
Al DR EAME AR R MR S KORA N
T~

(i) REDARDREBRG 2HFR :

Number of Approximate
shares and percentage of
underlying the existing issued
Nature of shares of the share capital of the
Name of Directors interest Company Company
RAFE ERRARE
B4 K 2BITRAE
BEEME fEEME HERGEE BHBED
OEl Kang, Eric Corporate’2 a] 4,678,014,112" 41.612%
=l Personalf@ A 44,429,6072 0.395%
Joint# A 121,603,8443 1.082%
Family & ik 8,998,705* 0.080%
CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie Personalffil A 76,437,761° 0.680%
(retired on 1 January 2014)
KYB(RZZ—NF—A—RHEMT) Jointk A 27,000,000° 0.240%
FAN Yan Hok, Philip
Pyt = Personalf@ A 3,998,7087 0.036%
CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico
B Personalf& A 3,998,708 0.036%
CHENG Yuk Wo
EL &R AN Personalffil A 3,998,708° 0.036%
Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior
ElE Personalf&@ A 3,998,708 0.036%

ERBR(ER)ERAT 65 o
gy



Report of the Directors (continued)
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BEENRF RS @)
(i) REQTAEBELEROREBRG 2

Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued)
(ii) Long positions in the shares and underlying shares

of associated corporation of the Company:

wR:

Number of Approximate
shares and percentage of the
underlying existing issued
shares of the share capital of
Name of associated Name of Nature of associated the associated
corporation Directors interest corporation corporation
HEEE LR
ZRHBR BECRITRE
HEEEER EEpE ERHE HEROEA R
China Renewable Energy OEl Kang, Eric ~ Corporate’A 7] 1,836,550,369" 77.940%
Investment Limited (“CRE") ] Personalf A 2,175,086 0.092%
PEBERRREBRAF Joint# [ 24,724,353 1.049%
( THEREER] )
CRE CHANG Li Personalfi A 4,000,000 0.170%
PEI B AR Hsien, Leslie  JointA 570,000 0.024%
(retired on 1
January 2014)
RUE (RZZE
—mE—A—H
RAE)

Notes: B3

1. The corporate interest of Mr. OEI Kang, Eric represents 1. ElEEZAREEERAEEREFRAR
an interest in 1,694,419,708 shares of the Company held ([ )6 21,694,419, 708 AN A IR D
by Creator Holdings Limited (“Creator”) and an interest in EmkBEAEEFRAR([ELDFAEZ
2,983,594,404 shares of the Company held by Genesis Capital 2,983,594,4048 RN A AR #E % © Claudio
Group Limited (“Genesis”). Both Creator and Genesis are Holdings Limited([ Claudio]) & & # & gl
wholly-owned by Claudio Holdings Limited (“Claudio”), a K ZE Al > Claudio 2 50% 1 5 B = M) 5C 4
company owned as to 50% by Mr. OEI Kang, Eric and as to the A HpS0%EmA R EFREBLIHA -
remaining 50% by his wife, Mrs. OEI Valonia Lau.

2. The personal interest of Mr. OEI Kang, Eric represents an 2. =MI5t 4 2 AR 530,430,902 A A A
interest in 30,430,902 shares of the Company and an interest in B A7 f 2 e B S [ BB AR ST & | — P P s
13,998,705 underlying shares in respect of options granted by RAE R RS 7.2 13,998,705 48
the Company as detailed in “Share Option Schemes” section AR iR -
above.

3. The joint interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an interestin 3. S|l A7 HAEREHRFEEAZTFIE
121,603,844 shares of the Company jointly held with his wife, THREEZ121,603,844ARFR’H 2
Mrs. OEI Valonia Lau. s e

4. The family interest of Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric represents an interest 4.  SmRIEAEZ Rk EEE X [BERE

2~ AT AEMEE 2 EFE
S LAIR R E R 28,998, 705/% 17
Mefn s -

in 8,998,705 underlying shares in respect of options granted
by the Company to Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau, wife of Mr. OEI Kang,
Eric, as detailed in “Share Option Schemes” section above.
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Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued)
(ii) Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of

associated corporation of the Company: (continued)
Notes: (continued)

5.

10.

11.

12.

13.

The personal interest of Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie represents
an interest in 76,437,761 underlying shares in respect of
options granted by the Company as detailed in “Share Option
Schemes” section above.

The joint interest of Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie represents an
interest in 27,000,000 shares of the Company jointly held with
his wife, Ms. WU Tung.

The personal interest of Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip represents
an interest in 3,998,708 underlying shares in respect of
options granted by the Company as detailed in “Share Option
Schemes” section above.

The personal interest of Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico represents
an interest in 3,998,708 underlying shares in respect of
options granted by the Company as detailed in “Share Option
Schemes” section above.

The personal interest of Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo represents an
interest in 3,998,708 underlying shares in respect of options
granted by the Company as detailed in “Share Option
Schemes” section above.

The personal interest of Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior
represents an interest in 3,998,708 underlying shares in respect
of options granted by the Company as detailed in “Share Option
Schemes” section above.

Since as at 31 December 2013, the Company was held as
to approximately 41.61% by Claudio (via its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Creator and Genesis), a company owned as to
50% by Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and as to the remaining 50% by his
wife, Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau, Mr. OEl Kang, Eric is deemed to
be interested in the same parcel of shares of CRE in which the
Company is interested. The corporate interest of Mr. OEl Kang,
Eric represents (i) an interest in 1,275,540,924 shares held by
the Company in CRE; (ii) an interest in 276,065,897 shares of
CRE held by Genesis; (iii) an interest in 149,358,990 shares of
CRE held by Creator; and (iv) an interest in a 6.4% convertible
note issued by CRE to the Company with a principal amount
of RMB75,000,000 carrying rights to convert into 135,584,558
ordinary shares in CRE at the conversion price of HK$0.68 per
share, subject to adjustment.

The personal interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an
interest in 2,175,086 shares of CRE.

The joint interest of Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric represents an interest
in 24,724,353 shares of CRE jointly held with his wife, Mrs. OEl
Valonia Lau.

BEENRF RS @)

(i) REQTAEBELEROREBRG 2
HaE:(#)
Wi - ()

5.

10.

11.

12.

13.

SRUBIEAE 2 EA R R EX [ BEAE
8 —E R A AR R BB RES
#,276,437, 76 1 IR HERIAL (h #E 25 -

R ES A ARERIERTEEIZ T
R+ HFHFH 227,000,000 A A
AIRRD 2 A e o

BB A EAEREE X [ERE
FTEl— &Rl AN B iR H RS
23,998,708k HEFA % 10 < #E %S ©

EREE A EAERIEE FX[ERE
FTE | —EFFA AR MR ERES
823,998,708 X HERARR (D 4 x5 o

B 7 B AR TR B [REAE
| —ER R A AR R LB ES
79.2.3,998, 708 AR R (n #E 25 -

AL AR X[ I
8 —E R A AR R BB RES
23,998,708 A0 RA R (H ez

HRRZZE—=F+_A=+—HB &
AAIAClaudioF B 4141.61% (ERESR
BB A R AlERZEES]) - fiClaudiofl
HEM AT ES0%EZ © 82 T50%H#
HAEFEZETHELLEE - WEA
EEREARRA—BAARBERERZ
FEBERERRODPEAEZ - SR
EZRRIEREE)AR TR EEERE
TRFTH5H1,275,540,924 R IR D #EZ ¢ (ii)
A FT A 276,065,897 R B B £ LR
B #E % 5 (iii) B EE FT#5 B 149,358,990
B B A AR AR (D fE 2 ¢ K (iv) AR
BEERARQARBITEASEAARE
75,000,000 26.4% A R EEEE 2
W o AR H R EER0.68 T (7] T 7
) 34 5 135,584, 558 % P B FF A 4L TR
LA o

HM L7 EAEZEIER2,175,086 8%+
B B A BEIRAR D 2 #E s o

=Ly KRS IERFEEE 2 Z 75
27+ HFEBAE 224,724 353 FHEB
R D 2 MR o

BRRR(ERERAR
—T-=FGH
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Report of the Directors (continued)
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Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued)
(ii) Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of

associated corporation of the Company: (continued)
Notes: (continued)

14.  The personal interest of Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie represents
an interest in 4,000,000 underlying shares in respect of options
granted by CRE as detailed in “Share Option Schemes” section
above.

15.  The joint interest of Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie represents an
interest in 570,000 shares of CRE jointly held with his wife, Ms.
WU Tung.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
contained in the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or Debentures
Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that
enabled the Directors or any of their spouses or children under the
age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

Mr. OEI Tjie Goan is the chairman and a director of PT. Sinar Mas, a
company together with its subsidiaries including Asia Pulp & Paper
Company, Ltd., and its holding companies (if any) (the “Sinar Mas
Group”) are engaged in, among other things, general trading and
property development and investment. Save as disclosed above,
Mr. OEI Tjie Goan is not interested in any business which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group. Mr. OEI Kang, Eric, a member of the Oei Family and
the son of Mr. OEl Tjie Goan, does not hold any directorship in the
Sinar Mas Group. Having considered that the Company itself has
its own management supervising the daily operation and making
financial and business decisions, the Company can operate its
business independently from the Sinar Mas Group.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses
(continued)

Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy are, and
Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie was executive director(s) of CRE whose
principal business activities are alternative energy business.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or their respective
associate(s) was interested in any business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group during the year.

Directors’ and Controlling Shareholders’ Interests
in Contracts of Significance

Save as disclosed under the sections “Connected Transactions”
and “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this Report of
Directors and “Related Party Transactions” in Note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements, no contract of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Securities FTERRNEBZ 2R

At 31 December 2013, the following persons (other than a Director RZZ—=F+Z-_A=+—H LU TAL(E=E
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions (AR A EEITHA BBIN RARA T Z M K&
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in BB A A BN EH KB E EH 533614
the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO: HEGFEMZCMzERIAR -

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of RAXATRGEHEERGDZHFE

<P

the Company

Approximate

Number of percentage of

shares and existing issued

Nature of underlying shares share capital

Name of Shareholders interest of the Company of the Company

NN HEARRE

R4 R ERITRAR

BRHEE LB EmitE HER DA BRBESE

OEl Valonia Lau Corporate’ A a] 4,678,014,112 41.612%

2= Personalf& A 8,998,705 0.080%

Joint#£ @ 121,603,8443 1.082%

Family % Ik 44,429,607* 0.395%

Claudio Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 4,678,014,112° 41.612%
EnBA

Genesis Capital Group Limited Beneficial owner 2,983,594,404° 26.540%
EREERRAT EnlEAA

Creator Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 1,694,419,7087 15.072%
BEEEARLA EnfBA

Cerberus Institutional Associates, L.L.C. Corporate’2 7] 1,565,348,316° 13.924%

Promontoria Europe Investments XII LDC Corporate’? &] 1,565,348,316° 13.924%

Promontoria Holding Cooperatie U.A. Corporate’2 7] 1,565,348,316° 13.924%

Promontoria Holding XXI B.V. Beneficial owner 1,565,348,316° 13.924%
EnlEAA

Stephen A. FEINBERG Corporate’~ &] 1,565,348,316° 13.924%

HKC (Holdings) Limited
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Securities
(continued)
Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of

the Company (continued)
Notes:

1. The corporate interest of Mrs. OEI Valonia Lau represents an interest
in 1,694,419,708 shares of HKC held by Creator and an interest in
2,983,594,404 shares of HKC held by Genesis.

2. The personal interest of Mrs. OEI Valonia Lau represents an interest
in 8,998,705 underlying shares in respect of options granted by the
Company to her.

3. The joint interest of Mrs. OEI Valonia Lau represents an interest in
121,603,844 shares of HKC jointly held with her husband, Mr. OEIl
Kang, Eric.

4. The family interest of Mrs. OEI Valonia Lau represents an interest in
30,430,902 shares of HKC held by Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and an interest
in 13,998,705 underlying shares in respect of options granted by HKC
to Mr. OEI Kang, Eric as detailed in “Share Option Schemes” section
above.

5. The beneficial interest of Claudio includes an interest in
2,983,594,404 shares of HKC held by Genesis and an interest in
1,694,419,708 shares of HKC held by Creator. Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric and
Mrs. OEIl Valonia Lau are directors of Claudio.

6. The beneficial interest of Genesis includes an interest in
2,983,594,404 shares of HKC. Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and Mrs. OEl
Valonia Lau are directors of Genesis.

7. The beneficial interest of Creator includes an interest in
1,694,419,708 shares of HKC. Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and Mrs. OEI
Valonia Lau are directors of Creator.

8. An interest in 1,565,348,316 shares held by certain funds affiliated
with and managed on a discretionary basis by Cerberus.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, the Company
had not been notified by any person, other than Directors and chief
executive of the Company, who had interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which are
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
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Related Party Transactions

The Company and its subsidiaries entered into certain transactions
in the ordinary course of business and on normal commercial terms
which were “Related Parties Transactions”, the details of which are
set out in Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements. Some
of these transactions also constitute “Connected Transactions” and
“Continuing Connected Transactions” under the Listing Rules as
summarized below.

Connected Transactions
Details of the connected transactions entered into by the Group
and subsisted during the year are set out below:

The Company and CRE entered into a subscription agreement
dated 2 November 2012 relating to the issue of a convertible note
in principal amount of RMB75 million at an issue price equivalent
to its principal amount (the “2012 Convertible Note”) by CRE to
the Company. The 2012 Convertible Note, bearing interest at
6.4% per annum, is due three years from the date of its issuance
and is convertible into a total of 135,584,558 shares of CRE at an
initial price of HK$0.68 per share of CRE. Details of the connected
transactions were set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 2 November 2012.

The Company is a controlling shareholder and a connected person
of CRE. Apart from the indirect interests in CRE held through the
Company’s shareholdings of about 54.13%, Mr. OEl Kang, Eric
(Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company)
and his associates (other than HKC Group) also had interests in
about 19.20% of shares of CRE as at the date of the subscription
agreement. Accordingly, CRE is a connected person of the
Company and the subscription of the 2012 Convertible Note and
acquisition of the shares of CRE upon conversion of the 2012
Convertible Note both constituted connected transactions for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The 2012 Convertible Note was issued to a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company on 18 December 2012. During the year
ended 31 December 2013, the Group continued to hold the 2012
Convertible Note.
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Continuing Connected Transactions
Details of the continuing connected transactions entered into by
the Group during the year are set out below:

Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE

The Company has provided, by its wholly-owned subsidiaries,
indirectly guarantees in respect of project loan facilities granted by
banks to the relevant project companies, which are subsidiaries of
CRE (the “Guarantees”). CRE is a subsidiary of the Company and
Mr. OEI Kang, Eric (Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company) and his associates held approximately 19.20%
direct interest in CRE as at 31 December 2013. The provision of the
Guarantees is subject to reporting, annual review and disclosure
requirement under Rule 14A.41 of the Listing Rules. Details of the
Guarantees were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 30 September 2011.

The salient particulars of the Guarantees are set out below:

(1) Date . 28 August 2006

Project company : soMENEE (HAT) ARAA

(borrower) (Asia Wind Power (Mudanjiang) Company
Limited), which is currently a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of CRE.

Amount secured : The Guarantee provided for this project
company was given in favour of the
bank to secure repayment of all monies
due from the operating company to the
lending bank under the loan facility,
including the principals, interests accrued
and other losses, damages and monies
payable under the loan facility.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)
Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE (continued)

<P

Repayment and
maturity dates of
loan facility

Date

Project company

(borrower)

The loan in the sum of RMB200 million
(approximately HK$255.8 million) was
originally granted and utilized. The loan
was a term loan and carried interest
at such annual rate as agreed with
lending bank, determined by reference
to PBOC Benchmark Rate for loans
of the same grade and tenure. The
interest rate will be adjusted annually
on each anniversary of the related
advancement (and, in relation to an
extended term agreed by lending bank,
on each anniversary of the date falling
immediately after the original maturity
date) based on the PBOC Benchmark
Rate then in effect as prescribed in the
facility agreement.

As at 31 December 2013, the total
outstanding principal was RMB122.0
million (approximately HK$156.0
million); and the extent of the Guarantee
was for the same amount.

. The loan is repayable by installments

scheduled over the term of the loan
as provided in the facility agreement,
with the final maturity date falling on 30
August 2021.

. 3 March 2006

BEXERANEE (BE) BR2AF(Hong
Kong Wind Power (Muling) Company
Limited), which is currently a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of CRE.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)
Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE (continued)

Amount
secured

Repayment and
maturity dates of
loan facility

. The Guarantee provided for this project

company was given in favour of the
bank to secure repayment of all monies
due from the operating company to the
bank under the loan facility, including
the principals, interests accrued and
losses, damages and other monies
payable under the loan facility.

The loan in the sum of RMB200 million
(approximately HK$255.8 million) was
originally granted and utilized. The loan
was a term loan and carried interest,
settled quarterly, at such annual rate as
agreed with lending bank, determined
by reference to PBOC Benchmark
Rate for loans of the same grade and
tenure. The interest rate will be adjusted
annually on each anniversary of the
date of related advancement (and, in
relation to an extended term agreed by
lending bank, on each anniversary of
the date falling immediately after the
original maturity date) based on the
PBOC Benchmark Rate then in effect, as
prescribed in the facility agreement.

As at 31 December 2013, the total
outstanding principal was RMB122.0
million (approximately HK$156.0
million); and the extent of the Guarantee
was for the same amount.

. The loan is repayable by installments

scheduled over the term of the loan
as provided in the facility agreement
over the term of the loan, with the final
maturity date falling on 27 February
2021.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)
Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE (continued)

(3)

"76

Date

Project company

(borrower)

Amount
secured

. 22 December 2008

BEFRN T TERRER AR (Hong
Kong New Energy Si Zi Wang Qi Wind
Power Ltd.), which is currently a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CRE.

. The Guarantee provided for this project

company was given in favour of the
bank to secure repayment of all monies
due from the operating company to the
bank under the loan facility, including
the principals, interests accrued and
other losses, damages and monies
payable under the loan facility.

The loan in the sum of RMB300 million
(approximately HK$383.7 million) was
originally granted and utilized. The loan
was a term loan and carried interest
at such annual rate as agreed with
lending bank, determined by reference
to PBOC Benchmark Rate for loans
of the same grade and tenure. The
interest rate will be adjusted annually
on each anniversary of the date of
related advancement based on the
PBOC Benchmark Rate then in effect, as
prescribed in the facility agreement.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)
Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE (continued)

Repayment and
maturity dates of
loan facility

As at 31 December 2013, the total
outstanding principal was RMB200.0
million (approximately HK$255.8
million); and the extent of the Guarantee
was for the same amount.

. The loan is repayable by installments

scheduled over the term of the loan
as provided in the facility agreement
over the term of the loan, with the final
maturity date falling on 22 December
2021.

Opinion from the Independent Non-executive Directors on the
continuing connected transactions

In accordance with rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed and approved the continuing connected transactions
described above (“Continuing Connected Transactions”) and
confirmed that the Continuing Connected Transactions were
carried out in accordance with the following principles:

(a)

(b)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

on normal commercial terms no less favourable than terms

available to (or from) independent third parties;

(c)

in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements

governing the Continuing Connected Transactions; and

(d)

on a fair and reasonable basis and in the interest of the

Company and its shareholders as a whole.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)
Report from the auditor on the continuing connected
transactions

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified
letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions disclosed by
the Group in accordance with the Main Board Listing Rule 14A.38.
A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

Management Contract

Apart from those disclosed under the heading “Related Party
Transactions” in Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements,
no contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers
The percentages of the Group’s purchases and sales for the year
attributable to its major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

The largest supplier 35.1%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate 55.9%
Sales

The largest customer 4.1%
Five largest customers in aggregate 11.6%

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, any of their
associates, or shareholders of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers or customers noted above.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of The Company’s
Listed Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2013, neither the Company
nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.
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Corporate Governance
The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 25 to 44.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specified
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
inside information of the Group are also subject to compliance with
guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code. A Code
for Securities Dealings by Employees has also been adopted in this
regard.

Retirement Benefits Schemes
Information on the Group’s retirement benefits schemes is set out in
Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of more than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Review of The Audited Financial Statements by
Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company comprises three independent
non-executive directors with written terms of reference in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, and reports
to the Board. The audit committee has reviewed the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2013.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A resolution for
the reappointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EEEREE(H)

Update on Directors’ Information

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in the
information of the Directors since the date of the 2013 Interim
Report are set out below:

Mr. OEI Kang, Eric (Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer)

Mr. OEl was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company with effect from 1 January 2014.

Mr. CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph (Executive Director and
Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. CHAN was appointed as an Executive Director and a member
of the Executive Committee of the Company on 1 September 2013.

Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel (Executive Director)
Mr. LEE was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on
1 January 2014.

Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy (Executive Director)
Mr. WONG was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
and CRE on 1 January 2014.

Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip (Independent Non-executive
Director)

On 1 January 2014, Mr. FAN stepped down as a member of
the audit committee of the Company. He also resigned as an
independent director of Suntech Power Holdings Co., Ltd., a listed
company on the New York Stock Exchange, on 9 December 2013.

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo (Independent Non-executive Director)
On 31 December 2013, Mr. CHENG resigned as an executive
director of 21 Holdings Limited, a listed company in Hong Kong.

On 7 March 2014, Mr. CHENG was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited, a
listed company in Hong Kong.

Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior (Independent Non-
executive Director)

On 1 March 2014, Mr. DA ROSA was appointed as the Chairman of
the Panel of the Board of Review (Inland Revenue Ordinance).

HKC (Holdings) Limited
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Update on Directors’ Information (continued)

Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie (Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer)

On 1 January 2014, Mr. CHANG retired as the Executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, Executive Director
and Vice Chairman of CRE and other positions of the Group.

On behalf of the Board

HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

OEIl Kang, Eric

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 20 March 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R EIE

_E

pwc

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of HKC
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 84 to 227, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December
2013, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
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: PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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t (continued)

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2013, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 March 2014
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Consolidated Income Statement
meEBEER

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BE—2 =F+-A=+ AILEE

2013 2012
—E-=F —T——4F
Note HKS$ Million HK$ Million
FiEE BEABT AEBT
Revenue Wz 5 1,441.0 328.8
Cost of sales SHERA (1,014.8) (149.5)
Gross profit EX 426.2 179.3
Other income EABKA 6 51.7 243.2
Fair value adjustments on wEME
investment properties NEERAE 16 1.7 71.0
Provision for impairment losses on assets BERBEEBERE 7 (16.1) (20.6)
Selling and distribution costs SHE RS HEERA (65.2) (563.8)
Administrative expenses THER (198.1) (233.7)
Other and general expenses HEk—RER (115.3) (68.7)
Operating profit A 8 84.9 116.7
Finance income U ON 9 36.7 52.3
Finance costs A& A AR 9 (135.5) (160.5)
Finance costs — net &P AN FRE 9 (98.8) (108.2)
Share of profits less losses of FE{G B = A 7]
associated companies & R 1R 22 100.5 148.0
Share of profits less losses of /NG|
joint ventures i 1Rk B 18 23 75.9 (2.3)
Profit before income tax P8 aD = F 162.5 154.2
Income tax expense FriSisz i 12 (85.0) (41.6)
Profit for the year AEE T 77.5 112.6
Attributable to: BUT e -
Equity holders of the Company RRABERFER A 13 72.8 103.3
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR 4.7 9.3
77.5 112.6
Earnings per share for profit attributable 2~ ARG A B
to equity holders of the Company, B2 EBRER
expressed in HK cents per share R B SIR 14
Basic HAR 0.6 0.9
Diluted e 0.6 0.9
Dividends BRE 15 - 220.1

HKC (Holdings) Limited
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December 2013
N

2013 2012
—E—-=F —F—=
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBAERT BEAT
Profit for the year REERF 77.5 112.6
Other comprehensive income Hit 2 E WA
Items that may be reclassified HEARSEHIEE
subsequently to profit or loss BHENIEER
Fair value gains on available-for-sale ARHESREE
financial assets N ERE 0.9 1.8
Currency translation differences MEH I E R 556.4 111.1
Other comprehensive income AEEHMEEBA
_forthe year,netoftax =~ == mes=r 573 1129
Total comprehensive income for the year ZAEEZEUIA L 634.8 2255
Total comprehensive income UTEGMEZEKAZLE :
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company RARE=FERA 570.8 200.4
Non-controlling interests R 64.0 25.1
634.8 225.5

ERER(ERERAT o5 o
T -=FER



€Y s

Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

As at 31 December 2013

et |

31 December

31 December

2013 2012
—E—-=F =H==
+=ZHA=+—-8 +=—A=+—H
Note HK$ Million HK$ Million
B = BHEBT AEBTT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IREBEE
Investment properties WEMZE 16 6,771.1 6,182.1
Prepaid land lease payments TEf LA E 5K 17 2,601.6 3,214.4
Property, plant and equipment L/E T Y e T
— Other property, plant and equipment ~ —E ¥ - #eEN:RE 18 1,025.5 1,108.6
— Construction in progress —ERIRR 18 250.9 69.3
Intangible assets B EE 19 1,226.8 1,204.6
Properties under development BRAYE 20 1,743.5 1,509.0
Interests in associated companies REEE N 2w 22 1,325.6 1,171.9
Interests in joint ventures REZE N 2R 23 2,218.8 2,082.9
Available-for-sale financial assets AREESMEE 24 26.1 27.5
Prepayments and other receivables FEAT 3R B H A GR 28 466.4 =
Total non-current assets FRBEELAR 17,656.3 16,570.3
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 6.6 9.0
Properties held for sale TESHERBE 2% 26 1,730.6 711.1
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEEEBRRIIERZ
profit or loss SREE 27 14.5 14.1
Trade and other receivables JFEE L5 AR 5 % EL A B AR 28 285.5 586.2
Restricted cash RBRHHRE 30 1,064.0 314.1
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEY 31 1,364.3 2.317.9
Total current assets MEEEMATE 4,465.5 3,952.4
Total assets EEHAE 22,121.8 20,522.7

HKC (Holdings) Limited
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Consolidated‘ E

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

—2-=F —FCF
+=A=+-8 +=A=+—H

Note HK$ Million HK$ Million

B 5E BHESBT AEBTT
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves attributable to AATERFEA
equity holders of the Company EhEARHE
Share capital [N 32 112.4 112.4
Reserves s 33 12,924.3 12,350.6
Equity attributable to equity holders of Z&ZRQ TR IEFE A
the Company FEAL RE 2= 13,036.7 12,463.0
Non-controlling interests FERES 2,312.4 2,249.6
Total equity QB 15,349.1 14,712.6
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings EEN 34 3,098.4 2,092.1
Other non-current payables H M IE R ED FE T 3R 13.7 13.7
Deferred income tax liabilities REREHARE 36 1,124.4 1,126.7
Total non-current liabilities ERBESHETE 4,236.5 3,232.5
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables JE AT BR 5K B EL At A X 35 1,953.2 1,582.3
Borrowings &k 34 418.5 899.7
Derivative liability METEREAE 37 - 2.2
Current income tax liabilities BHAFR S & (& 164.5 93.4
Total current liabilittes nmafes 2,536.2 25776
Total liabilittes === L T 6772.7 ! 5810.1
Total equity and liabilities EEREEEE 22,121.8 20,522.7
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,929.3 1,374.8
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABEBRABERS 19,585.6 17,9451
OEI Kang, Eric =l
Chan Kwok Fong, Joseph b
Directors 2= .
seapepaRsa o OO

—T-=F4H



Balance Sheet

EERER

As at 31 December 2013
N et e et e T o

2013 2012
—E-=F —ZEF—=
Note HK$ Million HK$ Million
= HEBT BEBT
ASSETS EE
Non-current asset FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR Z’E 21 169.8 168.6
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS B8~ B FRIAR 21 9,857.8 9,579.9
Other receivables H A fE UK 28 0.7 1.7
Cash and cash equivalents Re RBeEEY 31 39.2 93.5
Total currentassets nBEES® 9897.7 ¢ 9.675.1
Total assets BEHA 10,067.5 9,843.7
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable to ZA2RQFERIFE A
equity holders of the Company Bl ER R #E
Share capital &z 32 112.4 112.4
Reserves Gl 33 9,951.2 9,720.4
Total equity EREEE 10,063.6 9,832.8
Current liability REBEE
Other payables H Ath FE A 3K 35 3.9 10.9
Total liability Ake® 0 39 109
Total equity and liability ERREEAE 10,067.5 9,843.7
OEI Kang, Eric =/
Chan Kwok Fong, Joseph BREA 35
Directors ==

o 55 HKC (Holdings) Limited
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Attributable

to equity Non-
holders of controlling Total
the Company interests equity
AT ERE
BEAERL FERER R
Note HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
B s BEBT BEBT BEBT
Balance at 1 January 2012 R=-T——%
—A—B#&& 12,488.0 1,792.4 14,280.4
Comprehensive income 2HKBA
Profit for the year REERF 103.3 9.3 112.6
Other comprehensive Hig2EEA
income
Fair value gains on ARHESRERE
available-for-sale AHE R
financial assets 8¢ 1.8 - 1.8
Currency translation ERmEER
differences 8¢ 95.3 15.8 1111
Total comprehensive AEEZERAEE
income for the year 200.4 25.1 225.5
Transactions with owners EEEAZR S
Issue of scrip dividend shares 21T ARRA B XD 32,33 124.6 - 124.6
Employee share option EERERERT
benefits 88 2.1 (0.1) 2.0
Release of reserves upon R EWNB R AR
disposal of subsidiaries FRBR (23.7) (71.7) (95.4)
- 2011 special dividend -2
paid B BIRS, (108.3) - (108.3)
- 2012 special dividend - —FPH
paid RIS (220.1) - (220.1)
Contribution from a non- RE—HIBRRIZ
controlling shareholder —BIEERREEE
in a subsidiary - 491.8 491.8
Decrease in amounts due  FEUR— & IFHE AR AR IR
from a non-controlling IR D
shareholder - 12.1 121
Total transactions with BEEAZRZHEE
owners (225.4) 432.1 206.7
Balance at 31 December RZ=-Z——f
2012 +tZA=t+—R#&&H 12,463.0 2,249.6 14,712.6
sempepaRsd o0 OO

—T-=F4H



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
REERSBHR(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE=E—=mt= = HIEE

Attributable
to equity Non-
holders of controlling Total
the Company interests equity
AT ERE
BEAERL FERER A
Note HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
B s BEBT BEBT BEBT
Balance at 1 January 2013 R=-T—=%#
—A—B#&& 12,463.0 2,249.6 14,712.6
Comprehensive income ZHEBA
Profit for the year REEZ R T 72.8 4.7 77.5
Other comprehensive HhZmE KA
income
Fair value gains on available- A[{tHESRIEE
for-sale financial assets AE K 33 0.9 - 0.9
Currency translation ERmEER
differences 8¢ 497.1 59.3 556.4
Total comprehensive FEEXHERALLE
income for the year 570.8 64.0 634.8
Transaction with owners EHEFAZRS
Employee share option B B RBIREREA
benefits 88 2.9 (1.2) 1.7
Total transaction with HEBAZRZHEE
owners 2.9 (1.2) 1.7
Balance at 31 December R=-ZE—=£#
2013 tZA=t+—-B&#& 13,036.7 2,312.4 15,349.1

o 90 HKC (Holdings) Limited
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2013 2012

ZB-=F% —T-—fF
Note HKS$ Million HK$ Million
Pt HEER BEAT
Cash flows from operating activities RELBRRERE
Cash generated from/(used in) operations EEME/(FR)RE 41(a) 24.4 (231.5)
Income tax paid, net ERAMEHFE (54.1) (46.0)
Net cash used in operating activities BEXBMEREFHE (29.7) (277.5)
Cash flows from investing activities REFTHZRERE
Interest received BUH 2 36.7 54.1
Dividend received RLGES 125.9 149.7
Development costs paid for investment BERERTRENEL
properties under development BREKA (328.8) (224.9)
Additions to prepayment for property, VERY S EER
plant and equipment and investment D RERPRENEN
properties under development FBINERERR (211.6) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  BEREE (81.0) (59.5)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEVAE - (0.4)
Proceeds from the disposal of HEFBHE
~ Property, plant and equipment —WE - BERE 1.9 14.9
- Available-for-sale financial assets —RHESHEE 2.5 1.4
- Subsidiaries —MBAR 41(c) - 183.8
Net cash (used in)/generated from REEE(A)/ FMERLTFE
investing activities (454.4) 119.1
Cash flows from financing activities METHZRERE
Repayment of bank borrowings and other loans ~ EEHFTERREMER (876.4) (1,007.0)
Increase in restricted cash IR 3 & 20 (749.9) (40.6)
Increase in bank borrowings and other loans RITEHREMETIEM 1,282.8 303.0
Contribution from a non-controlling XE—RNBARZ—%
shareholder in a subsidiary FERRFEE - 491.8
Dividends paid to Company’s shareholders ERARERERE - (203.9)
Interest paid ERFIS (208.5) (207.4)
Net cash used in financing activities MERHTAREFE (552.0) (664.1)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents BRERBELZEYR FE (1,036.1) (822.5)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BzH&
LBEEEEY 2,317.9 3,115.0
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes Exgs) s v & 82.5 25.4
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+ZA=+—H2
e RReFEY 1,364.3 2,317.9

ERBR(ER)ERAT o1 o
o =gy



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE MR RARAE
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General information
HKC (Holdings) Limited (the “Company” or “HKC”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The address of
its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the business of property
development and investment, alternative energy investment
and operation and infrastructure. The investments of the
Group are mainly located in the Mainland China.

The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange").

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
million of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ Million), unless otherwise
stated. These consolidated financial statements were
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 March
2014.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of HKC (Holdings)
Limited have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”).
They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, available-for-sale financial assets, and
financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instrument) at fair value through profit or loss,
which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

HKC (Holdings) Limited
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the

Group

HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12
HKFRS 13
HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

Amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12
HKAS 1 (Amendment)
HKAS 27 (Revised 2011)

HKAS 28 (Revised 2011)

Annual improvements
project

Consolidated financial statements

Joint arrangements

Disclosure of interests in other entities

Fair value measurement

Financial instruments: disclosures
- offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

Consolidated financial statements,
joint arrangements and disclosures
of interests in other entities:
transition guidance

Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

Separate financial statements

Investments in associates and
joint ventures

Annual improvements to 2009 - 2011
cycle

Except as described below, the adoption of these
standards and amendments to standards have
no significant effects on the Group's financial

information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FESBRBE (&)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEEHE)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued) B ERRRBEZEE (F)
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the (a) AEEFRNFETRAISET

o X

Group (continued)
The Group adopted HKFRS 10 on 1 January 2013.
The accounting policy for subsidiaries will be
revised as follows:

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

The Group assessed that adoption of HKFRS 10
did not result in any change in the determination of
control over its subsidiaries.

The Group adopted HKFRS 11 on 1 January
2013. Under HKFRS 11, investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures depending on the
contractual rights and obligations each investor
has rather than the legal structure of the joint
arrangement. The Group has assessed the nature
of its joint arrangements and determined them
to be joint ventures and therefore adopt equity
method of accounting to account for investments in
joint ventures.

The Group also adopted HKFRS 12 on 1 January
2013 which included the disclosure requirements
for all forms of interests in other entities.

HKC (Holdings) Limited
Annual Report 2013
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

(a)

(b)

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (continued)

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance
under HKFRS for all fair value measurements.
HKFRS 13 does not change when an entity is
required to use fair value, but rather provides
guidance on how to measure fair value under
HKFRS when fair value is required or permitted.
The application of HKFRS 13 has not materially
impacted the fair value measurements carried out
by the Group.

HKFRS 13 also requires specific disclosures on fair
values, some of which replace existing disclosure
requirements in other standards, including
HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: disclosures.

The amendments to HKAS 1 introduce a grouping
of items presented in other comprehensive
income. ltems that could be reclassified to profit
or loss at a future point in time now have to be
presented separately from items that will never be
reclassified. The adoption of these amendments
affected presentation only and had no impact on
the Group’s financial information.

New and amended standards, and interpretations
mandatory for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2013 but not currently
relevant to the Group (although they may affect the
accounting for future transactions and events)

HKAS 19 (Revised 2011) Employee benefits

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Government loans

HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping costs in the
production phase of

a surface mine
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

(c) New standards, amendments and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2013 and have
not been early adopted
The following standards, amendments to standards
and interpretation have been published and are
mandatory for the Group's accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014 or later
periods, but the Group has not early adopted them:

2

FTESHBEME®)
21 REE%E(F)

S RERRERE (F)

(c)

R-F—=F—HA—HEHZ
BT BF JE B AR 15 R LA
7K 25 B J5 1 F IR A 2 AT E
A~ AZFT AR R a2 FE
NTRERMAEBEE_F
—mOFE—A - BRI
ZAKEE S HIRE SRR HIE
SEREIEM  HEAREYERER
RNz 2R - BERZERT R
ek

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RT3IRESs 2 &R
ZETHHBER

HKAS 32 (Amendment) Financial instruments: presentation - offsetting financial 1 January 2014
assets and financial liabilities

BAGHERIE32RE (BATA) TRIA: 2Y-HHeRSERSRAR —“Z-mF-A—H

HKAS 36 (Amendment) Impairment of assets - recoverable amount disclosures 1 January 2014

BAEREAEI6R (EATA) BERE-BERIKOERE “ZT-mFE-R-AH

HKAS 39 (Amendment) Financial instruments: recognition and measurement - 1 January 2014
novation of derivatives

BEAEHERE3R (EATA) PRI BAKGETEIANER —Z-mE-A-H

HKAS 19 (2011) (Amendment) Defined benefit plans: employee contributions 1 July 2014

BREHEAF 195 RERMNGE : EEHR “E-mELA-A

(Z2——FETK)
HKFRS 10, 12 and HKAS 27
(2011) (Amendment)
BEMBREENEI0R12KREAS
FHERIETH (2T ——FEFA)
HK(IFRIC) - Int 21
EA(ERMBRERRBEZEE)
-RBE2R
Annual improvements project
FEIERA

Annual improvements project

FRIEER
HKFRS 9
BEMBREE RN

HKFRS 14
TAMBREEAE 147

Consolidation for investment entities

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 cycle
BEYMBRSEN _T-TFE_T- 57
L EEHE
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 cycle
ERAMBRSEN-_F—FE_F--FRH
2 EENE
Financial instruments (hedge accounting and
amendments to HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and HKAS 39)
ERIAMhEd REAMBREERBIRETR
REBEGHERER 2 BTX)
Regulatory deferral accounts
EERIER

1 January 2014
—E-PmE-A-A

1 January 2014
“F-mF-A-H

1 July 2014
“E-mELA-A

1 July 2014
“-mFLA-A

Not yet announced*
HRAR"

1 January 2016
“F-A"F-A-H

* The original effective date of 1 January 2015 is
removed and it will be set once the other phase of
HKFRS 9 is completed and finalised

HKC (Holdings) Limited
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)
(c) New standards, amendments and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2013 and have
not been early adopted (continued)
The Group has not early adopted the new
standards, amendments to standards and
interpretation, which have been issued but are not
effective for the financial year beginning 1 January
2013. The Group has commenced an assessment
of the related impact but is not yet in a position
to state whether any substantial changes to the
Group’s accounting policies and presentation of
the financial information will be resulted.

2.2 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(a) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The Group uses the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred. ldentifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date. On
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments
in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes
in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

HKC (Holdings) Limited
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its
fair value at the date when control is lost, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associated company, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests as transactions with equity owners of
the Group. For purchases from non-controlling
interests, the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals
to non-controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or
significant influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value
is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associated company, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Associated companies

Associated companies are all entities over which
the Group has significant influence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Under
the equity method of accounting, the investment
is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying
amount is increased or decreased to recognise
the investor’s share of the profit or loss of the
investee after the date of acquisition. The Group’s
investment in associated companies includes
goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment loss)
identified on acquisition.

" 100 HKC (Holdings) Limited
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Notes to the

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(c)

Associated companies (continued)

If the ownership interest in an associated company
is reduced but significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.

The Group’s share of its associated companies’
post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised
in the consolidated income statement, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associated company
equals or exceeds its interest in the associated
company, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associated company.

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its associated companies are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the associated companies. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associated companies
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)
(c) Associated companies (continued)
Dilution gains and losses arising in investments
in associated companies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within other income or other
and general expenses in the consolidated income
statement.

(d) Joint ventures
A joint venture is a contractual arrangement
whereby the Group and other parties undertake an
economic activity which is subject to joint control
and none of the participating parties has unilateral
control over the economic activity.

Investments in joint ventures are accounted for by
the equity method of accounting. The consolidated
income statement includes the Group’s share of
the results of joint ventures for the year, and the
consolidated balance sheet includes the Group’s
share of the net assets of the joint ventures and
goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment loss)
on acquisition.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-maker (*CODM”). The
CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Group’s most senior executive
management that makes strategic decisions.

HKC (Holdings) Limited
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Notes to the C
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The Company’s functional currency is
Renminbi and the Group’s presentation currency
is Hong Kong dollars to facilitate analysis of the
financial information of the Group, which is listed in
Hong Kong.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the security, and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in the amortised
cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other
changes in the carrying amount are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities classified as available-
for-sale financial assets are included in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in foreign
operations are taken to other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is partially
disposed of or sold, exchange differences that
were recorded in equity are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of the gain
or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a
joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associated company that includes a
foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the equity holders of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and
are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s
ownership interest in associated companies or
joint ventures that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control) the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
difference is reclassified to profit or loss.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment
Properties are interests in land and buildings other
than investment properties. Leasehold land classified
as finance lease, buildings, water utility plant and
equipment, electric utility plant and equipment, other
plant and equipment, comprising plant and machineries,
motor vehicles and furniture and fixtures are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2
2.5 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest
becomes available for its intended use. Amortisation
on leasehold land classified as finance lease and
depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

shorter of remaining lease
term or useful life

Leasehold land classified as
finance lease

Buildings 50 years
Water utility plant and equipment 15 years
Electric utility plant and equipment 20 years

Other plant and equipment 3to 15 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

All direct and indirect costs relating to the construction
of property, plant and equipment, including borrowing
costs during the construction period are capitalised
as the costs of the assets, which are classified as
construction in progress. No depreciation is provided on
construction in progress until such times as the relevant
assets are completed and available for intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount
of the asset or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged in the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.
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inancial Statements (continued

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within other income or other and general
expenses in the consolidated income statement.

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields
and is not occupied by the Group. Land held under
operating leases are accounted for as investment
properties when the rest of the definition of an
investment property is met. In such cases, the operating
leases concerned are accounted for as if they were
finance leases.

Property that is being constructed or developed as
investment property is carried at fair value. Where fair
value is not determinable, such investment property
under construction is measured at cost until either its fair
value becomes reliably determinable or construction is
completed (whichever is earlier).

Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition at
cost, investment properties are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined at each
reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is based
on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for
any difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. If the information is not available,
the Group uses alternative valuation methods such
as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. These valuations are reviewed
annually by Knight Frank Petty Limited (“Knight Frank”),
an independent professional valuer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A P RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.6

Investment properties (continued)

The fair value of investment property reflects, among
other things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases in
the light of current market conditions.

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any
cash outflows that could be expected in respect of the
property. Some of those outflows are recognised as a
liability, including finance lease liabilities in respect of
land classified as investment property, others, including
contingent rent payments, are not recognised in the
financial statements.

Subsequently expenditure is included in the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to
the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recorded as part of a
valuation gain or loss in fair value adjustments on
investment properties in the consolidated income
statement.

The Group transfers a property from investment property
to property, plant and equipment and prepaid land lease
payments when and only when there is a change in use,
evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation.
The deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment
and prepaid land lease payments is the fair value of the
property at the date of change in use.

The Group transfers a property from property, plant
and equipment to investment property when and only
when there is a change in use, evidenced by end of
owner-occupation. Any resulting decrease in carrying
amount of the property is recognised in profit or loss
at the date of change in use. Any resulting increase in
carrying amount of the property is recognised in other
comprehensive income and increases the revaluation
surplus within equity at the date of change in use.
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Notes to the
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.7

2.8

2.9

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments represent prepayments
for leasehold land held under operating leases, which
are stated at cost and subsequently are amortised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease or when there is impairment,
the impairment is expensed in the consolidated
income statement. During the course of the properties
development, the amortisation is included as part of the
costs of the properties under development.

Completed properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are initially measured at
the carrying amount of the property at the date of
reclassification from properties under development.
Properties remaining unsold at the end of the year are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost comprises development costs attributable to the
unsold properties.

Net realisable value represents the management’s
estimated selling price based on prevailing market
conditions less costs to be incurred in selling the
property.

The Company transfers a property from investment
property to properties held for sale when and only when
there is a change in use, evidenced by commencement
of development with a view to sale. The deemed cost of
the properties held for sale transferred from investment
property is the fair value of the property at the date of
change in use.

Properties under development
Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2
2.9 Properties under development (continued)

Net realisable value takes into account the price
ultimately expected to be realised, less applicable
variable selling expenses and the anticipated costs to
completion.

Properties under development comprise construction
costs, borrowing costs, amortisation of prepaid land
lease payments, professional fees and other costs
incurred during the development period. On completion,
the properties under development are transferred to
completed properties held for sale.

No depreciation is provided on properties under
development.

2.10 Construction in progress

All direct and indirect costs relating to the construction
of property, plant and equipment including borrowing
costs during the construction period are capitalised
as the costs of the assets, which are classified
as construction in progress. On completion, the
construction in progress is transferred to property, plant
and equipment at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. No depreciation is provided on construction in
progress.

2.11 Intangible assets

(@) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share
in net fair value of net identifiable assets of the
acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
included in intangible assets. Separately
recognised goodwill is tested for impairment at
each balance sheet date end and carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment
losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains and
losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity
sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
is made to those cash-generating units or groups
of cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.11 Intangible assets (continued)

(b)

(c)

Concession rights

The costs incurred for the construction or upgrade
work or the acquisition of the toll road under the
service concession arrangements of the Group
with relevant local governments are accounted for
an intangible asset if the Group receives a right to
charge users of the toll road.

These expenditures are amortised on an units-of-
usage basis, making reference to the proportion
of actual traffic volume achieved for a particular
period over the total projected traffic volume
throughout the periods within which the Group is
granted the rights to operate the toll road. The total
projected volume of the respective concession
right is reviewed regularly with reference to both
internal and external sources of information and
appropriate adjustments are made should there be
a material change.

Land use rights acquired in conjunction with
the service concession arrangement which the
Group has no discretion or latitude to deploy for
other services other than the use in the service
concession are treated as intangible assets.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Other intangible assets have
a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment and amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives of five
years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.12Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,

associated companies, joint ventures and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible
assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets which
are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

2.13 Construction contracts

Contract costs are recognised as an expense by
reference to the stage of completion of the contract
activity at the balance sheet date. When the outcome
of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable.
When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably and it is probable that the contract
will be profitable, contract revenue is recognised over
the period of the contract by reference to the stage of
completion. When it is probable that total contract costs
will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included in contract revenue to the extent
that may have been agreed with the customer and are
capable of being reliably measured.
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inancial Statements (continued

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.13 Construction contracts (continued)

The Group uses the “percentage of completion method”
to determine the appropriate amount to recognise in a
given period. The stage of completion is measured by
reference to contract costs incurred up to the balance
sheet date as a percentage of total estimated costs for
each contract. Costs incurred in the year in connection
with future activity on a contract are excluded from
contract costs in determining the stage of completion.
They are presented as inventories, prepayments or other
assets, depending on their nature.

The Group presents the net contract position for each
contract as an asset when the gross amount due from
customers for contract work for all contracts in progress
for which costs incurred plus recognised profits (less
recognised losses) exceed progress billings. Progress
billings not yet paid by customers and retentions are
included within trade and other receivables.

The Group presents the net contract position for each
contract as a liability when the gross amount due to
customers for contract work for all contracts in progress
for which progress billings exceed costs incurred plus
recognised profits (less recognised losses).

2.14 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial
asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short
term. Derivatives are classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in
this category are classified as current assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2
2.14 Financial assets (continued)

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for the amounts that are settled
or expected to be settled more than 12 months after
balance sheet date. These are classified as non-
current assets. The Group’s loans and receivables
are included in “trade and other receivables”, “cash
and cash equivalents”, “restricted cash”, “interests
in associated companies” and “interests in joint
ventures” in the balance sheet.

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to dispose of the
investment within twelve months of the balance sheet
date.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised
at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2
2.14 Financial assets (continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
the “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”
category are presented in the consolidated income
statement within other income or other and general
expenses, in the period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of other income when the Group’s right
to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in a foreign currency and classified
as available-for-sale financial assets are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes
in amortised cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. Changes in the
fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available-for-sale are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the consolidated
income statement as other income or other and general
expenses.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the consolidated income statement as
part of other income which the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.14 Financial assets (continued)

For the purposes of assessing the fair value of unlisted
securities, the Group established fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent
arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments
that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis and option pricing models, making maximum
use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on
entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the
case of equity securities classified as available-for-sale
financial assets, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the security below its cost is considered
as an indicator that the securities are impaired. If any
such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in the consolidated income
statement — is removed from equity and recognised in
the consolidated income statement. Impairment losses
recognised in the consolidated income statement on
equity instruments are not reversed through profit or
loss.

2.15 Derivative financial instrument

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value at each
balance sheet date. The change in the fair value is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.16 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out (FIFO) method. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.17 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision
for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade
and other receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms
of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties
of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or
delinquency in payments are considered indicators
that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of
the provision is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognised
in the consolidated income statement. When a trade
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
other expenses in the consolidated income statement.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited to other income in the consolidated income
statement.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.18 Borrowings (continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the balance
sheet date.

2.19 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time
that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. Other borrowing costs are expensed.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2
2.20 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings
in current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.

2.21 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity share capital (treasury shares), the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental
costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from equity
attributable to owners of the Company until the shares
are cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary shares
are subsequently reissued, any consideration received,
net of any directly attributable incremental transaction
costs and the related income tax effects, is included in
equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.

2.22 Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.23 Financial liability at fair value through profit or

loss

Financial liability at fair value through profit or loss is
financial liability held for trading. A financial liability is
classified in this category as designated by the Group
upon initial recognition.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the “financial liability at fair value through profit or
loss” category are presented in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which they arise.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2
2.24 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company’s subsidiaries and associated companies and
joint ventures operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2
2.24 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associated companies and joint ventures, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net
basis.

2.25 Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date. Employee entitlements to sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.

(b) Defined contribution plans
The Group uses a mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF”) and employee pension schemes
established by municipal government in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) for the
eligible employees in Hong Kong and the PRC
respectively.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.25 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

(c)

Defined contribution plans (continued)

The Group’s and the employees’ contributions
to the MPF comply with the related statutory
requirements. The Group has no further payments
obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The Group’s contributions to the MPF are
expensed as incurred and are not reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave MPF prior to vesting fully in the contributions.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
the future payments is available. The assets of
MPF are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.

The Group’s contribution to the employee
pension schemes in the PRC is at a percentage
in compliance with the requirements of respective
municipal governments.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
when it is demonstrably committed to a termination
when the entity has a detailed formal plan to
terminate the employment of current employees
without possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy,
the termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept the
offer. Benefits falling due more than twelve months
after the balance sheet date are discounted to their
present value.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.25 Employee benefits (continued)

(d)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan in which the entity
receives services from employees as consideration
for equity instruments of the Group. The fair value
of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed over
the vesting period is determined by reference to
the fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market vesting conditions
(for example, profitability and sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period) and including the impact
of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the
requirement for employees to save).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to become exercisable. At each
balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to
become exercisable based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated income statement, and
a corresponding adjustment to equity over the
remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium when
the options are exercised.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2
2.26 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Where the Group expects
a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as
a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2
2.27 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods, properties
and services in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Revenue is shown net of business tax and
after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities as described below. The amount of revenue
is not considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved.
The Group bases its estimates on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the type
of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(i) Revenues from infrastructure and alternative
energy are generated from water supply, electricity
supply and the toll road. They are recognised
based on the following:

(a) Revenue arising from water supply is
recognised based on water supplied as
recorded by meters read during the year.

(b) Revenue arising from electricity supply is
recognised when electricity is supplied to the
provincial grid companies.

(c) Revenue arising from toll road is recognised
when services are rendered.

(i) Rental income from investment properties is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the terms of the
respective leases.

(iii) Revenue from individual construction contracts is
recognised under the percentage of completion
method.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.27 Revenue recognition (continued)

(iv)

(vii)

Sales of food and beverages are recognised in the
consolidated income statement at the point of sale
to customer.

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised
when the risks and rewards of the properties
are passed to the purchasers. Deposits and
instalments received on properties sold prior to
the date of revenue recognition are included under
current liabilities.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

(viii) Property management fee income is recognised
when the services are rendered.
2.28 Leases

(a)

Finance leases (leasee)

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all
the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are
capitalised at the lease’'s commencement at the
lower of the fair value of the leased property and
the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance charges so as to achieve a
constant rate on the finance balance outstanding.
The corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in liabilities. The
finance charges are charged to the consolidated
income statement over the lease periods so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.28 Leases (continued)

(b) Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor or are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
the consolidated income statement on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.

2.29 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that
outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so
that the outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as
a provision.

2.30 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company'’s financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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3 Financial risk management

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables, amounts due from an
associated company and a joint venture, restricted
cash, cash and bank balances, derivative financial
instrument, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, available-for-sale financial assets, trade and other
payables, bank loans and loans from non-controlling
shareholders. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in the respective notes.

It is the policy of the Group not to enter into derivative
transactions for speculative purposes. The derivatives
held are not for speculative purpose and cannot be
traded in the market.

The Company’s Board of Directors focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Board of Directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarised below.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates mainly in the Mainland
China. Entities within the Group are exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions and monetary
assets and liabilities that are denominated in
a currency that is not the entities’ functional
currency.

The Group currently does not have any
foreign currency hedging activities. However,
the management of the Group monitors the
foreign exchange exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.
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3

Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(a)

(i)

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

If Renminbi had strengthened/weakened by
5% against the Hong Kong dollars and US
dollars as at 31 December 2013 with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s profit
before income tax would have been HK$12.6
million higher/lower (2012: the Group's profit
before income tax would have been HK$23.9
million lower/higher).

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from
bank borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk due to fluctuation
of the prevailing market interest rate. The
Group's results and operating cash flows are
substantially dependent of changes in market
interest rates.

The Group does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk. However, management will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposures
should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2013, if the interest rate
had increased/decreased 100 basis points
with all other variables held constant, the
Group’s profit before income tax would have
decreased/increased by HK$17.9 million
(2012: decreased/increased by HK$21.6
million).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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3

Financial risk management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

3.1

(a)

(b)

Market risk (continued)

(iii) ~ Price risk
The Group has insignificant exposure to price
risk in the years ended 31 December 2012 and
2013.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in its restricted
cash, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, financial guarantee for facilities
granted to associated companies and amounts
due from an associated company and a joint
venture.

The carrying amount of restricted cash, cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and
amounts due from an associated company and
a joint venture, represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial
assets.

To manage the credit risk associated with
restricted cash and cash and cash equivalents,
most of the deposits are mainly placed with certain
state-owned banks in the PRC which are high-
credit quality financial institutions and banks with
high credit rankings in Hong Kong.

To manage the credit risk associated with
trade and other receivables, the Group adopts
risk control to assess the credit quality of the
customers and debtors, taking into account of their
financial positions and past experience. The Group
has monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to ensure overdue debts.
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3

Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

For alternative energy business, the Group is
exposed to significant concentration of credit
risk in terms of electricity sales as the Group’s
sales of electricity were made to state-owned
provincial power grid companies. The Group
normally does not require collateral from trade
debtors. It normally grants credit terms of 30 days
to these power grid companies. However, part
of the trade receivables due from the power grid
companies relate to government subsidy which
are subject to government allocation of the tariff
surcharge for renewable energy. Based on past
experience and industry practice, these tariff
premiums are generally paid in 6 to 12 months from
the date of the sales recognition. Ageing analysis
of the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in
Note 28. Management makes periodic collective
assessment as well as individual assessment of
the recoverability of trade and other receivables
based on historical payment records, the length
of the overdue period, the financial strength of the
debtors and whether there are any disputes with
the relevant debtors.

Other than alternative energy business, there is no
concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
receivables from third party customers as the
customer bases are widely dispersed in different
sectors and industries.

In addition, the Group and the Company monitor
the exposure to credit risk in respect of the
financial assistance provided to subsidiaries,
associated companies and joint ventures through
exercising control, significant influence or joint
control over their financial and operating policy
decisions and reviewing their financial positions on
a regular basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 HXREKREE®)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MBEBEZEE)
(c) Liquidity risk (c) RBEZLRMR
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to mBELRABRBAEERGERE
meet its current obligations when they fall due. The THEEREE 2 AR 7-!&
Group measures and monitors its liquidity through SEHNEEBEE  AF - EXR
the maintenance of prudent ratios regarding the RAEES RBE S HEHE - BB
liquidity structure of the overall assets, liabilities, HERFEHEEGERERHER
loans and commitments of the Group. The Group FER AEBITERRBE
also maintains a conservative level of liquid ERBEKT - AEREER
assets to ensure the availability of sufficient cash WEReRERENBEEBFHE
flows to meet any unexpected and material cash fAIRBEBACERREFRK
requirements in the course of ordinary business.
During the year, the Group complied with all RAEE NEBEEREHAA
externally imposed loan covenant requirements to BRINEBEESRAES -
which it is subject.
The table below analyses the Group’s and the TRAMAEE KA QR
Company’s contractual maturity for their financial BEZENIEA -  TRER
liabilities. The amounts disclosed in the table have 2R BEREE RARA]
been drawn up with reference to the undiscounted ANRZz=RERHUEEEZ
cash flows of the financial liabilities based on the RUBHRESRERH -
earliest date on which the Group and the Company
can be required to pay.
Between Between
Less than 1and 2and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
-£R -EfF Z2RE BENE L
HK$ Milion ~~ HK$ Million ~ HK§ Millon ~ HKS Million ~ HK$ Million
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
Group s3]
At 31 December 2013 J}Q F-=E+-R=1-A
Borrowings &3 630.5 908.1 1,677.8 1,108.1 4,324.5
Trade and other payables F&“ﬁﬁfs R AR 1,953.2 - - - 1,053.2
Other non-current payables AFERBEAR 09 09 141 05 16.4
Financial quarantee for credit  HEERERE
facilties granted (Note 40(c)) & i%?%ﬁ(ﬁﬁﬂoﬁjc)) 165.0 - - - 165.0
Financial quarantee for mortgage  SAETHEEFHILH
faciliies granted to certain EBREREHER
property buyers (Note 39(b) (Fi#E39(0) 170.2 - - - 170.2
At 31 December 2012 1}6 F-ZE+ZAZt-A
Borrowings &3 1,071.3 3217 1,052.9 1,337.7 3,789.6
Trade and other payables ﬁﬁE WEYRE 1582.3 - - - 1582.3
Other non-current payables S 09 09 160 05 183
Financial guarantee for credit ~ SHEERAR(E
faciliies granted (Note 40(c) ~ EIF5#ER (Mﬁméc)) 727.2 - - - 721.2
Financial quarantee for mortgage  BLAETHEEFHLE
faciliies granted to certain BRI RN HER
property buyers (Note 39(b) (Fi&E39(0) 81.2 - - - 81.2
Company O]
At 31 December 2013 RZZ-ZFtZA=1-A
Other payables Efp M 39 - - - 39
Financial quarantee for credit ~ BEERAR(E
facilties granted (Note 40(c))  EtBER(Kiz40(c)) 746.4 - - - 746.4
At 31 December 2012 R-8-Z§+ZR=+-8
Other payables AMER 109 - - = 109
Financial uarantee for credit ~ BEERAR(E
facilties granted (Note 40(c)) ~ BIEEIR (Fi340(c)) 2505 - - - 250.5
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3

Financial risk management (continued)
3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, raise new debt financing, issue new
shares, share options and warrants or conduct share
buy-backs.

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing
its gearing ratio and cash flows requirements, taking
into account of its future financial obligations and
commitments for this purpose. The Group defines
gearing ratio as total debt divided by total equity.
Total debt is the aggregate of current and non-current
borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet and total equity is also shown in the consolidated
balance sheet.

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2013 and 2012 were
as follows:
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Group

REH
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEETT
Current borrowings BB 418.5 899.7
Non-current borrowings IERBNE R 3,098.4 2,092.1
Total borrowings EFR4EEE 3,516.9 2,991.8
Total equity e B 15,349.1 14,712.6

Gearing ratio (total debt/equity ratio) B{E& A=

(BEER nEs) 22.9% 20.3%
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 HXREKREE®)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AFEME
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at TREABEEHZATEIEZ
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have SRMIAEETHN - FRKBIAE
been defined as follows: U
- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for — HMAUBEHEESKBERNER
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1). MGz HmECRERAE) (F1
) o
—  Inputs other than quoted prices included within - REBIRFAZREUINTE
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, B (BERER) S MEE (BlE
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that RMEREEE)BEREEXE
is, derived from prices) (Level 2). BEFSIRAIRE (F24k) °
- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based — WA ERT 5 (AN
on observable market data (that is, unobservable IERMBIERAER)ZEE
inputs) (Level 3). KB EZRAEE (F3R) -
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets TREVIAEER=-Z—=F+=
and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 R=+T—BERATEFEZE®ME
December 2013. ERBE-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE1R E24% 3 HE
HK$ Million HKS$ Million HKS$ Million HKS$ Million
BEET HEBAR HEAT BHEAT
Assets BE
Available-for-sale AEHESRERE
financial assets - 8.6 17.5 26.1
Financial assets at BATEEBRRERIIER
fair value through ZEREE
profit or loss 0.2 - 14.3 14.5
Total assets BEEAE 0.2 8.6 31.8 40.6
Liability afE
Financial liabilities at BATEEBRRRIIE
fair value through e Y=
profit or loss - - 279.0 279.0
Total liability EE4A%E - - 279.0 279.0
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 HXREKREE®)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AFEMT(H)

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31
December 2012.

TREFARER-B—=F+=
A=t+—BRATENEZGRA
ERARE-

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ERE E2MR ERF ok
HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEBT BEBT BEATT BEET
Assets EE
Available-for-sale tHESREE
financial assets - 9.8 17.7 27.5
Financial assets at BNV EEBRRYR
fair value through ZEREE
profit or loss 0.2 - 13.9 141
Total assets EEHARE 0.2 9.8 31.6 41.6
Liabilities afE
Derivative liability TETABE - 2.2 - 2.2
Financial liabilities at BATEEBRERIIE
fair value through ZemMBaRE
profit or loss - - 260.5 260.5
Total liabilities =Rt - 2.2 260.5 262.7

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group,
pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group
is the current bid price. These instruments are included
in Level 1. Instruments included in Level 1 comprise
primarily equity investments classified as trading
securities under financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.
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RREBERQERAFEELETZ
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Financial risk management (continued) 3 HXREKREE®)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AV {EMGE (&)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
Level 3.

The valuation techniques and inputs used in the fair value
measurements within Level 2 and Level 3 are as follows:

AEEERRMSEESRTAZAF
ENRRBGEEEE - EAEFAE
KMSBRBIEAERDREERE
EfbETE - EGEDAREERT
BEEmSEE - Wit E—BITAZA
FEAFNEREAZEEEAE
2 ABEIASHAFE2R -

fisd — {8 2k % B B K 85 A BUR I IEAR
BABEMSBEGE  ARATA
BRFASE3R -

EoOMRESRATEHBAER
(EERARHAENT ;

Significant inputs

EXWABE

Valuation technique

HER

Available-for-sale financial Quoted market prices for Observable quoted market

assets (Level 2) similar instruments prices
AftEEermEE(F24R) FEETENmE®RE AT 5 (B

Observable quoted market
price, risk-free interest rate
and volatility level

ABRMISME - EERFE
FOR @

Binominal model
ZIEAER

Derivative liability (Level 2)
TETARGEE2R)

Net asset valueMote)

BEFEWD

Available-for-sale financial
assets (Level 3)
A ESrEE(FEIR)

Not applicable
AN iE

Net asset valueMote)

& EE

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (Level 3)

BRATEREBERKRIIEZ
TREE(F3R)

Not applicable
TiEA

Discounted cash flow
WHEReRE

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (Level 3)

RATEREBERRERSERZ
eRMBEEIR)

Discount rate and expected
recoverable amount of
underlying project

BRI R TEHAR R 18 B
ORI QeI &

Wit REBREAREAEFERER
“$-ZFt-A=-AZATE:

Note: The Group has determined that the reported net asset
value represents fair value at 31 December 2013.
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Financial risk management (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

Additional information about fair value measurements
using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3):

B S B B (4m)

APEfE )
5 B A ORI I8 A BR (F3
) B AT EMBEIER -

Significant unobservable inputs Range
BEARBEZERNE AR EE
Financial liabilities at fair value Discount rate 10%
through profit or loss®Mete AL IR

HATERNBRESIE 2 S B8

Expected recoverable amount of
underlying project

Not applicable
i

TERAAREIR B A9 AT M B SRR

Note: The valuations are performed and reported at each of
the Group ' s reporting dates to Group management.
The higher the discount rate, the lower the fair value.
The higher the expected recoverable amount of
underlying project, the higher the fair value.

There were no changes in valuation techniques during
the year.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2012, there were no significant transfers of financial
assets between Levels 1, 2 and 3 fair value hierarchy
classifications.

The fair value of the following financial assets and
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts:

o Trade and other receivables

° Amount due from an associated company, net
o Amount due from a joint venture

. Cash and cash equivalents

e Restricted cash

o Trade and other payables

o Borrowings

. Other non-current payables

Mzt RASEEERE B BETEELR
FEFEEEBESR  BBEAS A
TEAE - BHEREERHTRE R
BAE ATHERS -

FA - AHERMLERE

AEENBRENEREHHEHK
HENBABEEEZE  BRE
ABRBEHERFESE -

BE_ZT—=FR_FT——F+=
B=+—HLEEE  AFEFAESF
WAEE  2RITHEBEEZEIL
mEAEE -

NTeREERABZAFERE
FREERE :

o YRR EAMELGR
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 HXREKREE®)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AV {EMGE (&)
The following table presents the changes in Level 3 TERHEIHE_ZE—=FR_F
instruments for the years ended 31 December 2013 and ——F+ZA=1+—HIEFEZ%E3
2012. MTEEH

Financial Financial

assets at liabilities at

Available- fair value fair value

for-sale through through

financial profit or profit or

assets loss loss Total

BAYE BAYE

AHHE ABERIE EESZRIER
CREE ZERMEE ZEeRARE k)
HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million
BEATL BEAT BEATT BEAT

At 1 January 2012 RZZT——F—F—H 22.0 13.8 (261.6) (225.8)
Disposal HE (6.4) = - (6.4)
Net unrealised gain RIBREFRERZ
recognised AR B
in profit and loss - - 3.1 3.1
Net gain/(loss) recognised ?3’\1‘&%1%':}35@ R
in reserves Wz (B85 2.1 0.1 (2.0) 0.2
At 31 December 2012 R-Z——F
+-A=+—"H 17.7 13.9 (260.5) (228.9)
At 1 January 2013 R-_Z—=F—Hf—H 17.7 13.9 (260.5) (228.9)
Disposal e (0.8) - - (0.8)
Net unrealised loss RiBm R
recognised ARBRERTE
in profit and loss - - (11.3) (11.3)
Net gain/(loss) recognised ~ AEEEHHER 2
in reserves s/ (B1R)FE 0.6 0.4 (7.2) (6.2)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F
+-A=+-A 17.5 14.3 (279.0) (247.2)
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d Financial Statements (continued

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Valuation of investment properties/recoverable
amount of prepaid land lease payments
The fair value of each investment property, and the
recoverable amount of prepaid land lease payments
for which there are impairment indicators, are
individually determined at each balance sheet date
by an independent valuer based on a market value
assessment. Knight Frank was engaged to carry out
the independent valuation of the Group’s investment
property and prepaid land lease payments portfolio
as at 31 December 2012. In 2013, Knight Frank has
engaged to carry out the independent valuation of the
Group's investment property and prepaid land lease
payments portfolio excluding the property development
projects achieved pre-sales stage as at 31 December
2013. This valuation was carried out in accordance with
the Valuation Standards on Properties of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors which defines market value as “the
estimated amount for which a property should exchange
on the date of valuation between a willing buyer and
a willing seller in an arm’s-length transaction after
proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted
knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion”.

Knight Frank has derived the valuation of the Group's
completed investment property portfolio by capitalising
the rental income derived from existing tenancies with
due provision for reversionary income potential and
where appropriate, by reference to market comparable
transactions. The assumptions are based on market
conditions existing at the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A P RR M ()

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements 4 EAS& AR 4 &)
(continued)

(a) Valuation of investment properties/recoverable (a) REWME FBHLHBEERTR

amount of prepaid land lease payments
(continued)

For the prepaid land lease payments excluding the
property development projects achieved pre-sales
stage, management determined the recoverable amount
based on the valuation report prepared by Knight Frank.
Knight Frank has valued the investment properties
under development/recoverable amount of prepaid land
lease payments on the basis that the properties will be
developed in accordance with the information provided
from management. It is assumed that approvals for
the development scheme will be obtained without any
onerous condition which would affect the value of
investment properties under development/recoverable
amount of prepaid land lease payments. In arriving the
opinion of value, Knight Frank has made reference to
comparable transactions in the locality and has also
taken into account the construction costs that will be
expended to complete the development and the quality
of the completed development in the development
scheme.

Management has reviewed the Knight Frank valuation
and compared it with its own assumptions, with
reference to comparable sales transaction data where
such information is available, and has concluded that
the Knight Frank valuation of the Group’s investment
property portfolio and prepaid land lease payments is
reasonable.

If the valuation of the investment properties had been
10% higher or lower than the value stated on the
valuation report, the fair value adjustment for the year
arising from the Group’s investment properties would
have been increased or decreased by HK$677.1 million
(2012: HK$618.2 million).
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(continued)
(b) Provision for properties held for sales,

(c)

properties under development and prepaid land
lease payments

The Group assesses the carrying amounts of properties
held for sales, properties under development and
prepaid land lease payments according to their
estimated net realisable value based on the realisability
of these properties, taking into account of costs to
completion based on past experience and net sales
value based on prevailing market conditions. Provision
is made when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amounts may not be realised.
The assessment requires the use of judgement and
estimates.

Estimated impairment of concession right — toll
road

The Group tests annually whether intangible assets
have suffered any impairment in accordance with the
accounting policy. The calculations use pre-tax cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management.

The unit prices used for the analysis are determined
by management making reference to the agreements
approved by the government authorities. The average
growth rate used are consistent with the forecasts
expected in the industry. The discount rates used are
pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
segments.

If the discount rate used in the value-in-use calculation
had been 10% higher than management’'s estimates
at 31 December 2013, there would be no further
impairment on the Group’s concession right (toll road).

The Group has performed impairment assessment
by using the discounted cash flow model with the
assumptions that traffic flow would increase by 9.3%
every year on average, the tariff rate would increase
by 7.5% every five years and the discount rate is
9.6%. According to the impairment assessment, the
recoverable amount of Guilin Tollroad is RMB1,172.0
million, which is higher than the carrying value as at 31
December 2013.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A P RR M ()

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements 4 EAS& AR 4 &)

(continued)
(d) Estimated impairment of plant and equipment (d)

AR R R B ZBEME

" 142

Plant and equipment are reviewed by management
for impairment losses whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. The recoverable amount is the higher
of fair value less costs to sell and value in use of the
plant and equipment. Management makes judgements
on whether such events or changes in circumstances
have occurred, and makes estimates in determining the
recoverable amount. In the situation where the value in
use of plant and equipment cannot be assessed due to
the uncertainties of the operation model in the future,
management has assessed the respective recoverable
amount solely based on the fair value less costs to
sell. Provision is made when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may
not be recovered.

The Group tests whether property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, prepaid land lease payments and
interests in associated companies engaged in the
alternative energy businesses (“Alternative Energy
Projects”) have suffered any impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable in accordance
with the accounting policy in Note 2.12. The Group
reviews certain indicators of potential impairment such
as actual electricity dispatched, tariff of electricity,
market unit price of Certified Emission Reduction
(“CER”) and other general market conditions.
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d Financial Statements (continued

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements 4 EAS& AR 4 &)

(continued)
(d) Estimated impairment of plant and equipment (d) WBERFBHEZBEMLT(HE)
(continued)

If an indication of impairment is identified, the need
for recognising an impairment loss is assessed by
comparing the carrying amount of the assets, to the
higher of (i) the fair value less cost to sell, and (ii) the
value-in-use on a project-by-project basis. The fair value
is either determined by referring to recent transactions
or by independent valuers whenever appropriate. The
value-in-use of the assets represents estimated future
cash flows from the continuous use of the assets, and
requires complex assumptions and estimates such
as future electricity dispatched, tariff of electricity
and market unit price of CER and discount rates. The
discount rates used to discount the estimated future
cash flows are based on the relevant industry sector risk
premium and the gearing ratio.

During the year, the Group has performed impairment
assessment on the Alternative Energy Projects.
The value-in-use calculation was based on the
key assumptions, including (i) tariff increment at
approximately 3% per annum based on management’s
expectation on market development and general
inflation, (ii) improvement in volume of electricity
dispatched based on the operational feasibility reports
and historical performances, and (iii) assuming the
contributions from CER is of negligible amount. The pre-
tax discount rates applied to the cash flow projections
are between 11.06% and 13.37% per annum.

Based on the impairment assessment, the recoverable
amounts of subsidiaries operating wind farms and
interests in associated companies are higher than their
respective carrying amounts.

With all other variables held constant, if there is 2% tariff
increment throughout the operating period, the profit
before taxation would have been decreased by HK$31.1
million (2012: HK$41.3 million). Similarly, with all other
variables held constant, if the volume of electricity
dispatched is 10% less than management expectation,
the profit before taxation would have been decreased by
HK$84.8 million (2012: HK$93.6 million).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A P RR M ()

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in the
Mainland China. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determined is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for
potential tax exposures based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will affect the income
tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which
such determination is made.

Fair value of derivatives, financial assets/
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
other financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement to
select a variety of methods (including but not limited to
discounted cash flow analysis) and make assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at
each balance sheet date.

Revenue recognition

The Group uses the percentage-of-completion method
in accounting for its fixed-price contracts to deliver
construction services. The use of the percentage-of-
completion method requires the Group to estimate the
services performed to date as a proportion of the total
services to be performed.

Determination of fair value of share-based
compensation

The Group uses the Binomial Model to determine the
fair value of share options issued during the year. Under
this model, the value of the share options is subject to
a number of assumptions such as the risk-free interest
rate, the expected life of the options and historical
volatility based on annualised volatility of the closing
price of the share. Therefore the value may be subjective
and would change should any of the assumptions
change.
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d Financial Statements (continued

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

(continued)

(i) Allowances for bad and doubtful debts
The policy for allowance for bad and doubtful debts of
the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability
and ageing analysis of receivables and management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each customer.

Segment information

Segment information disclosed in the annual report has
been prepared in a manner consistent with the information
used by the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments. In this regard,
the Group is organised into the following segments:
Properties development (for sale or lease upon completion
of construction work), Property investment and leasing,
Infrastructure, Alternative energy and Other operations.

The Group’s most senior executive management assesses the
performance of the operating segments based on operating
profit/(loss) after interest income and expenses, taxation and
share of profits/(losses) of associated companies and joint
ventures. Corporate expenses mainly include the employee
expenses of the head office, interest income and expenses
arising from the holding companies and other administrative
expenses of the head office.

The Group’s segment assets exclude financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, available-for-sale financial assets
which are managed on a central basis. These are part of
the reconciliation to total balance sheet assets. Corporate
assets mainly include the cash at bank, property, plant and
equipment and other receivables held by the head office.
The assets of each reportable segment comprise the inter-
segment receivables.

Sales between segments are carried out on terms equivalent
to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. The revenue
from external parties reported to management is measured
in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated income
statement. Total segment revenue also represents the
Group’s turnover.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

ARE PR R M (4]

5 Segment information (continued) 5 aHER@E)
The segment information for the reportable segments for the HE-_ZT—=Ffk_ZF—Z_F+=H
years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as follows: =t HIFEAEF "*BZ“*Bé?HZZD
I
Properties development
LT

Shanghai Property Total

and investment Alternative Other ~ reportable

Thejiang  Shenyang  Tianjin  Jiangmen  Shenzhen and leasing Infrastructure ~ energy  operations  segments

NERER 72833

LERHL - by B i il R ERER  AfEE 45
HKS Million HKS Million ~ HKS Million  HKS Million ~ HKS Million  HKS Million  HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~HKS Million ~ HKS Million
BE#T FEAn EERn  REMn  BERn  REMn  BERn  REMn EEEn EEMR

Year ended 31 December 2013 BE-Z-=Ef-A=t-ALEE
Revenue rom exteral customers EfREFZE 1119 -T2 A1 - 10 02 M7 04 14410
Inter-segment revenue AEkE - - - - - 03 - - 158 16.1
Total revenue WEEE 119 - 758.2 217 - 1042 49.2 137 46.2 14574
Operating profit{loss) gexA/ (58) By () 07 - %38 A4 W@y 1
Finance income BEMA 102 12 1 13 - 29 08 24 11 20
Finance costs El W ey ) - M) ey B (139
Share o prof less losses of EhBENTERER

associated companies - - - - - 2.0 - 785 - 1005
Share of profis less losses of ElaenTaiER

joint ventures 759 - - - - - - - - 759
Profit{loss) before income tax fERAEN/ (B8 1074 (287) 164 509 -8 (527) 729 (484 278
Income tax expense FEf (11.7) - () (58) - (49) - B4 (28  (659)
Profit{loss) or the year KEEHH/ (E8) 9.7 (287) 47 151 - 1060 (521) 645 (620) 1726
Depreciaion if& w6y 65 @ - 0y 03y G B8 (B8
Amortisation B (04 - (213) - - (05) (115) (05) (0.) (34.3)
Fair value adjusiments on investment properes &£ A F&5% 170 - - - - (153) - - - 17
Provision for impairment losses HEFEER - - (161) - - - - - - (161)
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Segment information (continued)

5 aHER@E)

Properties development
L
Shanghai Property Total
and investment Alternative Other ~ reportable
Zngjiang ~ Shenyang Tinjn ~ Jiangmen ~ Shenzhen  andleasing  Infrasiructure energy  operations  segments
hERER BESTES
LR &5 K il i HE B OBREE  EbER iz
HK$ Milion ~ HKS Millon ~ HK$ Milion ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Millon ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Millon ~ HK$ Million ~ HKS Millon ~ HKS Million
REET BEAT REET BEAT REET  BEAT REAT  BEAT  REET  BEAT
Year ended 31 December 2012 BECZ-ZETZAZr-ALER

Revenue from external customers RENREP2Ma 135 - 122 - - %7 6.7 %5 %2 3288
Inter-seqment revenue: DL - - - - - - - - 635 635
Total revenue W5sE 135 - 122 - - 9%.7 65.7 995 1027 3923
Operating profit(loss) 5/ (BB (108) (230) (440) (170) 150.1 %3 02) (682) 134
Finance income BHRA 55 15 17 03 48 06 08 13 165
Finance costs HaHA (60) - - (1) - (109) (837) (486) (74 (157

Share of profits less losses of EEBEATRANER
associated companies - - - - - 513 - 9%.7 - 1480

Share ofprofs less losses of EhaeRaaiAEs
joint ventures (23) - - - - - - (23)
Profit/(loss) before income tax FEmHER/ (BB (134) (215) (423) (16.8) - 1963 (56.8) 487 (743) 189
Income ta (expense) credit iRt/ 4 (7) - 48 - - B2 () My 9 @)
Profit(loss) for the year REEER/(E8) (171) (215) (375) (168) - 1901 (578) 34 (922) (184)
Depreciation ik (09) (19 (82) (49 (02) (95) (67.0) (10.0) (926)
Amortisation 5 (04) - (207) - - 03) 83) (086) 01) (304)
Fair value adjustments on investment properties RAHZATERE 124 - - - - 586 - - - 710
Provision for impairment losses HEERAE = - - = = (04) - (180 (12 (08
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

ARE PR R M (4]

5 Segment information (continued) 5 aHER@E)
Properties development
VLT
Shanghai Property Total
and investment Alternative Other ~ reportable
Thejiang ~ Shenyang  Tianjin  Jiangmen  Shenzhen and leasing Infrastructure  energy  operations  segments
NE5ER 12878

LRI &5 by i i il R ERER  AfEE g
HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million  HKS Milion  HKS Milion ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million
EE%r EEET BERn  EEBn  FEMr  BEWn  EEMT  BERR EERR AEEn

As at 31 December 2013 HZ%-ZE+2R=1-A

Total assefs BEER 74019 20110 42085 607.1 2115 4,845.2 1,250.2 24252 97 23,0503
Total assets include: Erlgag:

Interests in associated companies NBEDE B - - - - - 501.2 - 8244 - 1356
Inferests i joint ventures aERAER 2,2188 - - - - - - - - 22108
Total liabilities B 1,162.2 1,200.8 29734 3300 - 801.1 17218 1185 58.3 9,116.1
As at 31 December 2012 HZZ-ZE+ZR=1-H

Total assefs EEEE 70424 11908 41220 5342 2057 45705 12902 2,266 803 212624
Total assefs include: AElgeE:

Inteests in associated companies REEAFER - - - - - %4 - B85 - iy
Interests i joint ventures aERAER 20829 - - - - - - - - 20829
Total liabllities BRaE 1,083.4 3626 29112 2994 - 836.3 169.8 6713 61.0 79420
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5 Segment information (continued)

A reconciliation of profit/(loss) for the year of reportable

5 aHER@E)
AR B EREF, (FiE)BAER

segments to profit for the year of the Group is provided as FRE M ERAT ¢
follows:
2013 2012
—EB-=F —E—_F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET AEBTT
Profit/(loss) for the year of A 2F® o EBFEREF,(EE)
reportable segments 172.6 (18.4)
Unallocated amounts: RS -
Corporate expenses, net R FEE (106.8) (6.6)
Gain on disposal or liquidation of PR 1% S BT BB A B Sk Bt B
subsidiaries, net of tax NIV Lol G 2.8 137.5
Intra group elimination & B N BR T 8 8.9 0.1
Profit for the year of the Group NEEF R 77.5 112.6
Reportable segments’ assets are reconciled to total assets as 2RO PEELRBSEL|EENT -
follows:
2013 2012
—EB-=F —E—_F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET AEBT
Total segment assets DELEEERE 23,050.3 21,262.4
Head office assets BN EREE 746.9 975.0
Intra group elimination S B ERE 8 (1,716.0) (1,756.3)
Available-for-sale financial assets AtHESEE 26.1 27.5
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEEERRIIERZ
profit or loss TREE 14.5 14.1
Total assets per consolidated HEBEBRERMIEERTE
balance sheet 22,121.8 20,522.7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

ARE PR R M (4]

5 Segment information (continued) 5 oBER @)
Reportable segments’ liabilities are reconciled to total NE2KsEEHEBEAZBHENT
liabilities as follows:

2013 2012
—E—=F —E-—F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEER BEBTL
Total segment liabilities DEPBELREE 9,116.1 7,942.0
Head office liabilities BMERAaE 316.2 223.3
Intra group elimination SEANEPE 8 (2,659.6) (2,355.2)
Total liabilities per consolidated REEERBRYIBERE
balance sheet 6,772.7 5,810.1
Non-current assets other than available-for-sale financial AR ESRMEBEUIZIERHEETE
assets are mainly located in the Mainland China. 7 AR B A i, o
Analysis of revenue by category: AR T S
2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEER BEBTT
Sales proceeds from properties SR EHEMERTSRIE
held for sale 1,143.8 25.7
Rental income from investment properties &S WA 103.9 98.7
Alternative energy BREEIR 113.7 99.5
Infrastructure B 3= 49.2 65.7
Others HAh, 30.4 39.2
1,441.0 328.8
Revenue from external customers in the Mainland China for HE—_T— -+ -_HA=+—HItE
the year ended 31 December 2013 is HK$1,438.4 million E okt ERNMIRERE k%
(2012: HK$324.7 million) and the total of revenue from A 1,438,400,0008 T (=& — = F :
external customers from other areas is HK$2.6 million (2012: 324,700,000/ 7T ) + 1M 2K B £ il i & 5
HK$4.1 million). RE P 2 Wk 858 /2,600,0008 L (=
— =% : 4,100,0007T) °
For the year ended 31 December 2013, there was no HE—ZE—=#+—-A=+—HIt&EZE
revenue derived from a single external customer exceeding AEKBAE —HIAREE Y WHBBEWDS
10% of total revenue. In 2012, revenue derived from two WEE 0% c R T ——4&F KEAMZ
external customers each exceeding 10% of total revenue HN L= B U 25 5 Bl 951,700,000 7T K&
of approximately HK$51.7 million and HK$47.8 million was 47,800,000 LB A B REEBEEE £
attributable to alternative energy business. BBUES HEEE 2 10% ©
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6

7

Other income

6 HftlA

2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——4F
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEEBET BEAT
Property management fee income MESIEBUA 23.2 18.3
Income generated from properties REEHEERBRZMEZRA
held for sale 12.3 8.2
Fair value gain on financial assets and ~ RATF(EEREZEXRTIEZ
financial liabilities at fair value through  &@RIEER SR EE
profit or loss — net A EWE — HEE - 71
Gain on disposal of property, plant and — HEWE - #ERREZ
equipment — net Wzs — 55 R - 11.1
Gain on completion of liquidation of TRk B A BB 8 v e
subsidiaries — net — FHE 2.8 =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries — net HEME AR 2 W — F 58 - 141.8
Recovery of receivables written off U [0 LA 1 £F 38 2 PR ML GR
in prior years - 49.1
Write back of costs provision [B] 5P AR 2 1.6 2.5
Net exchange gain b 5 W) F 58 - 1.6
Others Hith 11.8 3.5
51.7 243.2
Provision for impairment losses on assets 7 YEREESBERE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEET AEBTT
Provision for impairment losses on BB
— trade receivables — PRI AR K - (1.6)
— property, plant and equipment — W3 - IR - (18.3)
- prepaid land lease payments —TE LA ER - (0.7)
— properties under development —EERPYE (16.1) =
(16.1) (20.6)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

ARE PR R M (4]

RS
e RFIE (k) HEETHIER

8 Operating profit 8
Operating profit is arrived at after (charging)/crediting the
following items:

<Y =

2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT BEBT

Employee benefit expenses (Note 11) EERAIRZ (KaE11) (127.1) (145.4)
Employee share option benefits, 1B BRI T - )RR

net (Note 11) (MisE11) (1.8) (2.0)
Amortisation B5H

— prepaid land lease payments (Note 17) - 8t AR E R (Fi5E17) (23.1) (22.9)

— intangible assets (Note 19) - EREE(HE19) (11.6) (7.8)
Depreciation of property, plant and VI - IR REREITE

equipment (Note 18) (PfIzE18) (86.6) (96.0)
Cost of inventories FERA (11.3) (11.5)
Cost of properties sold EEMEKAR (894.5) (13.5)
Direct operating expenses arising from A BERFE S WA 2 &) 2

investment properties that generate EECEELERY

rental income (4.0) (6.3)
Auditor’s remuneration — audit services  #ZZ NS — L EIRTE (5.9) (6.0)
Operating lease payments KBRS IR (13.5) (16.4)
Net exchange (loss)/gain PE X (&518), /a5 58 (17.6) 1.6
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial BEAFEEBRRIEZ SR

assets and financial liabilities at BEReMABATE

fair value through profit or loss — net (BB),Wwm— 58 (16.3) 71
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, LEMZE - WBRREEZ

plant and equipment — net (E18) = —F5E (1.2) 11.1

HKC (Holdings) Limited
Annual Report 2013



Finance income and costs 9 HBEVARBMERL
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——4F
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEEBET BEAT
Interest expenses: FBHE :
Bank loans wholly repayable HRAFANEIEEZ
within 5 years RITEN (86.4) (68.2)
Bank loans not wholly repayable BERAFAZBEREZ
within 5 years IRITE (113.3) (131.4)
Other loans wholly repayable HRAFAEEEEL
within 5 years HuER (0.9) (1.0)
Other loans not wholly repayable BERAFAZIEREZ
within 5 years HEX (7.9) (6.8)
(208.5) (207.4)
Less: capitalised in properties W BERPYIEREELIR
under development and =N i)
construction in progress 73.0 46.9
Finance costs BhE AN (135.5) (160.5)
Finance income B URA 36.7 52.3
Net finance costs BMERAFE (98.8) (108.2)

Note: The capitalisation rate applied to funds borrowed was
between 5.40% to 7.21% (2012: 6.69% to 7.21%) per annum

during the year ended 31 December 2013

BE_ZT—=+_A=+—HItHE
B BBz ESRAZBTEARER
BEFE540%E721% (T — —F :
6.69%%E7.21%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

ARE PR R M (4]

10 Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments 10 EERSREEEMNS

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM2
The remuneration of every director and chief executive EESRTHBHERBEE=S—=
officer for the year ended 31 December 2013 is set out FTZA=T—HLEFEOME M
below: K
Employer's
contribution
Salaryand Discretionary o pension Share-based
Name #% Fees other benefits bonuses scheme Sub-total - compensation® Total
EEY YERE

ke EMERN  BRRO  ZRIHR Nt RERED 4%
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
Tin Tin T Tin Tin T Tin

OFI Tjie Goan E5HR - - - - - - -
OF Kang, Eric*(1) (1) 10 838 13006 00 984 W3 100757
CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie (1) FUE() 175.0 9,928.3 2,954.0 30.0 13,087.3 834.3 13,921.6
CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph () BEE() 33 7200 2016 50 %99 - 9599
CHUNG Wai Sum, Patrick (3) EER() 50.0 2,765.8 - 15 2,823.3 (388.7) 2,434.6
YEN Teresa [FE 100.0 - - - 100.0 - 100.0
WAN Ming Sun (4 FA() 1000 - - - 1000 - 1000
FAN Yan Hok, Philip BB 200 - - - 200 - 220.0
CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico s 2200 - - - 220.0 - 2200
CHENG Yuk Wo il 2200 - - - 220.0 - 2200
Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior &3l 2200 - - - 20.0 - 220.0
1,513.3 21,745.9 4,456.2 725 21,1819 683.9 28,471.8
’ appointed as chief executive officer with effect from 1 January 2014 : RZZE—NF—F—BEZER
1TIRARE
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10 Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments 10
(continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

The remuneration of every director and chief executive
officer for the year ended 31 December 2012 is set out

EEREREEENS @)

(a) E=ME @)
BEENTTHRARRBE_T—=
Frt-A=+t—RALEFENMS®N

below: T
Employer's
contribution
Salaryand  Discretionary ~{o pension Share-based
Name iz Fees  other benefits bonuses scheme Sub-total - compensation® Total
#2R USR]
e HbEN  BREL CRHER Nt RiARES g
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
ThAL TR ThTL ThL Tim ThTL ThAL
OF Tjie Goan =i - - - - - - -
OEl Kang, Eric (1) H(1) 175.0 8,106.8 1,157.5 215 9,466.8 - 9,466.8
CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie* (1) FUE() 175.0 94328 5,250.0 215 14,885.3 19709 16,856.2
CHUNG Wai Sum, Patrick (3) BERQ) 100.0 53343 11158 187 6,563.8 5439 71077
YEN Teresa [ 1000 - - - 1000 - 100.0
WAN Ming Sun (4) FHRLM) 100.0 - - - 100.0 - 100.0
FAN Yan Hok, Philip BEE 2200 - - - 2200 - 2200
CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico g 200 - - - 2200 - 2200
CHENG Yuk Wo HE 200 - - - 200 - 200
Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior &3l 2200 - - - 200 - 200
1530.0 28739 75233 68.7 31999 25148 345107

" chief executive officer

' i
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

ARE PR R M (4]

10 Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments 10 EERSAETEEMS &)

(continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEM<E (&)
Notes: P E -

Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie retired as chief executive
officer and executive director and Mr. OEl Kang, Eric was
appointed as chief executive officer with effect from 1
January 2014.

B-ZF-ME—A—HBERIEBL
ERETREERPTES - ME
M RS ERITIAER, -

Mr. CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph was appointed as an 2. BREIS EEM—E—=FNA—H
executive director on 1 September 2013. BEEZERTES -

Mr. CHUNG Wai Sum, Patrick retired with effect from 1 July 3. BEAREEE T —=FtA—H
2013. HBIR(E ©

Mr. WAN Ming Sun resigned as a non-executive director 4. FHRHILEEB-ZZ-—HFE—A
with effect from 23 January 2014. ZT=BRBEFRITES -

Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel and Mr. WONG Jake Leong, 5. FEREEREERLER-T
Sammy were appointed as executive directors on 1 January —NF-—A—HBHEZEARHTE
2014. Fo

The balance represented the recognised portion of the 6. HERIERBAARRENEARZ

estimated value of share options granted to the directors
under the share option schemes of the Company and a
subsidiary. The value of these share options is measured
according to the Group’s accounting policies for share-
based payment transactions and, in accordance with that
policy, includes adjustments to reverse amounts accrued
in previous years where grants of equity instruments are
forfeited prior to vesting.

BREFANETRHBREDHE
REDZ fEFHEE - RFEEEZ
BEDREASERENNHZ S
ZEETHRETE  MAREZBOR -
EFeRAREHMARERAT
ARNGEBAIR RN BEFRERF
e 2 B -

BE_Z— =K _FT——F+=
A=+—HBILEEE EEREEH
FEZEFEEEHE 100,000/ 7T ©

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012,
Mr. OEI Tjie Goan voluntarily waived annual director’s
fee of HK$100,000.
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10 Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments 10 EERSHAETEEMS @)

(continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b)
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include three (2012: three)
individuals whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to
the remaining two (2012: two) individuals during the year
are as follows:

IEMERES AL

FR AEBREERFALTERE
C=ZR)ATLT
BEZHEER EXEHNZH TR
e FAENBTITMA(ZZE—=

=% (ZE—=F

FmB)ENALTZBENT

2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEER AEBTT
Salary and other benefits e R E A E A 4.3 4.2
Discretionary bonus BB TEAL 0.9 0.7
Share-based compensation frinfEE 0.3 =
5.5 4.9
The emoluments fell within the following bands: MeEFZDIIT :
No of individuals
A
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
Emoluments band (in HK dollar) AR R (BIT)

HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001%7t-2,500,000/87T - 2
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ 73,000,000/ 7T 2 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

ARE PR R M (4]

11 Employee benefit expenses

11 EETFBEX

2013 2012

—E—-=F —E——4F

HK$ Million HK$ Million

HEBT AEBTT

Wages, salaries and other benefits TE - FrekEMEF (124.5) (142.6)

Employee share option benefits, net B BERERT - JFE (1.8) (2.0)
Pension costs — defined contribution BRIRE KA — ERBRERETE

plan (Note a) (FizEa) (2.6) (2.5)

Accrual for unused annual leave KA F BT - (0.3)

Charged to income statement, net BEBEmKRNRIERE (128.9) (147.4)

Notes: ek -

(a)

(b)

The Group uses the MPF scheme under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
retirement scheme administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of
the employee’s relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$25,000. Contributions to the scheme
vest immediately. The Group’s contribution to the employee
pension schemes in the PRC is at a percentage in compliance
with the requirements of respective municipal governments.

Contributions totalling HK$0.1 million (2012: HK$0.1 million)
were payable under the MPF scheme at 31 December 2013.
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Notes to the

7

12

Income tax expense

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group has no assessable profit for the years ended
31 December 2013 and 2012. Mainland China income tax
includes corporate income tax which has been provided on
the estimated assessable profits of subsidiaries operating in
the Mainland China at 25% (2012: rates ranging from 12%
to 25%), and withholding tax which has been provided at
rates ranging from 5% to 10% (2012: 5% to 10%) on income
sourced from the Mainland China by the Group’s non-tax
resident enterprises, including profit on direct or indirect
equity transfer transactions, interest and dividend income
received and receivable.

Mainland China land appreciation tax is provided at
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 40% (2012: 40%) on
the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sale of
properties less deductible expenditures (including costs of
land use rights and property development expenditures).

12 FI8HixXH

HRAEERBE_T—=FR=_T—=
F+-_A=t+—"BLFETEEFH G
A - A EGL B AN ERAELBE - PE
A TSR (BB EMEH) RBEFEH
A b AE BT B A R 2 (A ET RS - iR
25%(ZE—ZF : NF12%E25%) 2%
KL MENFIRASEEER
BE¥EFBEAATSRAEN T5%E10%

—TE——F : 5%E10%) 2T KRB B
% BEYEENMERESERZ 25
A~ BUF) B KA B R FEUER

R A IS E R R L A E RN T
30% E40%E (—T——4 : 40%) 2 B
R T AENHEMERSKE
AR F X (BIE i AR A &Y
EBEHAL) -

2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——4F
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEEBET BEBBT
Current income tax BN ERFT1S A
Mainland China income tax R A AT S AR (61.5) (33.2)
Mainland China land appreciation tax FR R b £ 3 S (B AR (60.5) (2.5)
(122.0) (85.7)
Deferred income tax (Note 36) EIEFTIS R (F17E36)
Credited/(charged) to the income e, (k) RIBEE
,,,,, statement 30 (59
(85.0) (41.6)

Note:

The share of income tax expense of associated companies amounting
to HK$18.8 million (2012: share of income tax credit of HK$13.3
million) and the share of income tax expense of joint ventures
amounting to HK$26.3 million (2012: HK$0.8 million) are included in
the Group’s share of profits less losses of associated companies and
share of profits less losses of joint ventures respectively.

FE (R Bt & A F) 2 P15 32 i /3 18,800,0007%
TL(ZZT—Z%F : E(EFT1SFI# % 13,300,000
BIL)REIEAERARIZABHEIE A
26,300,000 7T (= Z — — 4 : 800,0007%
7))+ D RIFTARERE 2 FE(HE & A Rl R
BB REGE E ARG MR ES -

mempepaRsa 50 OO

—T-=F4H



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

ARE PR R M (4]

iyt )
AEBATERATEF 2 BIE - EEAMNE
THHREMERRE L EEF,/ (EE)
ZIBHBIE - ZEOT

12 Income tax expense (continued) 12
The tax of the Group’s profit before income tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to profits/(losses) of the

consolidated entities as follows:

2013 2012
—E-=F —E— 4
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEER BEATT
(Loss)/profit before income tax and FriSBiaT (E18),SmF A K
share of results of associated JE(REEE AR RE E AR
companies and joint ventures E (13.9) 8.5
Tax credit/(charge) calculated at the REABERAZCHEF),/
domestic rates applicable to (profits)/ EEMER S EFTE 2
losses in the respective countries MEE R, (HKR) 3.5 (2.0)
Expenses not deductible for taxation AN 2 ER
purposes (31.1) (8.3)
Income not subject to tax BARRBA 21.8 41.2
Tax losses and temporary differences R 2 T IA 518 N i = RE
not recognised (45.0) (55.6)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised F A LRI ARER 2 FIE
tax losses &8 34.6 =
Withholding tax on dividends from EHBBEARIRE L
associated companies BBz FEH (9.0) (9.7)
Mainland China land appreciation tax Fh R (A 3+ b B (B R (60.5) (2.5)
Deferred tax reversed/(charged) on ROBEFE 2 BIETSE
undistributed profits #EE($0kR) 0.7 (4.7)
Tax expense MBS H (85.0) (41.6)
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 25.2% (2012: INEFHEATER25.2%(ZF—Z4F :

23.5%).
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13 Loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company
The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company is
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to the
extent of HK$47.7 million (2012: HK$82.5 million), including
reversal of provision for impairment losses on investment in
subsidiaries and amounts due from subsidiaries amounting
to HK$31.6 million (2012: provision for impairment losses
amounting to HK$38.5 million).

14 Earnings per share
(a) Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

13

14

RRAERFEARGEER

NN R =B AR B 47,700,000
JTT(=—ZT— =4 : 82,500,000/& 7T ) IR A
ANEFBREEE  BERKBATZE
BT E U B A ) K TR R 1 S 1 B 4 [
31,600,000t ( =T ——% : HEFIE
1%38,500,000/8 7T ) °

BRER

(a) E=X
BRERBF IREAR AR
EAEGRNBREANEBITEER
ZINEFISEETHE o

2013 2012
—EB—-=F —E——4F
Profit attributable to equity holders of ZRRA F#EzE: A A FE(RE A
the Company (HK$ Million) (BBAT) 72.8 103.3
Weighted average number of BEETERR NETHE
ordinary shares in issue (Million) (B8) 11,241.9 10,917.5
Basic earnings per share BRRERZF| (FRHN)
(HK cents per share) 0.6 0.9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

ARE PR R M (4]

14 Earnings per share (continued)

" 162

(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares including the share options.
A calculation is made in order to determine the number
of shares that could have been acquired at fair value
(determined as the average market share price of
the Company’s shares during the year) based on the
monetary value of the subscription rights attached
to outstanding share options. The number of shares
calculated as above is compared with the number of
shares that would have been issued assuming the
exercise of the share options.

14 SREF (&)

(b)

g
BREERNTERBRHBRITEE
B Z INEFIHE - ARER A #
BEEEAR(BEBERE) HER
SBmatE - BEAGEDREAR
TEBRERNREREZEBERE
el - AAEEREARFE(ERE
REARRRBD 2 FATIERE)
WEZERNEE - EXFEZERN
BETDEBRBEREETEMND X
T2 RN BB 1ELLEL »

2013 2012
—E-=F —F—=
Profit attributable to equity holders of AN EIHE S =B A FE1G % 7
the Company (HK$ Million) (BBHL) 72.8 103.3
Effect of assumed conversion of R R — KB AR
convertible preference shares B RRELER B
issued by a subsidiary (HK$ Million)  (B&#7T) 1.7) (1.4)
711 101.9
Weighted average number of SEEBREERN ERR
ordinary shares for diluted MEFEHEH(EE)
earnings per share (Million) 11,241.9 10,917.5
Diluted earnings per share EigEE RN (FRA)
(HK cents per share) 0.6 0.9

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012 did not assume the exercise
of the share options of the Company and the share
options, convertible notes and subscription rights
for convertible preference shares of subsidiaries
outstanding during the year since the exercise would
have an anti-dilutive effect.
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d Financial Statements (continued

15 Dividends

On 22 March 2012, the Board of Directors proposed a
special cash dividend of HK1.0 cent per ordinary share
payable in cash, with an option to elect new and fully paid
ordinary shares of the Company in lieu of cash under the
scrip dividend scheme. The new shares would, on issue,
rank pari passu in all other respects with the existing shares.
Shareholders who did not elect for scrip shares would be
paid in cash. The special cash dividend was approved at the
annual general meeting held on 1 June 2012. In July 2012,
172,213,833 scrip shares were issued and cash dividend of
HK$52.7 million was paid.

On 23 August 2012, the Board of Directors proposed a
special cash dividend of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share
payable in cash, with an option to elect new and fully paid
ordinary shares of the Company in lieu of cash under the
scrip dividend scheme. The new shares would, on issue,
rank pari passu in all other respects with the existing shares.
Shareholders who did not elect for scrip shares would be
paid in cash. The dividend would be made out of contributed
surplus of the Company. The special cash dividend was
approved at the special general meeting held on 19 October
2012. In December 2012, 236,083,717 scrip shares were
issued and cash dividend of HK$151.2 million was paid.

On 23 August 2012, the Board of Directors also proposed to
implement a share premium reduction to reduce the amount
standing to the credit of its share premium account by
HK$800.0 million. The credit thus arising would be transferred
to the contributed surplus account of the Company. The
Company would apply its contributed surplus as enlarged
to set-off and eliminate its entire accumulated losses
outstanding as at 30 June 2012 and to make the distributions
contemplated under the special dividend. By a special
resolution passed on 19 October 2012, the share premium
reduction became unconditional and effective.

15 KRE

R-ZE——F=A=-+-H =Z=€BK
LAIR & (N 89 T IR T AR 1 .07 (1L 2 K RIER
SRS - IRBEUARAK S EIARRIZLUAR
AR RBREARRBER I - 847
ZATRRTE AT A E th 5 AR 1S B3R A AR
DAERE » REREZUBRKBZREURS
Tt RZE——F XA —BHEITZERRE
BEARS ERBRMEANRE  WER=
T—_—F+ BE17172,213,833 R 4T I &
R <137 4 f% 852,700,000 7T °

R-ZE——FENA=-+=0 EFeHK
LAIR & (N 9 T IR T AR 2. 078 (1L 2 K RIER
SRS - BEBEARR BT S A EENUR
RRAFRHBRERRRBER I - B47
ZATRRTE AT A E b 5 AR 1S B3R A AR
PAERE » REREZUBRKBZBREURS
S o R BINEARRRIBARBDER °
RZZE—=F+ A+ BABRITZEEEH
A LBBRAENRS  YER=ZZ
— — %+ = B%47236,083,717 B AL i% &
IR ER £ A% B.151,200,000/8 7T °

R-TE——FEN\A-+=B =€/
BB ERDR - LERDEEZEES
8 411 %800,000,000% 7T - AfMEEY &
BEBREANAZHMARE c KAAFIAE
EREAZHBABBAREHERMBRER =
T —FEXNAZtHZEHRFEELS
RIS - RZZE——F+ A+ hB@E
BZERRER - SRMOBEEEIRKAE
IR AR o

BRRR(ERERAT
—T-=F4H

163 €Y



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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15 Dividends (continued)

(a)

(b)

15 RE(#)

Special cash dividend (a) HBREREBRE

2013 2012

—E-=F —E——F

HKS$ Million HK$ Million

BEART BEAT
No special cash dividend proposed  TEHRKERIFESKE(Z
(2012: Special dividend (with scrip T——F : BERERIRE
option) of HK2.0 cents per ordinary (ATARRARE) » ST E

share paid) B&2.078 1l ) - 220.1

On 22 March 2012, a special cash dividend of HK1.0
cent (with scrip option) per ordinary share was approved
and the amounts were reflected as an appropriation
of contributed surplus accounts for the year ended 31
December 2012. The amounts were paid in July 2012.

On 23 August 2012, a special cash dividend of
HK?2.0 cents (with scrip option) per ordinary share
was approved and the amounts were reflected as an
appropriation of contributed surplus accounts for the
year ended 31 December 2012. The amounts were paid
in December 2012.

Final dividend

The Board of Directors do not recommend the payment
of final dividend for the years ended 31 December 2012
and 2013.

" 164 HKC (Holdings) Limited

Annual Report 2013

(b)

R=ZF—=F=A=+=H &K
AR 1.0 L 2 R R & BB (7]
R E)EEE  MZeBER
MR E—_E——FEt+t=-A=1+—
BIEFEZBARGBIR - Z& 58
ER-ZE——FLANft-

R-_ZE——FNA=-+=H' ' K
TR 2.0 L 2 BRI R & BB (7]
AR BB E  MZEEER
BMABE—_E——FEt+-_A=1+—
BUEFEZHARBOR - L5
ERZT——F+=Ax%f-

RERR 2
EEETRANBE_TFT—_FR
—E-=F+t-A=1+—HLFE
TR REBE -



Investment properties

16 REWHE

Group

rEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
HEER BEBT
At 1 January n—A—H 6,182.1 5,966.3
Currency translation differences bE M ME = 174.5 47.2
Additions NE 373.8 236.2
Finance lease payments capitalised BERERERL 28.2 40.4
Transfer to prepaid land lease payments EBHERMLHEER (11.8) =
Transfer from property, plant and equipment  BE#)% - #a2 KR EEA 25.4 24.0
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BHEYE  WERBE (2.8) -
Transfer to properties held for sale (Note a)  EHE{FHER R 2 W% (KizFa) - (203.0)
Fair value adjustments, net RN EFHEFE 1.7 71.0
At 31 December W+-—A=+—8 6,771.1 6,182.1

Notes: Bk -

(a) Management changed its intention to sell the investment (a) BHEENZESOHEREVEMHEAR
properties and the change in use was evidenced by MR REAEEEERE QiR
commencement of development. The deemed cost of the AESHERBR 2 MERZEMENBRK
properties held for sale transferred from investment property is G A2 A EWRIEK o
the fair value of the properties at the date of change in use.

(b) At 31 December 2013, investment properties in the Mainland (by RZZE—=F+-A=+—8  hEA
China of HK$5,535.1 million (2012: HK$1,787.7 million) were f&8185,535,100,0008 (=T — =4 :
pledged as securities for the Group’s borrowings (Note 34). 1,787,700,000& 70 ) 2 IR A W% - B{E

RSB FTEER EIR(HIEE34) -
(c) The Group’s interests in investment properties at their carrying (c) AEERREYE HRIRAERERSE

values and the lease terms are analysed as follows:

HOAraT

2013 2012
—E—= —T——F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEBT

In the Mainland China, held on: RABEAHIEE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years NF10E50F 2 HHE 6,397.7 5,856.9
Leases less than 10 years LPI10FZTBE 373.4 325.2
6,771.1 6,182.1
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16 Investment properties (continued)

Notes: (continued)
(d)  Fair value hierarchy

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment properties
was performed by the valuer, Knight Frank to determine the fair
value of the investment properties as at 31 December 2013 and
2012. The following table analyses the investment properties

carried at fair value using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3) in fair value measurements:

16 BEWH (&)
CERRC

AFEES
ANEERE MENB HELEH-HER
KT UETREVER=-T—=F
F—ZT——&+-_fA=+—HZAFE-
TREFASABEIERBGASIR(E=
BERFEFEZRAFEINEZRE
PEHEIT D

(d)

At 31 December 2013 At 31 December 2012

R-B-=F RZZ—_4%
+=A=+-H +-A=+—8
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEER BEBTT
Investment properties: BEWE

— Commercial properties under —REBREREF
development in Shanghai REME 4,249.8 3,765.0

- Commercial properties in Nanxun, —RES - ERR
Beijing and Shenzhen SIS FEESIES 2,521.3 2,417 1

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the
years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value.
The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2013 has been determined on the basis of
valuations carried out by an independent qualified valuer
not related to the Group, who holds a recognised relevant
professional qualification and has recent experience in the
locations and segments of the investment properties valued.
The Group employed Knight Frank to value its investment
properties. For all investment properties, their current use
equates to the highest and best use. Discussion of valuation
processes and results are held between the Group’s senior
management and valuers at least once every six months, in
line with the Group’s interim and annual reporting dates. At
each reporting date the Group’s senior management:
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Notes to the

16

Investment properties (continued)

Valuation processes of the Group (continued)

- verifies all major data inputs to the independent
valuation report;

- assess property valuations movements when compared
to the prior period valuation report;

- holds discussions with the independent valuer.

Changes in Level 3 fair values are also analysed at each
reporting date by the Group’s senior management.

Valuation techniques

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable
inputs

Fair values of commercial properties under development in
Shanghai are derived from using the residual method. This
valuation method is essentially a means of valuing the project
by reference to its development potential by deducting future
development costs together with developer’s profit and risk
from the estimated capital value of the proposed development
assuming completed as at the date of valuation.

Fair values of completed commercial properties in Nanxun,
Beijing and Shenzhen are generally derived from using the
income capitalisation method. This valuation method is based
on the capitalisation of the net income and reversionary
income potential by adopting appropriate capitalisation rates,
which are derived from analysis of sale transactions and
valuers’ interpretation of prevailing investor requirements
or expectations. The prevailing market rents adopted in the
valuation have been referenced to recent lettings, within the
subject properties and other comparable properties.

16 BREWH(#)
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16 Investment properties (continued) 16 REWV=E(a)
Valuation techniques (continued) e {EH T (&)
Fair value measurements using significant unobservable RAEAELZBENBAZBETNAY
inputs (continued) Bt & ()

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the HE-_Z—=Fk=_F—Z=ZF+=ZA8
years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, =+T—BILFE - HEXMEEAE -

Range of unobservable
inputs (probability-

Relationship of
unobservable inputs

weighted average) to fair value
Description Valuation technique(s) Unobservable inputs BLEZR\BEHE BEBRRA\YER
nE fhERR BEERRUE (BEmETE) NYENEHE
Commercial properties Residual method Market unit rate RMB48,500 per square The higher the market unit
under developmentin  #E% iR BN (EE meter for commercial rate, the higher the
Shanghai properties and fair value
REBZERAHENR RMB250,000 perunit  THEBMUEERDR  ATEDR
for carparks
48,500t R BEFES
AR#250,0007
Interest rate 6.15% The higher the interest rate,

Commercial properties in
Nanxun, Beijing
and Shenzhen

REE - ERERIZ

Income capitalisation
method

WABEE

HKC (Holdings) Limited
Annual Report 2013

%

Estimated costs to
completion

FBHBR IR A

Estimated profit margin
required of the
development

BRAME B TIEE

Capitalisation rate
27N

Average market rental

HamsHE

RMB1,844.0 million
AR#1,844,000,0007T

8.0%

4.8%-6.5%

RMB2.2-RMB8.8 per
square meter per day
GHETIRARK22TLE

AR#8.87

the lower the fair value
fx@E - ATERE
The higher the estimated
costs, the lower the fair
value
BitARS  ATERE
The higher the profit margin
required, the lower the fair
value

B NERAR  ATERE

The higher the capitalisation
rate, the lower the fair value
A ERR - ATERE
The higher the daily rental
value, the higher the
fair value
GRHEREBRR  ATER

ot
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17 Prepaid land lease payments 17 BEFLHBEER
The Group’s interest in leasehold land and land use rights REBREE i [ v A 2 g
representing prepaid operating lease payments and their net AN T HEER - HEREFESTWAT ¢

carrying values is analysed as follows:

Group

A%M
2013 2013 2012 2012
—E-=F —E-=& —E-CF —E-—F
HK$ Million ~ HKS$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEER HEER BEATT BEAT

At 1 January ®—A—H 3,214.4 3,370.0
Currency translation differences ~ [EXBEZH 89.7 25.4
Additions NE 23.5 -
Transfer to properties BHEERERR 2ME
held for sale (670.7) (104.9)
Transfer from investment properties B &MEEA 1.8 -
Disposals HE (0.6) =
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RNBAR - (10.1)
Impairment loss REBE - (0.7)
Amortisation By
- Capitalised in properties under  —ERERHNEEAY
development (43.4) (42.4)
- Charged to income statement ~ —EREZF TR (Fi3E8)
(Note 8) (23.1) (66.5) (22.9) (65.3)
At 31 December Rt=ZRA=+-8 2,601.6 3,214.4
In Mainland China, held on: R BEANREE :
Leases of over 50 years BBs0ELHE 1,339.6 1,323.9
Leases of between NTI0E50F 2 E
10 to 50 years 1,262.0 1,890.5
2,601.6 3,214.4
Certain bank borrowings are secured by the Group’s prepaid N & B BRE(E735,500,0008 L (Z 8 ——
land lease payments with carrying values of HK$735.5 million £ :1,009,300,000/ 70 ) 2 B LB E
(2012: HK$1,009.3 million) (Note 34). HERFARS B THRTER(MFESS) -
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18 Property, plant and equipment 18 ¥k - WBRRHE
Group
158
Electric Water
utility utility Other
Construction plant and plant and plant and Land and
inprogress  equipment  equipment  equipment buildings Total
BHR  fKER  EtRER
EREIE 3 Rt R DHREF &n

HK$ Million ~ HK$ Milion ~ HK$ Milion  HK$ Milion  HKS$ Milion  HKS Million
BEET  ARAT  ARAT  ARAT  ARAT  ARAR

At 1 January 2012 W=2--5-A-H
Cost kA 479 1,229.3 294.2 285.6 334.0 2,191.0
Accumulated depreciation ZHMERAE

and impairment - (242.6) (127.4) (254.2) (148.7) (772.9)
Net book amount REFE 47.9 986.7 166.8 314 185.3 1,418.1

Year ended 31 December 2012 HEZ-E-CE

TZA=T-HLEE

Opening net book amount ENRERE 479 986.7 166.8 314 185.3 14181
Currency translation differences ERREEE 05 7.1 (1.7) - 05 6.4
Additions NE 20.9 0.3 - 38.3 - 59.5
Transfer to investment properties ~ EHERENE - - - - (24.0) (24.0)
Costs adjustment AR - 0.4 - - - 04
Disposals & - - - (1.8) (2.0) (38)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HHBAR - - (156.4) (0.5) (7.1) (164.0)
Impairment loss HEEE - (18.3) = - = (18.3)
Depreciation bk - (55.4) (8.7) (24.4) (79) (96.4)
Closing net book amount EREESE 69.3 920.8 - 430 1448 1177.9
At 31 December 2012 WZZE--£+-f=1-A
Cost B 69.3 12396 - 3156 2813 1905.8
Accumulated depreciation ZEMERAE

and impairment - (318.8) - (272.6) (136.5) (727.9)
Net book amount REFE 69.3 9208 - 430 144.8 11779
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18 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 18 ¥I% - WBERRE @)
Group
150
Electric
utility Other
Construction plant and plant and Land and
inprogress  equipment  equipment buildings Total
RERR  EMEER 1#HR
BRIR B ] B | BF &8
HK$ Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million  HKS Million
BE%R BE%R BEER BEER BEER
Year ended 31 December 2013 HE-E-=F
TZA=T-HLEE
Opening net book amount HNEnEE 69.3 920.8 430 144.8 1,177.9
Currency translation differences EiEEE 47 0.7 0.8 18 320
Additions HE 182.2 0.3 3.1 - 185.6
Transfer from investment properties ERENEEN - - - 28 28
Transfer to investment properties BHERENE - - - (25.4) (25.4)
Disposals if: - - (19) (8.0) (99)
Transfer from/(to) g)/(&1) (53) 53 - - -
Depreciation ik - (56.8) (24.4) (5.4) (86.6)
Closing net book amount EREEHE 250.9 894.3 2.6 1106 1,276.4
At 31 December 2013 RZZ-ZEtZA=t-A
Cost KA 2509 1,280.2 1063 121.3 1,764.7
Accumulated depreciation ZHTERAA
and impairment - (385.9) (85.7) (16.7) (488.3)
Net book amount HEFHE 2509 894.3 206 1106 12764
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18

<y

Property, plant and equipment (continued) 18
In 2012, depreciation expenses for property, plant and
equipment of HK$0.4 million had been capitalised in
properties under development and included as part of the
additions. Depreciation expenses of HK$86.6 million (2012:
HK$96.0 million) have been charged in the income statement
(Note 8).

Certain bank borrowings are secured by certain of the
Group’s properties, plant and equipment with carrying values
of HK$1,224.8 million (2012: HK$1,009.4 million) (Note 34).

The Group’s interests in land and buildings at their carrying
values and the lease terms are analysed as follows:

W - WERRE@®E)
RZE—ZF W #ERZEN
£ [ % 400,000 7T B R & R P ) 3 5
FRERN EARBEZ D c mMITE
f X2 #1 86,600,000 T (=& — = F :
96,000,000 7T ) B £ B 7 & A B (M &
8) °

7N £ [ BR [ (B 1,224,800,000 8 7T ( = &
— — 4 : 1,009,400,0005 7T ) 2 & T ¥
¥ HMERZECIEFLUREE TRTE
K (HIFES4) ©

AEBRIREEEN R L RIBF 2 #
AR

2013 2012
—EB-=F —E——4F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEER BEATT
In Hong Kong, held on: REBFEAR

Leases of between 10 to 50 years NF10E50F 2 HHE 80.1 82.1

In Mainland China, held on: REEAHEE :
Leases of between 10 to 50 years NF10EE0F 2 HE 30.5 35.5
Leases less than 10 years LI10FEZHE - 27.2
110.6 144.8
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Intangible assets 19 BEREE
Group
AEME
Concession Other
rights — intangible
Goodwill toll road assets Total
ST — Hit
[EES W& AR B EE sz
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT BEATT BEAT BEATT
At 1 January 2012 R=—E—=—%—H—H
Cost PR 7R 409.5 1,711.2 541 2,174.8
Accumulated amortisation 2zt & RIE
and impairment (409.5) (508.8) (50.4) (968.7)
Net book amount FREFE - 1,202.4 3.7 1,206.1
Year ended 31 December EHZ—-Z——f+—-A
2012 =+—HLEFE
Opening net book amount  F#JEREFE - 1,202.4 3.7 1,206.1
Currency translation FEHIRE Z5E
differences - 9.3 - 9.3
Additions NE - - 0.4 0.4
Disposal of a subsidiary & —REH B AR - = (3.4) (3.4)
Amortisation (Note 8) 85 (P E8) = (7.6) (0.2) (7.8)
Closing net book amount &R EREFE - 1,204.1 0.5 1,204.6
At 31 December 2012 R-—E——%+=H
E=0
Cost PR AR 409.5 1,724.5 0.8 2,134.8
Accumulated amortisation — ZEH# 8 & RIAE
and impairment (409.5) (520.4) (0.3) (930.2)
Net book amount FREDFE - 1,204.1 0.5 1,204.6
Year ended 31 December HE—-ZT—=%1+=F§
2013 =+—HLFE
Opening net book amount ¥R EFE - 1,204.1 0.5 1,204.6
Currency translation MEH R
differences - 33.8 - 33.8
Amortisation (Note 8) BiH(Kizrs) - (11.5) (0.1) (11.6)
Closing net book amount R EREFE - 1,226.4 0.4 1,226.8
At 31 December 2013 R-ZB—=%5+=A
=1T—H
Cost D% 409.5 1,773.2 0.8 2,183.5
Accumulated amortisation — ZEtH# 84 & RAE
and impairment (409.5) (546.8) (0.4) (956.7)
Net book amount R FE - 1,226.4 0.4 1,226.8
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20 Properties under development 20 BRBYE
Group
KEH
2013 2012
—EB-=F —E—_F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAR AEET
Properties under development comprise: #EEFPYEBTE :
Construction costs and BENANRERFHS
capitalised expenditure 1,635.8 1,425.1
Amortisation of prepaid land TR 1 30 FH & R 8
lease payments 107.7 83.9
1,743.5 1,509.0
The properties under development are all located in the BRPEDIMAFE R -
Mainland China.
At 31 December 2013, certain bank borrowings are secured MN-ZZE—=F+-"A=+—H  XEEHKE
by the Group's properties under development with carrying M 18 1,097,100,000 8 T ( =& — —4F :
values of HK$1,097.1 million (2012: Nil) (Note 34). ) 2 ERPYESERURGSE THRITE

R (MIFE34) ©
21 Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due 21 RAKHEATZRER E UK E D T

from subsidiaries =HIH
2013 2012
—EB-=F —E—_F
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
ER- Y AEET
Unlisted shares, at cost FE LT D - HEAAR 232.7 226.4
Provision for impairment losses BEEERE (62.9) (57.8)
169.8 168.6
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS B &~ B FIA 10,219.3 9,976.5
Provision for impairment losses AR B (361.5) (396.6)
R . 98578 = 9.579.9
10,027.6 9,748.5
The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free, B A RMEHAEIER &8 KRR
and repayable within the next twelve months. Their carrying +_EARNEE - HEEmEHEE A FEE
amounts approximate their fair values. The balances are o ERTIBEUARBE -
mainly denominated in Renminbi.
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages FEMBRARZFFIEHNFE218E225H

218 to 225.
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Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due
from subsidiaries (continued)

Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interests as at 31 December 2013
is HK$2,312.4 million, of which HK$794.3 million is for China
Renewable Energy Investment Limited and HK$1,577.9
million is attributed to Shanghai Guangtian Real Estate
Development Company Limited. The non-controlling interests
in respect of these subsidiary companies are material to the
Group.

Set out below are the summarised financial information
(before inter-company eliminations) for each subsidiary that

has non-controlling interests that are material to the Group.

Summarised income statement for the year ended 31

21

RHBRR2REREWKEAQF

FRIE (1)
BEARFERERS

R-BE—Z=ZF+_F=+—H 2 FEK
HE %5 48 88 /5 2,312,400,00078 7t © H
794,300,000 T AT EI B LR RKES
R A &) % 1,577,900,00078 7L 2R B L5 E
HEMWERZEBRAR - BEZEWNBR
AZEERERHASEMEBERX °

TXHINAFHAKEMEBEKNZIFE
s MBAREBRAREEHANZ
MBERBE -

BE+T-A=+t-BLEEZERREE

December

China Renewable Energy
Investment Limited

Shanghai Guangtian
Real Estate Development
Company Limited

THRELERREERAT LEEARMERRERAR
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=f 2 ZB-=Z=f C—E—_F
HK$ Million  HK$ Million HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BHEBR BEBTL HEBT BEBT
Revenue Wz 113.7 99.5 - -
Profit/(loss)for the year from RERFECEER 2
continuing operations AEERF(FHB) 27.6 (94.7) 1.2 (0.6)
Profit for the year from REBRIEREER
discontinued operations REEZmF - 0.1 - -
Profit/(loss) for the year AEERF/(FHR) 27.6 (94.6) 1.2 (0.6)
Total comprehensive income 2HEMABE 70.7 (86.9) 109.4 345
Profit/(loss) for the year DB EFEE IR R A
allocated to non-controlling AEZRF/(EE)
interests 4% 11.8 (2.2) 0.5 (0.2)
Dividends to non-controlling IR FEE R S AR B
interests - - - -
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21 Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due 21 RHEBATIZREREWKE QT

from subsidiaries (continued) I ()
Material non-controlling interests (continued) BEARFERER(H)
Summarised balance sheet as at 31 December RT-RA=1+—HZEEEEREE

Shanghai Guangtian
China Renewable Energy Real Estate Development

Investment Limited Company Limited
TEELRRREARAR LEEEAEHERBARAE
2013 2012 2013 2012

—®-=Ff -T--F <-B-=f —T——F
HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BB  BEAT  HEBR  BEATR

Non-current assets ERBEE 2,324.5 2,120.4 4,405.8 3,765.7
Current assets MENVEE 377.3 399.3 585.1 906.0
Total assets EERR 2,701.8 2,519.7 4,990.9 4,671.7
Non-current liabilities EREERE 602.2 593.8 701.0 533.3
Current liabilities TENEE 308.2 205.4 345.8 303.8
Total liabilities BERE 910.4 799.2 1,046.8 837.1
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21 Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due 21 RHIBATZEREREWHE QT

from subsidiaries (continued) I ()

Material non-controlling interests (continued) BERFERER (A

Summarised cash flows for the year ended 31 December BEt+t-HA=1+—HLEEZRERER
z=

Shanghai Guangtian
China Renewable Energy  Real Estate Development

Investment Limited Company Limited
TEIBLRRREARAT LEEREMHERZERAR
2013 2012 2013 2012

—E-=F —ET—_F —E-=F —E——F
HK$ Million HK$ Million  HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAR BEET BEAT BEAT

Net cash generated from/ e RS,/ (FTA)

(used in) operating activities REFE 109.1 (48.1) 247.8 (257.9)
Net cash (used in)/generated BAEEE(FTA),/ 5

from investing activities HEFE (45.0) 69.2 (507.2) (236.9)
Net cash (used in)/generated BEES(FA),/FiB

from financing activities H& 380 (48.5) (117.5) (322.6) 297.2

Net increase/(decrease) in cash B4 RBELZEY
and cash equivalents #in,/ () a8 15.6 (96.4) (582.0) (197.6)
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22 Interests in associated companies 22 REERTIZER
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEER BEATT
Group’s share of net assets AEEEGEEFE 1,186.3 1,032.6
Amount due from an associated JE Lk — B & 1 R RO RE
company, net 139.3 139.3
1,325.6 1,171.9
Amount due from an associated company is unsecured, PR —REIE A R R R RER
interest free and not repayable within the next twelve months. BERRRTZEAANERE  BEREE
The carrying amount approximates its fair values. The BHNFEEE - ARFEUABTES -

balance is denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

The following financial information represents the Group'’s THIE % E B R AL B S HELEE A
aggregate share of revenue and results of associated A (EHMAIELTEHE) 2 W mEEER
companies, all of which are unlisted, and is summarised as U
below:
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HKS Million  HK$ Million
BEET BEATT
Revenue e 325.9 296.3
Profit before income tax Fir 45 %5 Al s 7 119.3 134.7
Income tax (expense)/credit Fris®i (i) ke (18.8) 13.3
Profit for the year REE A 100.5 148.0
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Interests in associated companies (continued)
Material associated companies

Hong Kong Construction SMC Development Limited, CECIC
HKC (Gansu) Wind Power Company Limited and CECIC HKC
Wind Power Company Limited are the associated companies
that are material to the Group.

Details of principal associated companies are set out on page
226.

Set out below are the summarised financial information for
the material associated companies. The information reflects
the amounts presented in the financial statements of the
associated companies adjusted for differences in accounting
policies between the Group and the associated companies.

Summarised income statement for the year ended 31
December

22 REERT 2R #E)

ERBERT
EERRBESERERAA  RHEER
(HR RN BEARQ A RTEHEERZR
NBEB(CRILBRARAHAEETNEE
ERZBERT]

TRBERA ZFBHNF2268 °
TXEHINERBERR ZHBERHE -
EREHRBREBERARNTBRERAZ

SV TREE - WAR LA B B2 A R 2 ]
SRR ERIELRE -

BEt-A=+t-HLEFEZERREE

Hong Kong Construction SMC  CECIC HKC (Gansu) Wind ~ CECIC HKC Wind Power
Development Limited Power Company Limited Company Limited Total
ERERNRER HERER (H8) hHRERANEE

ARAR EA3EERAR (&) BRAF ]
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Z§-zf -T--f ZB-zf “§--f Z§-zf -T--F ZB-zf "I-F
HKS Million ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Million ~ HK$ Milion ~ HKS Million ~ HK$ Milion ~ HKS Million  HKS Millon
BB BEET  EERR  REEr  EEER BB EEER BERR
Revenue Y 106.6 89.2 240.2 190.7 293.4 2115 640.2 574
Profit for the year RERER 5.0 1282 695 531 1196 1626 244 3439
Other comprehensive income Afp2EKA 3024 - n7 57 23 59 4361 116
Total comprehensive income 2ENAEE 1Al 128.2 912 588 141.9 168.5 680.2 3555
Dividends from the associated companies BENTRE RS 3.1 59.0 183 112 605 572 1139 1274
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22 Interests in associated companies (continued) 22 REERNTZERE)
Material associated companies (continued) BEARBE QT (F)
Summarised balance sheet as at 31 December RT-A=+—BHRZEEEGBREE

Hong Kong Construction SMC  CECIC HKC (Gansu) Wind ~ CECIC HKC Wind Power

Development Limited Power Company Limited Company Limited Total
BEERENLR HERER (18) hHEERANRE
BRAR ERERRAT (%¥) BRAR 3]
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
“§-zf _5--F C-§-zf -5z Zg-zf  “F-- Zg-zf Z5-C

HKS Million ~ HKS Miion ~ HKS Million ~ HK$ Milion ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Million HKS Milion
FEdn  BEET  EARRT  AEET  AERR BEET  REER  EEEm

Non-current assets FheEE 1,576.5 1,129.8 1,628.3 1,693.7 1474.7 15132 4,679.5 4336.7
Current assets THEE 95.6 113 401.6 569.3 3105 603.0 807.7 1,283.6
Total assels HEER 16724 12411 20299 22630 1,785.2 21162 5487.2 56203
Non-current liabilties FRagE 7023 5511 - - - - 7023 5511
Current liabilities FHERE 65.3 1448 1,220.1 1,498.5 958.5 1,279.9 2,243.9 29232
Total liabilities BEER 767.6 6959 1,2201 1,498.5 958.5 1,279.9 2,946.2 34743
Net assets BERE 9045 5452 809.8 764.5 826.7 836.3 25410 2.146.0
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information BB ERBENEREASBRE SR
presented to the carrying amount of the Group’s interests in ENAERNREESR -

its material associated companies:

Hong Kong Construction SMC  CECIC HKC (Gansu) Wind  CECIC HKC Wind Power

Development Limited Power Company Limited Company Limited Total
BEERERLR HERER (18) hHEERANRE
BRAR E¥ERRAT (&%) BRAR ]
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Z§-zf -“5--F CZ§-zf -5z Zg-zf  “F- Zg-zF Z5-C

HKS Million ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Million  HKS Milion ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Million HKS Milion
FEEn  BEET  EARRT  AEET  AERR BEET  BEER  EEEm

Net assets AERE 904.5 545.2 809.8 T64.5 826.7 836.3 25410 2.146.0
Group’s share of net asses REEERAESE 3618 2181 3239 3058 3307 3345 1,0164 858.4
Amount due from an associated B -FRE A ETE

company, net 1393 139.3 - = - = 1393 139.3
Carrying amount FafE 501.1 3574 323.9 305.8 330.7 3345 1,155.7 997.7
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Interests in associated companies (continued)
Material associated companies (continued)

The Group has interests in a number of individually immaterial
associated companies. The following table analyses, in
aggregate, the share of profit and other comprehensive
income and carrying amount of these associated companies.

22 REERT 2R #E)

EARBERNT(H)
REBRNZ EE B IEE AN 2 QB %
B - TRABBEZFHE QRGN
REMEEBARREENDHT

2013 2012

—E-=F —E——4F

HKS$ Million HK$ Million

BEBER BEATT

Share of profit for the year JEAG A v A 2.9 10.5

Share of other comprehensive income FE(RE b 2 E YA 4.7 1.2

Share of total comprehensive income SR EB AR 7.6 11.7
Carrying amount of interests in these RZEHERR 2R

associated companies BREE 169.9 174.2

Interests in joint ventures REBNTZREZS

2013 2012

—E-=F —T——F

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEER BEATT

Group's share of net assets rEERGEERE 2,060.4 1,928.9

Amount due from a joint venture e —EE & A RIFIA 158.4 154.0

2,218.8 2,082.9

Amount due from a joint venture is unsecured, interest
free and not repayable within the next twelve months. The
carrying amount approximates its fair values. The balance is
denominated in Renminbi.

There are no material contingent liabilities relating to the
Group’s interests in the joint ventures and no contingent
liabilities within the respective entities as at 31 December
2013 and 2012.

fEY—Ra 2 RRIFIAL MR - RER
BARART —EARNEE - BEREE
HENTHERE -  ERBUAREEE -

R =FR-_FT——F+=-A=1+—
A WEEEAESEREGEARIZERY
BASARAE  MAEBAEERRSABIR
R RALE -
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23

" 182

Interests in joint ventures (continued)

The following financial information represents the Group’s
aggregate share of results of the joint ventures and is
summarised as below:

REERT 2R (&)
THHBERRMAEES LEES SR
A7 EEBRT

2013 2012

—E-=F —T——F

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BHEEBRT BEBT

Profit/(loss) before income tax FS SRR, (E518) 102.2 (1.5)
Income tax expense st (26.3) (0.8)
Profit/(loss) for the year REERFN(EE) 75.9 (2.3)

Material joint venture

Shanghai Jingang North Bund Real Estate Company Limited
is the joint venture that is material to the Group.

The Group has interests in a number of individually immaterial
joint ventures. The share of results of these joint ventures for
the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 and the share
of their carrying amounts as at 31 December 2013 and 2012
are nil.

Details of the principal joint ventures are set out on page 227.

Set out below are the summarised financial information for
the joint venture that is material to the Group. The information
reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements
of the joint venture adjusted for differences in accounting
policies between the Group and the joint venture.

HKC (Holdings) Limited
Annual Report 2013
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Interests in joint ventures (continued)
Material joint venture (continued)

Summarised income statement for the year ended 31

23 REEQNT 2R H)
BRAE DT (&)
BE+-A=t+-BLEEZERERE

December

Shanghai Jingang North Bund

Real Estate Company Limited

EESBIIMEBEERRAT

2013 2012

—E—-=F —E——4F

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEER BEATT

Revenue Wz - -

Fair value adjustments on wEMEZ NTFE
investment properties T 421.5 12.8
Depreciation and amortisation e M g (11.0) (10.7)
Interest income M EUA 0.2 0.1
Interest expense MEFRX - -
Profit/(loss) before income tax FrsRiaTE R, (&) 408.9 (6.0)
Income tax expenses s (105.2) (3.2)
Profit/(loss) for the year REERF(EE) 303.7 (9.2)
Other comprehensive income Ef2mEmBEA 239.7 64.3
Total comprehensive income ZHEA LR 543.4 55.1
Dividend from a joint venture —RHaE ARE ZRE - =
mempepaRsa 0 OO
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23 Interests in joint ventures (continued) 23 REeENTIZER#)
Material joint venture (continued) EXRGE QT (E)
Summarised balance sheet as at 31 December RT-ZA=+—HZEEEGEREE

Shanghai Jingang North Bund
Real Estate Company Limited
EESBIANEEXERAA

2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——4F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BESBT BEETT
Non-current assets IERBNEE 12,567.5 11,077.7
Current assets mBEE
Cash and cash equivalents Re kREEEY 9.2 14.5
Others HAt 1.8 2.6
Total current assets MENEERE 11.0 17.1
Non-current liabilities EmEats
Financial liabilities (excluding trade and ﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁ(T\%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ
other payables and provisions) R B FEAS 50 OA B Bt 1,727.6 1,291.2
Others HAth 1,364.5 1,223.0
Total non-current liabilities FRBEERR 3,092.1 2514.2
Current liabilities mEaE
Financial liabilities (excluding trade and £ @& & (T BEEMNEXR
other payables and provisions) Ko EL At FEASF KA R B 485 ) - =
Others HAt 1,244.8 865.0
Total current liabilities MEB B 1,244.8 865.0
Net assets BEEFME 8,241.6 7,715.6
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Interests in joint ventures (continued) 23
Material joint venture (continued)

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information
presented to the carrying amount of the Group’s interest in its
material joint venture:

REERTZER ®)
EASEQE (M)
FRERNBENWRRAEMNEAS Y
ARIER I REEYIR -

Shanghai Jingang North Bund
Real Estate Company Limited

B IMNEBEEBRAR
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——4F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBETR BEAT
Net assets BESFE 8,241.6 7,715.6
Group’s share of net assets AEEERGEEFE 2,060.4 1,928.9
Amount due from a joint venture e —FE& & A RIFKIA 158.4 154.0
Carrying amount BREE 2,218.8 2,082.9
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24 Available-for-sale financial assets 24 MHtHETHEE
Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——4F
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEBAT BEAT
At 1 January Rn—A—H 27.5 31.8
Currency translation differences bR E = 0.5 0.3
Disposal i (2.8) (6.4)
Net gains recognised in equity (Note 33) AEZEHER 2 W2k %58
(H$5£33) 0.9 1.8
At 31 December Rt+=-—A=+—8H 26.1 27.5
Available-for-sale financial assets AR ESRIEE
include the following: BIETFIE
Unlisted securities FE ETRE2
Equity securities — PRC RAFESH—F 17.5 17.7
Club debentures 2HESH 8.6 9.8
26.1 27.5

Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in the
following currencies:

AfEESREENTIIERE

2013 2012

—E-=F —T——F

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BHEETR BEATT

Hong Kong dollars BT 8.1 9.3
Renminbi AR 18.0 18.2
26.1 27.5
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25 Financial instruments by category

25 RERESsz2ERIA

Group
rEE
Assets at
fair value Available-
Loans through for-sale
and profit or financial
receivables loss assets Total
BAFEE
EXR EBEHER AEHE
BWR JRZEE SEMEE W
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBIT BEBT BEBTT BEBTT
Assets as per consolidated ZEEEEBERZ

balance sheet &E
At 31 December 2012 R-E——4F

+=-—A=+—8
Available-for-sale financial ~ At HE S EE

assets (Note 24) (Fff5E24) - = 27.5 27.5
Financial assets at fair BATEEERRT

value through profit or R oMEE

loss (Note 27) (ffF5E27) = 14.1 = 141
Amount due from an B —REgE T

associated company, net SRIHFEE

(Note 22) (H5E22) 139.3 - - 139.3
Amount due from a joint Bl —HEEE AR

venture (Note 23) A (f3E23) 154.0 = = 154.0
Trade and other receivables &&=+ &9 FELL

under current assets BR 7 N H b IR

(Note 28) _ (Kfzxe8) 586.2 - - 586.2
Restricted cash (Note 30) SR #lI3R & (I EE30) 314.1 - - 314.1
Cash and cash equivalents R4 RIRELEEBY)

(Note 31) (FfF5E31) 2,317.9 = = 2,317.9
Total 4% 3,611.5 14.1 27.5 3,553.1
At 31 December 2013 R-T—=%F

+—A=+—H
Available-for-sale financial At HESEE

assets (Note 24) (fiz¥24) - - 26.1 26.1
Financial assets at fair BAFEEBERRY

value through profit or R SmEE

loss (Note 27) (ffFE27) - 14.5 - 14.5
Amount due from an FEU— B & R R

associated company, net SRIHFRE

(Note 22) (Ff5E22) 139.3 - - 139.3
Amount due from a joint i Gl =N

venture (Note 23) KA (fzE23) 158.4 - - 158.4
Trade and other receivables REIEETAIFELL

under current assets B 70 N H At JE R

(Note 28) (H5E28) 285.5 - - 285.5
Other receivables under IEmENE EFH

non-current assets H b fE U 5k

(Note 28(g)) (FIzE28(g)) 24.3 - - 24.3
Restricted cash (Note 30) %KE%'HE%%WE?%) 1,064.0 - - 1,064.0
Cash and cash equivalents IR& RIRESEEY)

(Note 31) (B$5E31) 1,364.3 - - 1,364.3
Total k) 3,035.8 14.5 26.1 3,076.4

ERRR(ER)ARAT 157 (’
—E ey



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

ARE PR R M (4]

25 Financial instruments by category (continued)

25 ZEREszEeRTHE @)

Group
AEE
Other
Liabilities at financial
fair value liabilities at
through profit amortised
or loss cost Total
BAYE R
EBRHER BATTEZ
Sz EE  HttemaE BE
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEATT BEAT BEATL
Liabilities as per consolidated GEEEBBRZER
balance sheet
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——%+-A=+—H
Borrowings (Note 34) EEAGERD) = 2,991.8 2,991.8
Derivative liability (Note 37) PTETAAB(HIST) 2.2 = 2.2
Trade and other payables (Note 35) B 1< BR 5 e A B £t % (FT3E35) 260.5 1,321.8 1,582.3
Other non-current payables Hib IR ENR = 13.7 13.7
Total k) 262.7 4,327.3 4,590.0
At 31 December 2013 RZBE-=F+-fA=1+—
Borrowings (Note 34) R (MsE34) - 3,516.9 3,516.9
Derivative liability (Note 37) TET A ARG (HEST) - - -
Trade and other payables (Note 35) FEABE 3R R Ho At B (3R (Fd7E35) 279.0 1,674.2 1,953.2
Other non-current payables HA3EREE IR - 13.7 13.7
Total ks 279.0 5,204.8 5,483.8
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25 Financial instruments by category (continued)

25 RERESZ2ERMIA®)

Company
¥INNC|
Loans and
receivables
ERRERR
HK$ Million
BHEBT
Assets as per balance sheet EEEBRZEE
At 31 December 2012 N-_E—=—F+=-A=+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries, B BR 1 1 1% FE U BT /BB R B2 58
net of provision (Note 21) (F¥5E21) 9,579.9
Other receivables (Note 28) H fth FEYR (FI5E28) 1.7
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 31) BekFeESEW(MEE3) 93.5
Total 4858 9,675.1
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=ZA=+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries, EHBR B & R B A R 2 5IE
net of provision (Note 21) (KzE21) 9,857.8
Other receivables (Note 28) H A e YR (Mg 5E28) 0.7
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 31) RERREFEBW(HFE3T) 39.2
Total k] 9,897.7
Company
¥ /N
Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
RN
BRASTEZ
HtemasE
HK$ Million
BEET
Liabilities as per balance sheet EEEBRZAE
At 31 December 2012 R-—E——F+_-_A=+—H
Other payables (Note 35) H b FES SR (M 5ES5) 10.9
At 31 December 2013 R-ZZE—=%+=-A=+—8H
Other payables (Note 35) H b A R (M 5ES5) 3.9

ERBRE(ERERAT 100 o
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26 Properties held for sale 26 1FSHERBZYE
At 31 December 2013, certain properties held for sale with RZE—=F+-A=+—0 ' REAER
carrying value of HK$991.4 million (2012: HK$111.9 million) 991,400,000/ L 2 & TIESHE B 2 W
was pledged as securities for the Group’s borrowings (Note ¥(=ZZ— =% :111,900,000/8 L) fE A A
34). SEFTEER 2 B (FIE34) -

27 Financial assets at fair value through profitor loss 27 BEAFPEEBEZRRIIRZSEMEE

Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
HEER BEABT
Equity securities: e
- Listed in Hong Kong at market value ~ —&# ki @ iRH{A 0.2 0.2
— Unlisted —JFLEm 14.3 13.9
14.5 141
The fair value of equity securities is based on the current bid BAFESZ AFEDRERGEE B TS
price quoted in the market at the balance sheet date. MEREANEE -
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Financial Statements (continued)

28 Prepayments, trade and other receivables 28 FEMNR - EWERRRHAmER

Group Company
r&EE PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-Z=f —T—CF —E-=f —E——F
HKS$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEBT BEBT HEBT BEAT
Non-current R E
Prepayments and other receivables  FB{ 3 & E 4 fE Uk
(Note g) (FtzEg) 466.4 - - -
Current RE
Trade receivables FEUER SR 86.4 139.2 - =
Less: provision for impairment of A RO (E B
receivables (10.9) (12.4) - -
Trade receivables - net FEUR S 3 75.5 126.8 - =
Bills receivable A ES 2.0 3.1 - =
Retention receivables FEBIRE 3R 15.7 20.1 - =
Prepaid taxes BT 12.0 1.9 - =
Prepayments, other receivables and ~ FfT3% « H it &
deposits, net of provisions Be (BMKEE) 178.9 418.9 0.7 1.7
Gross amounts due from customers for EREF &K TI2FIE
contract works (Note 29) B (IHE29) 1.4 5.4 - =
285.5 586.2 0.7 1.7
751.9 586.2 0.7 1.7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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28 Prepayments, trade and other receivables 28 FENH  r EWERERKRHEMEKR

(continued) (#&)

Notes: PsE

(a) The ageing analysis of trade receivables by the Group’s (a) REFHER  BRASBERGERBEELEN
revenue recognition policy at year end, net of provision for R ERERERRRZRERSTAT

impairment, was as follows:

Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—-= —_F—=
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEER BEBTT
0 to less than 2 months = PR2M@A 27.0 24.2
2 to less than 6 months 2ZL6fE A 8.7 7.7
6 to less than 12 months 62 121E A 2.3 14.4
12 months and more 1218 A RIAE 37.5 80.5
75.5 126.8
The ageing analysis of trade receivables by invoice due date at REHER - RERIEA SIS HENBRR
year end, net of provision for impairment, was as follows: EREEEBKERRZRERITAT
Group
AEH
2013 2012
—E-= —E——F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEERT BEBTT
0 to less than 2 months ZEDR2(EA 54.9 83.6
2 to less than 6 months 2% b iA6fE A - 1.3
6 to less than 12 months 6= 121E A 1.6 2.1
12 months and more 1218 A RIAE 19.0 39.8
75.5 126.8
(i)  The Group’s credit terms for the contracting business (i) AEEENEBZEEERTIRB—KE
are negotiated with and entered into under normal ¥EREEEFEFHERER - S5E
commercial terms with its trade customers. Various group RAZEEBER G EEETI5E KR AT
companies have different credit policies depending on EEBME - SRS 2 EEIRE R
the requirements of their markets and the businesses IR BEMNENIEREE -

which they operate. Retention money receivables in
respect of contracting services are settled in accordance
with the terms of respective contracts.
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28 Prepayments, trade and other receivables
(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(a)

(b)

(continued)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

For alternative energy business, the Group allows a credit
period of 30 days to its trade customers. The electricity
tariff receivables due from the government have to go
through an approval procedure before issuing invoices,
which the related receivables of which invoices were
not issued as at 31 December 2013 of HK$36.1 million
(2012: HK$66.8 million) are classified as 0 to less than 2
months in the ageing analysis. Trade receivables that are
less than 30 days past due are not considered impaired.
As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables of HK$16.3
million (2012: HK$21.7 million) on alternative energy
business were past due but not impaired. These relate to
the government subsidies on the electricity tariff which
have not been allocated and distributed. Based on past
experience and industry practice, these tariff premiums
are generally paid in 6 to 12 months from the date of the
sales recognition. The amount included HK$14.8 million
(2012: HK$19.8 million) trade receivables on alternative
energy business being past due over 12 months. No
impairment has been provided for these receivables as
the balances are not in dispute and there is no indication
that the amount will not be collectible.

Other than alternative energy business, trade receivables
that are less than 12 months past due are not considered
impaired. As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables of
HK$4.2 million (2012: HK$20.0 million) were past due but
not impaired. These relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no recent history of default.
No other receivables were past due or impaired.

Other than alternative energy business, there is no
concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
receivables, as the Group has a large number of
customers.

As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables of HK$10.9 million
(2012: HK$12.4 million) were impaired. A total provision of
HK$10.9 million (2012: HK$12.4 million) was made against the
receivables at the year end date.

28 FEMNXK - BURRRRH i B UK
(&)
BEE

(&)

(i) HEREREBME @ AEEM
HEZRFPRHAMIBZEE
B BUMBFEERFA L EZA
BARBEY N_T—=F1+—
A=t BXAFAEHBEZNHER
W 3% I8 /536,100,000 7T ( = &
— — 4 : 66,800,000 7T ) R IR
BOMADBATELR2M@A -
#HI DR300 B 2 B U BR R 1E
WEEE WN-_E—=%+-A8
=+—HB BREREBHEK
fF 71 16,300,000/ L (=& — =
£ : 21,700,000/ 7T ) B 8 HiB K
WA WERBEBDEARRDE R
IRERNBNEEM/ME - EXBE
KERITEEN  WEEBHE
—MREEERBPEF6E12
BAZNM - ZeBERIEOHER
1218 A 2 B 88 R 3 75 8 W AR 51
14,800,000 L (=T — =4 :
19,800,000/ 7T ) ° AR Z AT
FREMFE  UESRBEREH
SEASWURE - BRI E I S
W SRIB 1 R E R -

(i) BRTEBREREBLIN - R12(EA
ANEER 2 FEAR BRI ZERE - R=
T—=F+—-"A=+—0 28
1B £ 5 (B 2 FE WL AR 30 & 4,200,000
B (ZZ— 4 : 20,000,000/
TC) o Lt AR AR B B I AR 2R
FESRZ BB B o HAbEY
SRAY 4 38 B SR H IR A ©

(iv) BREBEREREBSIN  BAKEEREF
REBTD - HEMBEFLBERSE
Rz R o

R-TE—=%F+-"A=+—H A%
10,900,000/ 7T (== — —4F : 12,400,000
BT 2 EWRBR R HIRRE - RELEB
JE UL 3R B 1 H # #8 & 510,900,000 7T
(ZZ— =% : 12,400,000/ 7C) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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28 Prepayments, trade and other receivables 28 FENH  r EWERERKRHEMEKR

(continued) (#&)
Notes: (continued) PiteE « ()
(c) The carrying amounts of the Group’s prepayments, trade and (c) AKBZIEMR - KRR LK
other receivables are denominated in the following currencies: ZAREEN TS SHE -
2013 2012
—_E2-= —ZE—=
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEER BEBTT
Hong Kong dollars BIT 8.9 9.9
Renminbi AR 743.0 576.2
US dollars =TT - 0.1
751.9 586.2
(d) There is a bank borrowing secured against a trade receivable (d) AEBEFEM{E40,900,0008T(=_F—=
with carrying value of HK$40.9 million (2012: HK$70.7 million) 4 : 70,700,000/ 7T ) 2 FEUL R TR B R
(Note 34). LABR{S —IBERATIE R (P 7E34) ©
(e)  Movements on the provision for impairment of trade receivables (e) MUIRFRZBERBESHNT
are as follows:
2013 2012
—E—= —F—=
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEER BEBT
At 1 January ®n—A—AH 12.4 11.6
Currency translation differences PEH e =58 0.2 0.1
(Write back of provision for)/
provision for impairment losses REER (BRI ) B (0.5) 1.6
Trade receivables written off FRMEE AT Y E 2
during the year as uncollectible JEUBR X (1.2) (0.9)
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—H 10.9 12.4
(f)  The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the () RBEARZESEERRAS LS HERE
carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned above. Wk 2 BRTEME o ZNER (B0 A8 45 A (] 4 47
The Group does not hold any collateral as security. mAEFELR o
(g) Included in prepayments and other receivables were (i) (9) T ATERFR K H i fE UK A (i) 5E 4 3
deposits held for property resettlement schemes of HK$409.3 Bt E3F A 2 7] & 409,300,000 7 T
million (2012: Nil) and (ii) input value-added taxation ZE—F ) R(i)EICERIEET
recoverable of HK$24.3 million (2012: Nil) arising from 24,300,000 (=T —=F : &) - ]}
purchases of property, plant and equipment. REBEWE - MBS RRE -
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29 Construction contracts in progress 29 HEEIRBEN

Group
rEE
2013 2012
—Eg-= —E——4F
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEEBETR BBATT
Contract costs incurred plus attributable & #IEKZR I 2 FE 2 FEAG 358 Tk
profits recognised less provision for Al E R E R
foreseeable losses 1,455.0 1,568.9
Progress payments received and B B YGE FE 3R
receivable (1,453.6) (1,563.5)
1.4 54
Representing: K&k
Gross amounts due from customers for 5+ A FEUBRZX & H b FE UL F 2
contract works included in trade and EUWEESHTRIIBLE
other receivables (Note 28) (FzE28) 1.4 5.4
30 Restricted cash 30 FRHRS
Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——4F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET AEBTT
Restricted cash represents: R HI3R & 1
Deposits placed with banks BN ZRIBITZTFR
— for securing banking facilities —BAREETMEER
granted to certain buyers of BRBITRE
properties of the Group 3.2 5.2
— for securing performance bonds —MHUS B ARE - 1.1
Escrow account relating to EERE SR —EERER
an alternative energy project TEH - 1.0
Escrow accounts relating to various SERP IR ZIAYFEER
deposits held for property FrElC ZIHE]
development projects 1,060.8 306.8
1,064.0 314.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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31 Cash and cash equivalents 31 RERBLEEY
Group Company
FEHE ¥ NG|
2013 2012 2013 2012

—E-=F —E—CF —E-=f “T—_fF
HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million
XY BEABT EX-Y:v BEBT

Cash and cash equivalents BeRHFEEENMRE

comprises the following: IATEIE
Cash at bank and in hand RORFRESE 872.1 1,144.6 1.4 2.1
Short-term bank deposits RHRITEK 1,556.2 1,487.4 37.8 91.4
2,428.3 2,632.0 39.2 93.5
Less: Restricted cash (Note 30) & : SR I3 £ (Ki7£30) (1,064.0) (314.1) - =
1,364.3 2,317.9 39.2 93.5
Group Company
rEE b N/NE|
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=f T _-HF ZB-=§ CTC—fF
HK$ Million  HK$ Million HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BHERER BEAT HEAR BEAET
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRALEENR
and restricted cash ZR R
(a) Placed in banksinthe PRC: (a) RPERFITEE -
- denominated in Renminbi —-IARBLEE 1,835.1 1,393.1 - -
- denominated in —\BTEE
Hong Kong dollars 143.0 279.2 - -
- denominated in US dollars —ETEE 3.3 558.3 - -
(b) Placed in banks in (b) REBEIBFITHFE :
Hong Kong:
- denominated in Renminbi ~UARBEE 339.8 301.1 37.8 91.4
- denominated in — BT EE
Hong Kong dollars 105.9 98.5 1.3 1.6
- denominated in US dollars —UETHE 1.2 1.8 0.1 0.5

2,428.3 2,632.0 39.2 93.5
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31 Cash and cash equivalents (continued) 31 RERBSEEY(AE)
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as REFEH 2 BEEREFERAT
follows:
2013 2012
ZE-ZE “E--F
HKS$ Uss RMB HKS US$ RMB
T R N B eI ARE
Short-term bank deposits BERIER 0.01%-2.91% - 0.35%-3.23% 0.01%-2.15% 0.71%-0.81% 0.35%-3.15%
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date NREEAHES R =ZERR A EXFT
is the carrying value of the cash and bank balances stated g7 I 4 RRITAAEEEE o
above.
The short-term bank deposits of the Group and the Company AREBRAARIEHETERZREIER
have original maturities of three months or less. B=EAKAT -
Cash and short-term deposits of HK$1,981.4 million (2012: IR M2 HATFR01,981,400,000/8 L (=&
HK$2,230.6 million) are held in the Mainland China and are — — 4 : 2,230,600,000% 7T) R B A
subject to local exchange control regulations, under which H o NS M INE B SR BIPTRR PR o 3% 45
the balances could not be exported freely out of the Mainland BiReERAaETPE - HPBRAHTEEE
China. The repatriation of fund out from the Mainland China & - JEIRIR IR T O] AL DA R B o H s e
is possibly conducted by way of dividends or other means as 1T o
complied to the regulations.
32 Share capital 32 BRZA
Number of Ordinary
shares shares
ROHA EER
Note (Million) HK$ Million
(i3 (B&) BERT
Authorised EE
At 1 January and 31 December 2012, R-E——F—f—Hk
1 January and 31 December 2013 +-A=+—BUR
—T—=5-F-AkK
+-A=f+—-H 30,000.0 300.0
Issued and fully paid ERIRAR
At 1 January 2012 R-ZE—=—5—F—H 10,833.6 108.3
Issue of scrip dividend shares BITLARRA B 5 (a) 408.3 41
At 31 December 2012, 1 January and RZE——F+-A=+-H"
31 December 2013 —Z-=4-H-HK
+=A=+-A 11,241.9 1124
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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32 Share capital (continued)
Notes:

(a) The Company offered to its shareholders a scrip dividend
alternative under which the shareholders could elect to receive
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in lieu of cash dividend during
the following special cash dividend declaration and ordinary
shares were issued in accordance with the scrip dividend
scheme.

All ordinary shares issued during the year ranked pari passu in
all respects with the existing shares.

32 A (#)

GEE

(a)

REEMEBREHRUABRKSARE @ &
it - BRI T 54 BER & 8 KA AT
BUWEER0.0BTH T BRAER 2K
B TRRRBARK ST EIT -

FBFREITEBREMA S EER AR
[ZEZCICIES: i vAL

Number of
new ordinary Issue price
shares issued per share Date of issue
BT
HEERBA gRETE BTRE
HK$
BT
19 July 2012
Second special dividend for the year ended 31 December 2011 “E-F
HE-T——FT-A=T—HILFEE-RHRIRE 172,213,833 0.323 tA+hE
24 December 2012
Special dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012 &
BE-T-—F+-A=T-ALFERRIRE 236,083,717 0.292 +-A=t+mA
Total scrip dividend shares issued during the year ended 31 December 2012
BEZZ-—ET-A=T-HILEEERTURRERNEHK 408,297,550
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32 Share capital (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(b)

Share options are granted to employees, senior executives or
officers, managers, directors or consultants of any members of
the Group or any Invested Entity.

The exercise price must be at least the higher of

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant;

(i)  the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and

(iii)  the nominal value of a share.

An option must be exercised within ten years from the date on
which it is granted or such shorter period as the Board may
specify at the time of grant. An offer of the grant of an option
shall remain open for acceptance for a period of ten business
days from the date of offer and a consideration of HK$1 must be
paid upon acceptance.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and
their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

32 A (#)
M : ()

(b)

KRR RAAEEE T ERKE A RSRE
ERZES SRTBRARRIEASR -
KI2 - EEREMX HEARE -

TRERARIRATRSE

(iy BOHRFELBREESHEHRE
RATSIURTIE

(i) BOHEEROAHMAESXAE
Bt 32 P 8 H B R AT ST
B &

(iiiy RRHEE o

WRRAAR B B e R E T
SRR B 1600 2 S BB RIPUATIE - IR
2R BT QR A R A
% AR NRE DRER - BEANA
VBT -

R 178 2 B IR B B BT 1 17
EREHNT

Average
exercise price
in HK dollar Number of
per share options
FR¥H
BITITEE BREHE
At 1 January 2012 R-_ZE——F—H—H 1.168 185,079,000
Adjustment for issue of scrip BITARRAR B AR (D 2 FAE
dividend shares - 17,777,601
Lapsed 1 1.255 (12,574,255)
At 31 December 2012 WZZE—=%+=-A=+—H 1.053 190,282,346
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=F—F— 1.053 190,282,346
Granted B 0.269 107,500,000
Cancelled/lapsed - Py 1.014 (25,270,082)
At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=F+=—A=+—H 0.747 272,512,264

The options outstanding at 31 December 2013 had a weighted
average remaining contractual life of approximately 3.37 years.

RZF—=F+Z-A=+—HHEX
THREZBREREE NEFHEOR
BREKR3.37F o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

ARE PR R M (4]

32 Share capital (continued) 32 RA&(#)

Notes: (continued) PiteE « ()

(b)  (continued) (b) (#&)
Number of outstanding share options at 31 December 2013 and R_E—=Z=FR_ZFT—=-F+=-A1

2012 are as follows:

ST BEARTEZIBRENT

Exercise price

per share At 31 December At 31 December
Date of grant Exercise period (adjusted) 2013 2012

BRITERE R=B-Z% R=B-=F
RHAH Cigid- (&#®%) +=A=+t-H +=A=+-8H

(HK$)
(#B7)

15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 14 December 2016 1.066 7,097,698 7,630,858
—EEXE+-A+EA “EEHE+-A+REAZE - ~F+-A1WA
15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 14 December 2016 1.066 12,162,732 12,962,473
“EEF+-At+RA “ZE\G+-A+REAZE-T-~Ft-FA1+EA
15 December 2006 15 December 2009 to 14 December 2016 1.066 11,662,901 12,995,804
“ZRRETZATER —EENFT-ATRBE=E-~F+=AtHEA
3 July 2007 15 December 2007 to 2 July 2017 1.726 6,664,518 6,664,518
—Z2Z+F+A=H ZETEET-ATRAR=S—tELAZA
3 July 2007 15 December 2008 to 2 July 2017 1.726 3,332,259 3,332,259
“ZZ+ELA=H ZEE\FTZRTRAEZZ—+tELAZA
3 July 2007 15 December 2009 to 2 July 2017 1.726 3,332,259 3,332,259
“ETtFELA=A “ZENF+-A+RAZE-F—tF A=A
1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 31 January 2018 1.242 16,661,271 19,860,238
—ZZ\F-A—-H ZEENFZRA-BEZT\§—A=1—H
1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 31 January 2018 1.242 24,991,920 29,790,371
“ZT)\EZR—AH ZZ-Z4-f-BE-F\§—A=1—H
1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 31 January 2018 1.242 41,653,213 49,650,633
“EZ\F=ZA-H —Z——%-f-BEZT-\§-A=1-H
1 September 2010 1 September 2011 to 31 August 2013 0.443 - 6,609,440
“2-TFnA—H —F——%hA-BEZZ-=4\A=1—-H
1 September 2010 1 September 2012 to 31 August 2014 0.443 9,914,160 9,914,160
“Z2-ZFNA-H - ZFNA-BEZT-WENA=T—A
1 September 2010 1 September 2013 to 31 August 2015 0.443 16,523,601 16,523,601
“Z-ZF7A-A 2 =5nA-REZZF-RAFN\A=1—A
10 June 2011 10 June 2012 to 9 June 2014 0.327 2,203,146 2,203,146
—2—%xAtAH ——EXATAZE-_ZT-WESANEB
10 June 2011 10 June 2013 to 9 June 2015 0.327 3,304,720 3,304,720
—Z——FxATH “E-=Fx ATHEZE-RFAANA
10 June 2011 10 June 2014 to 9 June 2016 0.327 5,507,866 5,507,866
—2——%5xAt+H “ET-NEXATRE-E-A~EAANA
15 April 2013 15 April 2014 to 14 April 2016 0.269 21,500,000 -
“Z-=%MA+AA —Z-WERNA+RAZE-_E—AFNA+THEA
15 April 2013 15 April 2015 to 14 April 2017 0.269 32,250,000 -
“Z-=FMmAt+AA “E-AFMATRAZECE—tFMNATEA
15 April 2013 15 April 2016 to 14 April 2018 0.269 53,750,000 -
“ET-=FfmA+RA —F-R"FEAt+RAZ-E-/\FWNATHEA
Total k] 272,512,264 190,282,346
Number of options exercisable A 17{ &R ES B 159,504,398 164,946,159

Other details of the share option schemes are set out in the RS LM RN ESEREE -

Report of the Directors.
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Notes to the };
A KHRRN

33 Reserves 33 f#E
Group AEE
Captal Captal Employee Avalable-
Share  reduction  redempton Contributed Other  share-based for-sale
premium Teserve TeSeve Cepttal surplus reseve compensafon  Exchange investments  Refained
(Notea) ~ (Notec)  (Noteh) resee  (Noted)  (Nofee) Teserve Teserve lesee eamings Total
KR Radnkl BABRRR HARR  AMER  DGRA e

(2 (M) (i) BSEE (Wi (M) GEMGRR EARE  REGR  REM 4
HeSMion  HKSMon  HKSMilon  HKSMilon  HKSMilon  HXSMon  HKSMilon  HKSMilion  HKSMiion  HKSMilon  HKS Milon
g REAL  REAL  ABEM  BBET  REET  REAT  BEEm  AEET BEET REAT

Balance at 1 January 2012 NE-CE-f-Agk 88582 5941 146 412 10283 8.1 634 1663.2 07 1019 123197
Falr vlue gai on avalble-or-sele THEESHER,

financalassels el - - - - - - - - 18 - 18
Curency ransaiondiferences EffszE - - - - - - - %3 - - %3
Issue of scrip ividend shares HiRRERA 105 - - - - - - - - 105
Employe share option benefs [EEERERT - - - - - - 2 - - - 21
Transfer between reserves FERER (8000) - - - (%89) - - - - 889 -
Release of reserves FhER
- upon disposal ofsubsidaries -HENELTR - - - - - - - (1) - - 37
- Upon lapse of share options ~REREIE - - - - - - 88) - - 86 -
2011 second specil ash diidend F-EETNEIRSRE - - - - (108Y) - - - - (K]
2012 st special cash dvidend “5-CEERRIRERS - - - - ) - - - - - )
Proftfor the year FERAT - - - - - - - - - 1033 1033
Balance at 31 December 2012 AE-CErCR=t-BER  8ITT 5941 146 42 601.0 A 569 17348 25 1,127 12,3506
Retaned by: ThAfRE
Company and subsidiaries FOARKEBAR 81787 5941 146 412 601.0 Al 569 1,362.1 25 3034 11,1686
Associated companies BENT - - - - - - - 840 - 1508 48
Joitvertures 2204 - - - - - - - 287 - 6385 72

81787 3041 148 412 6010 81 %9 17348 25 1127 12308
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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33 Reserves (continued) 33 &)
Group (continued) REE(F)
Capital Capital Employee Available-
Share  reduction  redemption Contributed Other ~ share-based for-sale
premium  reseve  resemve Capital ~ surplus ~ reserve compensation  Exchange investments  Retained
(Notea) ~ (Notec) ~ (Noteb)  reserve  (Noted)  (Notee)  reserve reseve  reseve  eamings Total
BfthE RAHRRE BAREGE #ABE  REER R Bt

(W (B (HB)  BRER (MEd (W) BEMERE ENGR  REEE RN L
HKS Milion  HKS Milion  HKSMillon ~ HKSWilion  HKSMilion ~HKS Milion ~ HKS Milion  HKS Millon  HKS Milion ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Milion
BEET  EEER  EERT  EEER  BREn EERT  EERR  EEMR EREL BERT EENR

Balance at 1 January 2013 A-5-=5-1-Agk 8,177 594.1 146 12 601.0 8.1 569 1,7348 25 11ar 123506
Falr vlue gai on avalble-or-sele THEESHER,

financial assels el - - - - - - - - 09 - 09
Currency ranslaion dferences EffszE - - - - - - - 1912 0 - Al
Employe share option beneffs EEERERT - - - - - - 16 - - - 16
Release of rserves upon Efiinn/ fingkie

cancellecapse of share options - - - - - - (&) - - 55 13
Proft for the year FEREA - - - - - - - - - T8 18
Balance at 31 December 2013 AZE-ZEzRor-EER it 5941 146 12 601.0 84 53 2200 33 11910 129243
Retaned by: THRE:
Company and subsialaries ARFRHED 81787 594.1 146 12 601.0 8.1 543 16202 33 53 11368
Associated companies ) - - - - - - - 2634 - %13 5144
Joint ventures AEL - - - - - - - 87 - e 1088

81787 5941 146 12 601.0 81 53 2820 3 11910 129243
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33 Reserves (continued)

33 f@&E )

Company PN
Employee
Share  Contributed share-based
premium surplus compensation  Exchange Accumulated
(Note a) (Note d) reserve reserve losses Total
ReE BABS  DRMRA
(H&ta) (Hitd) EEMERE ENifE 23R ]
HK$ Milion ~ HKSMillon ~ HK$Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HKS Million
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT REAT BEAT
Balance at 1 January 2012 R-E-—F-F-REH 8,858.2 1158.0 63.4 852.0 (997.7) 9,933.9
Currency translation differences EANEER - - - 748 - 748
Issue of scrip dividend shares ERRERA 1205 - - - - 1205
Employee share option benefits [EEEREET - = 21 - = 2.1
Transfer between reserves REmER (800.0) (989) - = 898.9 =
Release of reserve upon cancelled)  ElERH/ Kk ERERE
lapse of share options - - (8.6) - 8.6 =
2011 second special cash dividend ~ —E——FE-BRIELRE - (108.3) - - - (108.3)
2012 first special cash dividend “T-CEENRIRERE - (220.1) - - - (220.1)
Loss for the year TEEFR - - = = (825) (825)
Balance at 31 December 2012 R-E-—E+-A=+-B&H 8,178.7 730.7 56.9 926.8 (172.7) 97204
Balance at 1 January 2013 RZE-=%-3-R&H 8,178.7 730.7 56.9 926.8 (172.7) 9,720.4
Currency translation differences EiE=E - - - 276.9 - 276.9
Employee share option benefits ESERERT - - 16 - - 16
Release of reserve upon cancelled)  ElEREH/ KU ERERE
lapse of share options - - (4.2) - 4.2 -
Loss for the year TEERE - - - - (47.7) (47.7)
Balance at 31 December 2013 RIE-ZET-A=T-REH 81787 730.7 54.3 1,207 (216.2) 9,051.2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A P RR M ()

33 Reserves (continued)
Notes:

()

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

The application of the share premium account is governed by
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

The application of the capital redemption reserve account
is governed by section 49H of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

On 30 September 2005, by virtue of special resolutions of the
Company with the sanction of an order of the High Court of the
Hong Kong SAR, the nominal value of all the issued and paid up
capital was reduced from HK$1.00 to HK$0.01 each, thereby
reducing the issued and paid up capital of the Company by
HK$2,305.1 million and such amount was transferred to the
Capital Reduction Reserve Account.

By a special resolution passed on 19 October 2012, the share
premium account was reduced by HK$800.0 million. The credit
thus arising was transferred to the contributed surplus account
of the Company. The Company applied its contributed surplus
as enlarged to set-off and eliminate its accumulated losses
as at 30 June 2012 and to reduce against special dividend in
2012.

On 12 May 2010, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary entered
into sales and purchase agreement (“S&P”) with the Group’s
non-wholly-owned subsidiary to dispose of the alternative
energy business (“Target Business”). Based on the S&P,
the purchase consideration is settled by way of issuing and
allotting 1,385,170,068 convertible preference shares by such
non-wholly-owned subsidiary. The fair value of which, on the
S&P date, was HK$1,018.1 million. On 31 August 2010, the
acquisition was completed and the fair value of the respective
convertible preference shares changed to HK$853.8 million. As
the Target Business remains as the Group’s subsidiary upon
the disposal, such disposal transaction is considered as a
transaction with non-controlling shareholders. As a result, the
Group has recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests
of HK$8.1 million and an increase in other reserve in equity of
the same amount.
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33 f#E(&E)

G

(a)

B aERBEZARE-NN\—2QF
SEERTANFREE -

EAREOFERZ BRI BB ARIEHIE
AOH{RFTE 8 -

—EERFAA=TH  BELESE
B = EAR AL MEZ AN R R RIRE
R AR ITRESRAZEEBEESR
1.008 TR ZE0.01%8 7T * Atk * AR A
B BT RAIUR IR AR 2 2,305,100,000 %
T RS BEEEE ARG o

0 %

FERR_Z——F+AT+NBERBZES
REER 0 19 EERE R4 800,000,000
BT AMEEZSHEEERERNARZ
BAEBIE - NAGRBHEDBAZHBAR
BRNEEEMER S ——FE A=+
Az 2R 2 EERNR - —ZF 55
A o

R-ZE—TERA+=-A  FEBE2EHK
BRRIEAEBIFZEMBARIE
Ez((BEEW#]) HEBRERER
([BEEK] - BREEEWHS  BERE
H3E2 & KB A RIAL % 1,385,170,068%
ARBREERZAAZMN - REERZ
A BEREATFEA,018,100,00074
T R-ZE—ZTFENA=+—08 " K
TR MAAEAIRRELRZAFER
853,800,000/87C - AR B IZEBFREE
BINAAEBEZHEAR - HABLER
SR ABHEFERBRE RS o Fllt + &
S E BRI R 28,100,000
JC v MmigmP 2 HE RIS mAER S
gg °



34 Borrowings — Group 34 ER—FKEH

2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——4F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEEBET BEAT

Non-current IEREY
Bank borrowings IRITIER 2,914.6 1,926.7
Finance lease liabilities mEMEARE 131.0 114.0
Loans from non-controlling shareholders IR ER 52.8 51.4
3,098.4 2,092 .1

Current B

Bank borrowings RITENK 392.9 879.5
Finance lease liabilities BEREAE 14.1 9.8
Loans from non-controlling shareholders FEIZERR AR R B 11.5 10.4
418.5 899.7
Total borrowings B 3,516.9 2,991.8

In 2013, the Group's bank borrowings are secured by R-ZT—=%F KNEFEZRITEXHAIERE
the investment properties, prepaid land lease payments, Z#¥% B+ ER - WE  HERHK
properties, plant and equipment, toll road income, properties WERAKWA - ERPYE  (EHERGR 2 ME
under development, properties held for sale and trade K EUWERFR(KIzE16 + 17 ~ 18~ 19 20 * 26 &%
receivables of the Group (Notes 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 26 and  28){E## - Eh & TIHEINH A D &) sk H 75 T M
28), certain of which are also secured by the corporate  B2RA AR D EEERERM -

guarantee provided by the Company or its subsidiaries.

In 2012, the Group's bank borrowings are secured by R-Z——F AEBZRETERHAER 2K
the investment properties, prepaid land lease payments, &% - BN LMASE - W - HENRE
properties, plant and equipment, toll road income, properties WE QKA - (EHE Bg 2 ¥ R E KRR
held for sale, and trade receivables of the Group (Notes 16,  (Bt3£16 - 17 - 18 ~ 19 » 26 % 28) E4&# - Hrh
17, 18, 19, 26 and 28), certain of which are also secured by EFIEIEAARISKEE FHE AR D%
the corporate guarantee provided by the Company or certain  #ER{EHEIR -

of its subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

ARE PR R M (4]

34 Borrowings — Group (continued) 34 BR—AEE#®)
(a) At the balance sheet date, the Group's secured bank (a) REER AEBEZHEEBRITE
borrowings were repayable as follows: R BRHAAT -
2013 2012
—E—-=F T
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEBTT
Within one year —FR 392.9 879.5
In the second year F_4F 714.8 181.2
In the third to fifth year FE=EFRF 1,327.2 703.6
After the fifth year AFE 872.6 1,041.9
3,307.5 2,806.2
Wholly repayable within five years BARAFANEIER 1,585.9 1,030.5
Wholly repayable after five years BARAFEEIHER 1,721.6 1,775.7
3,307.5 2,806.2

(b)

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate
changes and the contractual repricing dates at the

balance sheet date are as follows:

AEBEBERREEAZNXBEHL

BRENEERBRNAT

2013 2012

—E-=F —E——F

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEET EF-:v

6 months or less 6fE Ak AT 3,038.4 2.540.3
6 to 12 months 6% 1218 A 478.5 451.5
3,516.9 2,991.8
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34 Borrowings — Group (continued) 34 ER-—EEE@#)
(c) The Group has finance lease liabilities at the balance (c) REEH AEBZREHAESRE
sheet date as follows: LU
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BHESBT AEBTT
Gross finance lease liabilities BEREAEERE
— minimum lease payments —&{ERERIE
Within one year —FKN 22.6 17.3
In the second year F_F 23.3 17.8
In the third to fifth year E=FFERF 74.2 56.8
After the fifth year hEE 62.3 69.3
182.4 161.2
Future finance charges on BERE 2 RRFEE A
finance leases (37.3) (87.4)
Present value of finance mEHEaEZEE
lease liabilities 145.1 123.8

The present value of finance lease MEHEEREZHRENT :
liabilities is as follows:

Within one year —&FR 14.1 9.8

In the second year FoE 15.6 11.0

In the third to fifth year F=ZEFRTF 57.7 41.0

After the fifth year AFE 57.7 62.0

145.1 123.8
(d) The loans from non-controlling shareholders are (d) BFEZEBRBRREZERAEEIRR®
unsecured and interest free. The loans that are not BB T eRNkRk+—@BRE
expected to be repayable within twelve months are BUERWOBEAERAR - £

classified as non-current liabilities. The balance is T I ARMESE o

mainly denominated in Renminbi.
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BER—AEE®)
(e) MHEEBRZEERFEMT :

34 Borrowings — Group (continued) 34
(e) The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date
were as follows:

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$ RMB HK$ RMB
B AR BT AR
Bank borrowings RITIE 0.95%-3.21% 5.90%-7.21% 0.96%-3.28% 6.22%-8.00%
() The carrying amounts of the borrowings are () ERZEAEETEEE :

denominated in the following currencies:

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEER AEBTT
Hong Kong dollars BT 180.9 80.3
Renminbi ARE 3,336.0 2,911.5
3,516.9 2,991.8
(g) The Group has the following undrawn borrowing (g) AEEETIARDEEREE:
facilities:
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEER BEATT
Floating rate TEENF R
— expiring within one year —R—F A 151.0 204.9
— expiring beyond one year — R —F1& 5 H 3,083.5 2,854.5
3,234.5 3,059.4

(h) The carrying amounts and fair value of the non-current (h)
borrowings are approximately the same.
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35 Trade and other payables

35 BNRARRHEMENK

(a)

Group Company
rEE b N/N|

2013 2012 2013 2012

—E-=f 2 ZB-=Z=f C—ET—_F

HK$ Million  HK$ Million HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million

BEAR BEAET HEAR BEAET

Trade payables FEfTRR R 135.5 59.3 - -

Retention payables FEfHREE 5K 193.3 1215 - =
Properties sale deposits BlmEHERS

received 530.8 668.6 - =

Other payables and accruals HA R BT & 1,093.6 732.9 3.9 10.9

1,953.2 1,582.3 3.9 10.9

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables at () RE#HB  AEEENEKRRZERER
year end was as follows: ST :

2013 2012

—E-=F —E 4

HK$ Million HK$ Million

ER- Y AEET

0 to less than 2 months ZEDR2ME A 123.6 43.4

2 to less than 6 months 2Z LR6{E A 1.9 2.6

6 to less than 12 months 6= L1218 A 0.2 3.9

12 months and more 1218 A R A 9.8 9.4

135.5 59.3
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35 Trade and other payables (continued) 35 EFNERRRHEMENRE)
(b) The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other (b) AEEEMEFEEMENARZE

payables are denominated in the following currencies: BEEEATE%.)(E :
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——4F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
ER- Y AEET
Hong Kong dollars BT 41.5 114.5
Renminbi AR 1,632.7 1,207.3
US dollars ET 279.0 260.5
1,953.2 1,682.3
(c) As of 31 December 2013, the fair value of financial (c) R—T—=F+—-A=+—H &
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss is HK$279.0 AEBEEBERIEZSRAEY
million (2012: HK$260.5 million). A F{E 5 279,000,000 T (= =
— 4 : 260,500,00077T ) °
36 Deferred income tax liabilities 36 EIEFFEFER
The deferred income tax liabilities recognised and ERATEEFEARaBRESHMNT
movements are as follows:
Group
AEE
Fair value Adjustments
adjustments on prepaid
on investment land lease
properties payments Other items Total
REME B
ATERE HENHAR HitEH )
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEABT BEAT BEAT BEAT
At 1 January 2012 R-E-——%-F—-H 667.8 4443 3.9 1,116.0
Currency translation differences ERAEEE 7.3 3.4 0.2 10.9
Net of amortisation capitalised in RERTHREERL
properties under development ZEEINR - (6.1) - (6.1)
Charged/(Credited) to income REZERIR/GIA) (H#12)
statement (Note 12) 6.8 (5.4) 4.5 5.9
At 31 December 2012 RZF—Z4+=A=1+—-H 681.9 436.2 8.6 1,126.7
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=%—F—H 681.9 436.2 8.6 1,126.7
Currency translation differences ERMEERE 27.0 11.8 2.1 40.9
Net of amortisation capitalised in REBRPYERERE
properties under development MR - (6.2) - (6.2)
(Credited)/charged to RBaRIMNG,/GEA) (HizE12)
income statement (Note 12) 3.8 (41.2) 0.4 (37.0)
At 31 December 2013 RZF—=4+-A=+-A 712.7 400.6 111 1,124.4
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36 Deferred income tax liabilities (continued)

36

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the related

tax be

nefits through the future taxable profits is probable.

The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of
HK$343.3 million (2012: HK$399.3 million) in respect of tax

losses

of HK$1,667.5 million (2012: HK$1,899.4 million) to

carry forward against future taxable income. These tax losses
have no expiry dates except for the tax losses of HK$801.5

million

(2012: HK$1,064.6 million) which will expire at various

dates up to and including 2018 (2012: 2017).

37

Derivative liability

37

A subsidiary of the Group allotted and issued 300,000,000

conve

rtible preference shares at HK$0.65 each on 23

November 2010 to STAR Butterfly Energy Ltd (“STAR”), a
subsidiary of TPG. STAR may at any time during 4 years
following the completion of the initial investment require the
subsidiary to issue to them up to a maximum of 260,000,000
additional preference shares at a price of HK$0.75 per
each preference share. Derivative liability represented the
subscription right granted to STAR, and was fair valued at 31
December 2013 and 2012.

38

Commitments — Group

38

(a) Capital commitments

EEFTSBAaE @)

MBI REEBAR KRR NG H B2
REMNZER  AedsE8sHEER
HREBERBEE - NEBIXERFHE
518 1,667,500,0008 L (=& — —4F
1,899,400,0007%8 7t ) 7 3B IE L& F7 15 72 18
& E 343,300,000 L (ZF — = F :
399,300,000/ 7T ) A] fE&5 8 » FA LAK §8
HEERFERA - ZEHIEEEIWEEH
B - 801,500,000/ C( =& — — 4 :
1,064,600,0008 70) 2 EEEEREE
—E-N\F(ZE—=F: ZT—+tF)It
ZEBERIHR -

TTETHAE
AEB—HHBRARR-_ZT—ZTF+—A
—+=RHUUENK0.657% TR TPGH B A A
STAR Butterfly Energy Ltd ([ STAR |) &z
2% K 3£ 17300,000,000 A% A] 32 A% {8 56 A% -
STARFAIREM M IR E R AF AR E
KZM B RARIAFRELKO7TSETLLZ
{8 1% 7] H 3£ 17 £ % 260,000,000 A% 28 HME
Sk o STETABERE FSTARZ R
YR =T =FR_FT——F+=-A
=t+—HiBEAFE-

AE-AREE
(a) BEEREE

Capital expenditure at the balance sheet date but not yet REFEAEAERRREE ZER
incurred is as follows: AT :
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E2-=F —T-_fF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEAR BEAT
(i) Capital commitments undertaken (i) XEEZEF#E
by the Group
(a) Property, plant and equipment (a) W% - HRREE
— Contracted but not provided for -E R KB REE 141.4 86.9
- Authorised but not contracted for B R EERETL - 227.8
(b) Property development projects (b) MEERIAE
— Contracted but not provided for —BRIAEREE 2,615.2 2,031.8
2,756.6 2,346.5
(i) Capital commitments undertaken (i) BERFIZERAE
by the joint venture
Property development project MEZEREIEE
Contracted but not provided for EEESEER NS
- the Group’s share JE(R BB D VERE 1,136.4 1,138.0
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AE-AEE @)

(b) BELEHEEZEE
RIE A B+ i KA 2 7 AT RS AT
SHE Y R EREESEADT -

38 Commitments - Group (continued) 38
(b) Commitments under operating leases
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and

buildings are as follows:

2013 2012

—E-=F —E——4F

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEAER BEATT

No later than 1 year —F R 3.6 12.2
Later than 1 year and BB —FRAFA

no later than 5 years 2.7 19.2

Later than 5 years tBiR A F - 16.1

6.3 47.5

(c) Future minimum rental receivable
The future aggregate minimum rental receivable under

(c) ARBEEKEE
REFAIHELEHEZARARKE

non-cancellable operating leases is as follows: FEWFR S EEEm T

2013 2012

—EB—-=F —E——4F

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEET BEET

No later than 1 year —FRK 99.9 92.7
Later than 1 year and BB —FRAFA

no later than 5 years 263.9 213.4

Later than 5 years 838 107.7 118.3

471.5 424.4

The Group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The lease runs for an initial period
of one to ten years, with an option to renew the lease
when all terms are renegotiated. Lease payments are
usually increased annually to reflect market rentals. No
contingent rent was recognised in the years ended 31
December 2012 and 2013.

AEBRBEELHESREDER
MmN LEH—=+4 FA
AREEEREDNHBBES B
ERFEAETEE -HEe—ReE
BFEANRBRMSHES - KA
SHABEBRE-_SE——ER=-%
—=f€+-A=1+—HBItFEEER
TR o

o 212 HKC (Holdings) Limited
Annual Report 2013



inancial Statements (continued

39 Contingent liabilities
Group

(a)

The Group’s investment property located in Shenzhen,
the PRC is subject to housing facility fund pursuant
to CRIIEEFRREFERYWEEIEIEN ) adopted on
1 November 1994. Contingent liabilities of RMB75.8
million (equivalent to approximately HK$96.9 million)
(2012: RMB75.8 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$94.3 million)) arising in this respect have been
assessed by management with reference to the
legal opinion previously obtained. Management have
requested relief from the relevant local government
authorities on the grounds that certain amounts of
maintenance costs were already spent for the purposes
as specified under the requirement of housing facility
fund, hence no further provision for the fund is
considered necessary.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group arranged
bank financing for certain property buyers and provided
guarantees in relation to the repayment obligations for
those buyers. The Group had not suffered from any loss
resulting from the above guarantees in the past, which
was mainly because the guarantees concerned were
only a transitional arrangement for property buyers prior
to the completion of mortgage registration and were
pledged against property rights, in addition to the fact
that they will be released once the mortgage registration
is completed. Considering the above factors, the Board
is of the view that the possibility of default by buyers is
minimal, thus the financial guarantees measured at fair
value is immaterial.

39 HAKRE
AEME

(a)

(b)

BER—ANLEF+—A—BK
Wz ORI ERFRETERDE
EEER)  AEBEMRFBEF
Nz —BHEREMESZBRREER
BREERAES EEEZR
2ERARMBZERERE
FERHELEZHARAEAA
R#75,800,0007T (KHEEN
96,900,000 L) (Z&—=
£ AR¥75800,0007T (4948
7R 94,300,00087T) ) - AR
EREEEAAZEEAESHRE
BETIEE E M A B TFREKAS
B EEED RAEE TR
REBERER - ARAEDAELE
SIEE— SR -

R_B—Z=FF-_ZT——F+-A
=t+—HB AEEARMEEMNE
FERZHRITRE - UHZZFE
REENE EREER - ZEERB
FWARA LM ERTZAERBL -
FTEHNBAERIEAMEER
ENZIBIREE LA EE TR
B BEBERCAMEERIKR
o WA IRIB IR B 50 Se k18 T A
Bk c EREHFERE EF2R
A BREROEMENY @ #UR
AN ETENTHERETRE -

2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEEBET BEAT
Financial guarantee for mortgage RETUEBMERKD
facilities granted to certain ZiIEREREER
purchasers of properties 170.2 81.2

Company

At 31 December 2013, the Company provided guarantee
in respect of certain facilities granted to its subsidiaries of
HK$746.4 million (2012: HK$250.5 million).

¥/
R-_TBE—=F+_"H=+—H ' XQHF
MEFETHBRAIZEERERHE
R /746,400,000 ;T ( =T — — F :
250,500,000 7T) °
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40 BEHAERS
B EMBERERAMBORBELZHR

40 Related party transactions
Other than the transactions and balances disclosed

elsewhere in these financial statements, the material related RN FNERBEB AR S0 ¢
party transactions during the year were:
(a) (a)
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——4F
Note HK$ Million HK$ Million
Bt e ER- Y BEATT
Income from supply of waterto ~ REREEEEHEERR
Jinhai Paper Pulping Industrial ARIT&8 ) HKZHA
Company Limited (“Jinhai”) (i), (ii) - 17.9
Notes: PsE

()

(if)

Yangpu Water Supply Company Limited (“Yangpu Water”),
a former subsidiary of which 65% equity interest held by
the Group, entered into a water supply agreement and a
supplemental agreement with Jinhai, a company indirectly
controlled by the Oei family, for a period of three years
commencing from 1 January 2009. Income from Jinhai was
conducted on terms as set out in the agreement and the
supplemental agreement governing this transaction. On 8
December 2011, the Group entered into the supplemental
agreement with Jinhai for extending the terms of the water
supply agreement for a further three years from 1 January 2012.

The provision of water supply services contemplated under
the water supply agreement and the supplemental agreement
constituted a non-exempt continuing connected transaction as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.

On 22 May 2012, the Group entered into an agreement with
Hainan Jinhai Trading (Hong Kong) Company Limited (the
“Purchaser”), a company indirectly controlled by the Oei
family, for the sale of its entire equity interest in Treasure
Island Investment Holdings Limited (“Treasure Island”) at a
cash consideration of HK$162.3 million. Treasure Island, an
directly wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, is the owner of
65% equity interest of and in Yangpu Water. The Purchaser
also undertook to procure Treasure Island repaying a loan
of HK$92.3 million due to the Group. The transaction was
completed in June 2012.

The transaction constituted a connected transaction as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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AEEFH65% R AR ZAIHEA A
FEREEKAREER A ([ ]) &
HERRGMEEZER 2 AR &8 ki
FERERRE B_EThFE—A B
REI=F - RESBZWARREHIER
2 E R RS 2 T - KT
——F+ZAN\B ' AEERSEE
Gt BT —F— A —HRERMH
N R S

R4 (7K W5 % % 498 5T 10 7 B A ALK BR 75
B EmARAN(T EmRAD
FVAAEEE TR RHEMERS -

R-ZEBE——FRA=-+=-H K&EEH
HERRGEEEFZARSHESEES
(BH)BRAR(TER DI B @ AR
% {8162,300,000 AT & &l &%
BERAERAR(TERS]) 2 BRAE
W BNSAREECZHAELZENER
A BEEHMEKE5% B AER - B
NEHREENSERERAERZBEX
92,300,000 T - RXFN T ——F
NATK °

BERRSEHARE ETRRE14ATER
TZERS °



40 Related party transactions (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

In June 2010, the Company entered into a supplemental
agreement with Genesis Capital Group Limited, one of the
substantial shareholders of the Company, for amending
and supplementing the revolving loan agreement dated
8 October 2007, under which the Company might borrow up to
HK$1,000.0 million for a period of ninety-six months from the
date of the said loan agreement. The loan is unsecured and
carried interest at the Hong Kong dollar prime rate plus 2% per
annum. The Company is required to repay the loan and accrued
interest thereon at the expiry of the said agreement.

There has been no outstanding loan balance since
31 December 2011.

The transaction did not constitute a connected transaction as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

At 31 December 2013, certain subsidiaries of the Group
provided guarantee in respect of facilities granted to certain
associated companies of HK$165.0 million (2012: HK$727.2
million).

At 31 December 2013, the Company provided guarantee
in respect of certain facilities granted to its subsidiaries of
HK$746.4 million (2012: HK$250.5 million).

The transactions did not constitute connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Key management compensation

Key management solely represents directors of the Company.

The compensation paid or payable to key management is
shown as below:

40 BEARZ &)

(b)

R=ZT—ZFXA ' AARERRRHEA
—ZEXERREASEBR DA HTE
e MBI RBREBRA-ZTLF+
ANBZBRERBGZ © it - AR EA
i E R s B AR R AL+ 75 {8 A HAR
A& A% 1,000,000,000/8 T ° ZEE
REEBE  RATREBRFEN2%FE
FRET B o RARIZER L5 50 A e
EEERRETHE -

A-Z——F+-_A=+—BLEKREE
B o

AR SUTERRE ETHRAIE14AE
EERNZBEERS -

R-ZE—=F+-"A=+—8  AEEH
FHEBARGE FETHEARZEER
R E R 2R A165,000,0008 T (=&
— — 4 : 727,200,000 7T) °

RZZT—=F+=ZA=+—H ' &xRQA
RETFTETHERAZEERERME
R /746,400,000 T (= F — = F :
250,500,000/ 7T) ©

BAZRSUTERRE ETHRAIE14AE
EERNEERS -

TEEEERBZHE

TEEHERBERARAES - CHHK
BNTEEERERKEZHENT :

2013 2012

—E-=5F —E—_F

HK$ Million HKS$ Million

BEBR BEBT

Director’s fees =Yk 1.5 1.5
Salary and other benefits e RAMEF 26.2 30.4
Employer’s contribution to pension scheme EK£ 5212 & F 4K 0.1 0.1
Share option benefits FEARERR T 0.7 25
28.5 34.5
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41 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement M FERERERMEE
(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash (a) RERAELESERHME (Fr
generated from/(used in) operations A EEFHE YR
2013 2012
—E—-= —E—_4F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
HHAR AR
Profit before income tax FFr 5 %5 A& A 162.5 154.2
Finance income BRI (36.7) (52.3)
Depreciation and amortisation I E R 121.3 126.7
Employee share option benefits, net & BEIRERA| - H5E
(Note 11) GESRD 1.8 2.0
Fair value adjustments on BREMENFERAE
investment properties (1.7) (71.0)
Provision for impairment losses BERMEEBEEE
on assets (Note 7) (FzE7) 16.1 20.6
Gain on completion of liquidation of  FERXMIB A TE&E 2
subsidiaries — net Wzs — 588 (2.8) =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries — net HEMBR a2 Wk — F58 - (141.8)
Net exchange loss/(gain) B 518, (=) F 5 17.6 (1.6)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME - WS REEZE
plant and equipment — net 18 (W) - 88 1.2 (11.1)
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial BATEEBZRINEZE
assets and financial liabilities at MmEELERBEATE
fair value through profit or loss — net &8, (Izs5) @ JF5E 16.3 (7.1)
Recovery of receivables written off Wz [2 A 1 4 81 2 P MR 3K
in prior years - (49.1)
Write back of costs provision B B A 2 F (1.6) (2.5)
Finance costs BEKA 135.5 160.5
Share of profits less losses of FE(RE & A Flm AR Es 18
associated companies (100.5) (148.0)
Share of profits less losses of fE(hE &N alm AR E R
joint ventures (75.9) 2.3
Operating profit/(loss) before LEESBERILE R
working capital changes M, (&E) 253.1 (18.2)
Increase in properties under EREAPYIEEL N
development (1,150.8) (714.3)
Increase in prepaid land lease TEAT T A & FIE N
payments (23.0) =
Decrease in properties held for sale  {EHHER® z WER LD 910.4 13.7
Decrease in inventories EERD 2.8 1.4
Decrease in other non-current EL At FF 7T B FE WU A R FE IR
receivables and trade and B R B B fh e WS RRORR
other receivables 59.8 97.0
(Decrease)/increase in other non- HAth JE 7 D FE A FUA K
current payables and trade and R 11 B R B L B A5 3R
other payables CRA) /1 hn (27.9) 387.2
Increase in non-controlling interests  FEFEARAE 2518 7N - 1.7
Cash generated from/(used in) operations & %F715,/ (FrA )R % 24.4 (231.5)
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41 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued) 41 HSEBREFRERMT (&)

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (b) HEMEAF
2012
—E——F
HK$ Million
BEBTT
Net assets disposed: FIiEEEFE :
Prepaid land lease payments TEfT LA E 10.1
Intangible assets mEEE 3.4
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEFEY 70.8
Trade and other receivables JFEE L B R R L A R LS K 42.7
Property, plant and equipment Wz - Hes REEE 164.0
Trade and other payables AT R R e L b JE T 3K (0.1)
Other loans HMER (93.1)
Non-controlling interests IR (61.3)
136.5
Release of exchange reserve A 65 FRF A7 B B
upon disposal (28.7)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHBA Rz W 141.8
Cash consideration ReRE 254.6
(c) Analysis of net inflow of cash and cash (c) FRHEMBARZRERAS
equivalents in respect of disposal of ZEBYRASEED
subsidiaries
2012
—F——4F
HK$ Million
BEBTT
Cash consideration ReERE 254.6
Cash and cash equivalents disposed FrHERE RIRESEEY (70.8)
183.8
42 Comparative figures 42 LEHZF
Certain comparative figures as set out in the consolidated RA ISR R M A TS T 8
financial statements and the related notes thereto have been HFTEEFHE  UFEAREE 2B
reclassified to conform with the current year's presentations. =% o
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint Ventures
TEMEAT  BEAARAEAT

Listed below are the principal subsidiaries, associated companies [XREFIESRAAUACEEE T —=F1+=
and joint ventures which, in the opinion of the directors, principally A=+—BItFEEEN REEFEETEL
affect the result and/or net assets of the Group for the year ended FZKIEAR] - BE QB RAEERRIFE °

31 December 2013.

1 Principal subsidiaries 1 TEHE QT

Place of incorporation/

operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group’s effective
Name legal entity’ Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
%8 AL/ EEHYR TERH BEfRA/RARER AREZERRARR
HEREEY
2013 2012 2013 2012
ZE-CE I3-If ZE-cE I5-If
(a) Investment holding
REER
APC Wind Power Pte Limited** Singapore Investment holding SGD10 SGD10 54.13% 54.13%
g RERK 10§ 1% 7 103 R
China Renewable Energy Investment Cayman Islands/PRC Investment holding HK$23,563,718  HK$23,563,718 54.13% 54.13%
Limited ReRs/hE FERR 2356371085 23,563,718 0
RRELERRARRAT
China Harvest Holdings Limited® Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$1,000,000  HKS$1,000,000 75%* 75%*
BEEERLAT &t/ nE REAR 1,000,0008%  1,000,000%%
HKC (China) Management Company PRC Wholly foreign-owned  Provision of management U$$8,000,000  US$8,000,000 100% 100%
Limitea* enterprise services in the PRC 8,000,000%7%  8,000,000%7
EARR(ME)ERARA! RENERERE ReRREERRE
HKC Guilin Expressway Company Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$1 HK§1 100% 100%
EERRLHERDRARAT: &k /0 RERK 17 187
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Associated Companies and Joint Venturesj_(cohiihued)
RE&% AT (H)

Principal subsidiaries (continued)

Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of

1

Issued share capital/

FEME QA (#)

Group’s effective

ERER(ERERAT 210 o
T -=FER

Name legal entity’ Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
i iRAL/BEHYR TERE BRiRE/ERERES rEEERRARR
HRERED
2013 2012 2013 2012
I%-cf 3% it 5=k
(a) Investment holding (continued)
REER(E)
HKC Investment Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS$77,113,850  HKS77,113,850 100% 100%
FARRRERRAR Bt /18 REER T,13,8508%  77,113,850% 1
HKC (Linyi) Holdings Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$1 HK$1 54.13% 54.13%
FhRR(BN)ERAERAF! Bt/ RERK 17 1%
HKC (Nanxun) Holdings Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS2 HK§2 100% 100%
ERRR(BRRIIERERAR: &k /0 REER 257 2T
HKC Property Investments (China) British Virgin Islands/PRC  Investment holding USst US$1 100% 100%
Limited* AERARE/1E REAR 1%7 1%7
BRRRNZRE(RE)ERAT
HKC Shenyang Hunan Hong Kong/PRC [nvestment holding HK$1 HKS1 100% 100%
Investments Limited* B/ n RERR 17 187
FAERRREDRERRAR:
HKE (Changging) Holdings Limited** British Virgin Islands/PRC  Investment holding Usst US$1 100% 100%
iERRES/0E REER 137 1%
HKE (Da He) Holdings Limited* Hong Kong/PRC [nvestment holding HK$1 HKS1 54.13% 54.13%
ERTR (AT ERERAR! /0 REBR 17 187
HKE (Danjinghe) Wind Power Limited*  Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$4 HK$4 54.13% 54.13%
BEmER (BT ERERAR)! &k /0 REER 4E7 4T
HKE (Gansu) Wind Power Limited* Hong Kong/PRC [nvestment holding HK$1 HKS1 54.13% 54.13%
EARER(HRREARAR! Bh/08 REBR 137 1%



Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint Ventures (continued)
FTENBAR  BELARRESE AT (E)

1  Principal subsidiaries (continued) 1 FTEMBE AR #)

Place of incorporation/

operation and kind of Issued share capitall Group's effective
Name legal entity’ Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
%8 iRAL/BEHYR TERE BEfRA/RffHRER rEEERRARR
HRERED
2013 2012 2013 2012

CE-zE “3-CF IE-ZE I5-IE

(a) Investment holding (continued)

REER(%)
Hong Kong Construction (Interior Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$10,000 HK§10,000 100% 100%
Contracting) Limited B5/4E RERR 10,000%7 10,000%70

FERR(ZBIR)ERAF!

Hong Kong Construction Tianjin Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$462,000,000  HK$462,000,000 100% 100%
Tuan Po Hu Investment Limited* B/nE RERR 462,000,000%  462,000,0005 7

FRERARERARRARAR:

Hong Kong Construction (Hong Kong) ~ Hong Kong [nvestment holding HK$150,000,000  HK§ 150,000,000 100% 100%
Limited 3 RaehR 150,000,000%7% 150,000, 000%7

FRRR(BR)IRARAT

Hong Kong Energy (Holdings) Limited**  British Virgin Islands/PRC  Investment holding Uss$t US$1 100% 100%

ERAR(BR)BRAT iER%ES/0E REER 137 1%

Hong Kong New Energy (Si Zi Wang Qi)  Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$2 HK$2 54.13% 54.13%
Wind Power Limited Fh/nE RERR 2% %7

BER(DT IR ERARDA!

Hong Kong New Energy (Si Zi Wang Qill) ~ Hong Kong/PRC [nvestment holding HK$1,000 HK$1,000 54.13% 54.13%
Wind Power Limited- Eit/nE RERR 1,000%7 100087

BAER(DTIE_B)ARARAT!

HKC (Shanghai Guangtian) Holdings Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$1 HK§1 100% 100%
Limited* Bt /18 RERR 1%7 187

BhRR(LERE)ARERAT:

Karbony Investment Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$10,000,000  HK§10,000,000 100% 100%
Bk /nE REER 10,000,000%% 10,000,002
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1  Principal subsidiaries (continued) 1 FTEMBE AR #)

Place of incorporation/

operation and kind of Issued share capitall Group's effective
Name legal entity’ Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
i iRAL/BEHYR TERE BRfRA/RASRES rEEERRARR
HRERED
2013 2012 2013 2012

CE-cf ot T2 -g-cE 3k

(a) Investment holding (continued)

REER(E)
Noble Quest Enterprise Limited® British Virgin Islands/ [nvestment holding Usst US$1 100% 100%
Hong Kong REZR 1%7 1£7
AERLHE/BE
Sinoriver International Limited** British Virgin Islands/PRC  Investment holding USs$1 US$1 54.13% 54,13%
I BRRRAT RERLER/RE RERK 137 157
Sinoriver International Hong Kong/PRC [nvestment holding HKS20 HK§20 54.13% 54.13%
(Wind Power) Limited* Bt /08 FEnR WEL 0%T
mIER(BE)ERAR!
The Legation Quarter Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$82,105,263  HK$82,105,263 70.9% 70.9%
RRREASERRRAT Et /18 KERR 82,105,263%% 82,105,635 7
(b) Property investment
LES S
Hong Kong Construction (China) PRC Wholly foreign-owned  Investment in shopping mall  US$85,500,000  US$85,500,000 100% 100%
Engineering Company Limited:* enterprise of South Ocean Centre,  85,500,000%7%  85,500,000%7
FRER(1E)IRARAR "ENERRLR Shenzhen, the PRC
RERBRITRERONES
Karbony Real Estate Development PRC Wholly foreign-owned  Investment in offices, US$155,000,000  US§155,000,000 100% 100%
(Shenzhen) Company Limited** enterprise and shopping mall of 155,000,000%7%  155,000,000% 7
fRRLERE (RY)ERAT RENERELE Shun Hing Square,

Shenzhen, the PRC
RETEMITERRSN
WAZRES

ERBE(ER)ERAT 001 o
T -=FER



Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint Ventures (continued)
FTENBAR  BELARRESE AT (E)

1  Principal subsidiaries (continued) 1 FTEMBE AR #)

Place of incorporation/

operation and kind of Issued share capitall Group's effective
Name legal entity’ Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
%8 iRAL/BEHYR TERE BEfRA/RffHRER rEEERRARR
HRERED
2013 2012 2013 2012

CE-zE “3-CF IE-ZE I5-IE

(b) Property investment (continued)

NZRE(8)
Sky Universe Limited* British Virgin Islands/PRC  Property holding of 9JF., Usst USH1 100% 100%
RERLEE/RE Tower 1 South Seas 157 15T
Centre, Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
FRUNEENERDE
ENSEENEE VAL
RIABERER ERERAR PRC Wholly forgign-owned  Investment in property US$18,200,000  US$18,200,000 70.9% 70.9%
enterprise for restaurants and 18,200,000%% 18,200,005
HESNERELS retails in Beifing, the
PRC
RERELRTNZE
frRERZE
(c) Property development
UESE
Huzhou Nanxun International Building ~ PRC Wholly foreign-owned  Development and operation ~ U$$48,000,000  US$48,000,000 100% 100%
Market Center Company Limited** enterprise of a building materials 48,000,008  48,000,000% 7
ANERARRAERAR RENERELS centre in Huzhou,
the PRC
KRB ERR
EERENHADL
Shanghai Guangtian Real Estate PRC Sino-foreign equity Real estate development  RMB2,300,000,000 RMB2,300,000,000 60% 60%
Development Company Limited** joint venture in Hongkou District i~ AR%2,300,000,0007% AR%2300,000,0007
LREREHEREARAA nEREERS Shanghal, the PRC

ReBHETIAERERE

o 222 HKC (Holdings) Limited
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b ] aries, A sociated Companies and Joint Ventu éé |
% ANEE AR ()

Principal subsidiaries (continued)

Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of

1 FTEWEB QT (@)

Issued share capital/

Group’s effective

enterprise

TEIEEALR

in Jiangmen, the PRC
ReELEHRERE

AR#260000,0007  AX¥260,000,0007C

ERBR(ERERAT 000 o
—E-—FEER

Name legal entity’ Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
i iRAL/BEHYR E33 0 BRfRA/RASRES rEEERRARR
HRERED
2013 2012 2013 212
I%-cf 3% Z%-z% 5=k
(c) Property development (continued)
NZ3R(8)
Tianjin Jingang Real Estate Investment ~ PRC Limited liability Real estate development ~ RMB500,000,000  RMB500,000,000 5% 5%
Company Limited* company in Nankai District in ~ AR#500,000,000%  AK%500,00000070
REMERERRARRAT HARRALLT Tianjin, the PRC
ReERETRRE kR E
Tianjin Renai Properties Development  PRC Wholly foreign-owned  Real estate development  HK$452,200,000  HK$452,200,000 100% 100%
Company Limited** enterprise in Tuanbo Lake of 452,200,000%7%  452,200,000% 0
REMCEERERARAA hENERELE Jinhai County
in Tianjin, the PRC
ReERETREEE RS
RAR4E
Tianjin Ruigang Enterprise Management ~ PRC Whally foreign-owned  Real estate development ~ HK$690,000,000  HK$690,000,000 100% 100%
Company Limited** enterprise in Tianjin, the PRC §90,000,000%7 690,000,000
REMRALRERARAT RENERERE ReERETRER0E
§5E2(36)RRAR PRC Wholly foreign-owned  Real estate development  HK$928,000,000  HK$928,000,000 100% 100%
enterprise at Ningbo Road in 928,000,000%% 928,000,000
RENERELS Heping District in
Shenyang, the PRC
ReBEEETATRERE
RERHE
FRER(IA) NEERARA A PRC Wholly foreign-owned  Real estate development ~ RMB260,000,000  RMB260,000,000 100% 100%



Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint Ventures (continued)
FTENBAR  BELARRESE AT (E)

1
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Principal subsidiaries (continued)

Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of

1 FTEWEB QT (@)

Issued share capital/

Group’s effective

Name legal entity* Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
%8 AL/ EEHYR TERH BEfRA/RARER AREZERRAER
EERERD
2013 2012 2013 2012
I%-cf St tg-zf “2F
(d) Infrastructure and alternative energy
BERERER
Asia Wind Power (Mudanjiang) Company  PRC Sino-foreign equity ~ Wind Power project in HK$100,000,000  HK$100,000,000 46.55% 46.55%
Limited** joint venture Heilongjiang, the PRC~ 100,000,000%7%  100,000,000%7
SHENEE(LAT)ERAT REDEERE ReEZET/ENEERA
Chongging Huangiu Petrachemical PRC Limited liability Investment in ethanol RMB180,470,000  RMB180,470,000 70.65% 70.66%
Company Limited+* company gnergy business in AR#180470,000%  AR180,4700007
ERERALARAA HEEREFAR Chongging, the PRC.
The business
is currently ceased.
RRBEETRECERR
Ehe AERERL
HKC (Guilin) Expressway Company PRC Wholly foreign-owned ~ Construction and RMB543,900,000  RMB543,900,000 100% 100%
Limited** enterprise operation of a foll road  AR%543,900,000%  AK%543 900,007
EHARRRARERAR BENEEALE in Guilin, the PRC on
a Build-Operate-
Transfer contract
BiRE-8E-284R
EREREE/ A
EATHE RS
Hong Kong Wind Power (Muling) PRC Sino-foreign equity ~ Wind Power project HK$150,100,000  HK$ 150,100,000 46.92% 46.92%
Company Limited **° joint venture in Heilongjiang, 150,100,000%7%  160,100,000%7
BEANRE(ER)RRAT REMEERE the PRC

Annual Report 2013
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1 Principal subsidiaries (continued)

Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of

1 FTEWEB QT (@)

Issued share capital/

Group’s effective

Name legal entity’ Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
%8 AL/ EEHYR TERH BEfRA/RARER KRBz ERRARE
HERRERY
2013 2012 2013 2012
E-cF 3k -k 5
(d) Infrastructure and alternative energy
(continued)
ERRERERH)
ARNEERTTHERARD PRC Sino-foreign equity ~ Wind Power project in RMB166,480,000  RMB166,480,000 54.13% 54.13%
joint venture Siziwang Qi, Inner ARH166480,000% A R%166,480,0007
RENRELE Mongolia, the PRC
RERFARTIN,
EVESLE
BENEERTTHERARD PRC Sino-foreign equity ~ Wind Power project in RMB172,526,500  RMB172,526,500 54.13% 54.13%
joint venture Siziwang Qi, Inner ARB172526500%  AR%172,526,5007
RENRELE Mongolia, the PRC
RERFARTIN,
EVESLE
(e) Trading/property services
85/ 0ERE
Hong Kong Construction (China) PRC Wholly foreign-owned  Trading on construction U$$85,500,000  US$85,500,000 100% 100%
Engingering Company Limited+* enterprise materials 85,500,000%7%  85,500,000%7
BARR(ME) IRARA" RENERER R HEREHH
Shenzhen Kumagai Property PRC Sino-foreign equity Provision of property HK$60,000,000  HK$60,000,000 100% 100%
Management Company Limited** joint venture management service §0,000,000%% 60,000,000/ 7
MIRANEERERAR mEMEERE RENZERRE

ERBRE(ERERAT 005 o
T -=FER



Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint Ventures (continued)
FTENBAR  BELARRESE AT (E)

2 Principal associated companies 2 FEBENT
Place of
Issued share capital/ incorporation/ Group’s effective
Name registered capital operation equity interest
£ BRARE/HERER R S AEBZERRARS
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-ZF “T——F —E-ZF —2——F

(a) Property investment

NERE
Hong Kong Construction SMC HK$10,000,000 HK$10,000,000  Hong Kong/PRC 40% 40%
Development Limited** 10,000,000 1t 10,000,000 &A/H

ERRRARERARLA

(b) Alternative energy
BRER
CECIC HKC (Gansu) Wind RMB589,620,000  RMB589,620,000 PRC 21.65% 21.65%
Power Company Limited+* ARM580,620,000 AX®589620000
FHEAR(HR)RNEE
BRAR

CECIC HKC Wind Power Company

Limited* =

HETR SRR NEE (R RMB545,640,000  RMB545,640,000 PRC 21.65% 21.65%
BRAR AREM545640,000 ARE545640000 FE

Linyi National Environmental RMB100,000,000  RMB100,000,000 PRC 21.65% 21.65%

New Energy Company Limited** ~ AR¥100,000000% AR#100,000000
BTRRNEEERAR

CECIC HKE Wind Power Company ~ RMB323,260,000  RMB323,260,000 PRC 16.24% 16.24%
Limited #= ARM3232600007 AKH323260000T R El

REREBRENEE (Kit)

BRAR!

o 225 HKC (Holdings) Limited
Annual Report 2013



3

Principal joint ventures 3 FESENT
Form of business Place of
structure/Kind of establishment/ Group’s effective
Name legal entity operation equity interest
&8 EBEBHR/ BRI/ &5 rRECERRSER
ERERRR
2013 2012
—B-ZF &
Property development
NERER
Shanghai Jingang North Bund Real Wholly foreign-owned PRC 25% 25%
Estate Company Limited** enterprise i
LBEEILNEERBR A NEBELE
Notes: P&t

Unofficial English transliterations or translation for identification
purposes only

Interest held by subsidiaries

Not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited is listed on the
Stock Exchange of which the stock code is 987.

The companies are considered as wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Group from the accounting perspective, as the 25%
shareholders of such companies are not entitled to receive any
future dividends and sharing of residual interest.

The kind of legal entity is limited liability company, unless
otherwise stated.

Certain principal subsidiaries were disposed of during 2012.
For details, please refer to Note 40(a)(ii) and Note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

° FEIEA B R sk B R E R

g EEHHBARRES

# W IR KRR E S TR ST E %

2 FEBARRIEEGR A RERZAME
- BRI R5EA987 °
R 5% 5 R 8] 2 25% A% 3R 4 #E W BT fA] R
R E RELFIREE - W EtAEM
T AEARERANSEZZEEA
Al e

Z BREAEVIRIN  EEEEAERAA ©

ETTIEMNBRAAER-_ZT——FAH
B - Bl ERL2HRAMBHRERNE
40(a)(ii) & HIsE41 »

ERRR(ER)ARAT 207 o
—E ey



Five-Year Financial Summary

ey
AERHEREE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=f Z——-f =Z2—F =ZZ-TF ZTETNF
HKS Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEER BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
Consolidated income statement #HAERK
Revenue Wz 1,441 329 696 499 378
Profit/(loss) before income tax FiEEAnER / (B18) 163 154 310 (414) 2,036
Income tax (expense)/credit FIsBl(H) /R (85) (42) (120) 18 (334)
Profit/(loss) for the year REERTF/(EB) 78 112 190 (396) 1,702
Non-controlling interests e ES (5) 9) 51 102 (246)
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity AR EHEREE A
holders of the Company L&A/ (B8) 73 103 241 (294) 1,456
Dividends R - 220 217 = -
Consolidated balance sheet REEERER
Net current assets MEEEFE 1,929 1,375 2,014 1,993 1,608
Non-current assets FRBEE 17,656 16,570 16,393 16,036 16,562
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (4,236) (3.232) (4,127) (4,384) (4,766)
Net assets including AEFE
non-controlling interests (R E) 15,349 14713 14,280 13,645 13,404
Share capital A 112 112 108 104 94
Reserves (it 12,925 12,351 12,380 12,398 12,336
Non-controlling interests IR 2,312 2,250 1,792 1,143 974
Total equity RREE 15,349 14,713 14,280 13,645 13,404
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
“E-=f CZE-—-f CZEZ——§ ZE-TF ZITTNF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B o BT BT BT
Earnings/(loss) per share SRAF/ (FR)*
- basic —&EK 0.006 0.009 0.023 (0.028) 0.15
— diluted — 88 0.006 0.009 0.021 (0.029) 0.14
Dividend per share SRS
— attributable to the year —EERE - 0.020 0.020 - -
Return on total equity BnBEERE 0.5% 0.8% 1.3% (2.9%) 12.7%
Note: BaE

RERBERRERRFEEN/BREREBFESF
RIESBB AN °

ER—_FTTNFER T -TFELHETITA
PR FR

Return on total equity represents profit/loss for the year expressed as a
percentage of the closing total equity for the year concerned.

L Adjusted for bonus issue approved in 2009 and 2010 #
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Investment properties — Completed

REWME-BEK

(Approx.)
(Approx.) Attributable
Existing Share- GFA GFA Term of
Location use holding (sqg.m.) (sg.m.) lease
(K®)  (K#)EH
BREHARE SEEAEDE
1 F BRI AZ i %€ (FRXK) (EHXK) HEH
The shopping mall, all car parking spaces and  Offices and
1/F, 2/F and 58/F offices, shops 100% 31,000 31,000 Medium
Shun Hing Square, Di Wang Commercial Centre, A= REJE i H
No. 5002 Shennan Road East, Luohu, Shenzhen,
the PRC
iz 7 o B R 31 71 28 4 1 R P SR B% 500255
FEESHEREDONBYES
FIEEEERIE 2ER58IERAE
Various restaurants and shops, Restaurants and
No. 23 Qianmen, Dong Dajie, shops 70.9% 17,100 12,100 Short
Dongcheng, Beijing, the PRC EBERAE KA
fiz 5 B 36 7 T SRR i PSR R 72355 69
ZHEBKEH
Various shops in Zone B & C, Shops 100% 97,000 97,000 Medium
Construction Materials Market, 7 i
Nanxun Economic Development District,
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
IR EIE AN T RS BERER
BREREEMEEHBEXCRNZHEHE
Three apartment units, various shops and Shops and 40% 35,300 14,100 Medium
705 car parking spaces of CITIC Plaza, residential
No. 233 Tianhe Road North, Tianhe District, BEEREE  H
Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, the PRC
iz 74 v B B BR & B M 7 K] [ KA 36 B 2335%
HEESISETFEEN - ZHEEHR705EFER
154,200

ERRR(ER)ARAT 220 o
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Schedule of Principal Properties (continued)

FEYE-BRE)
(as at the date of the annual report)
(RAFRBEH)

BRDUE
(a) FHERR

Properties Under Development
(a) For sale purpose

Expected (Approx.) (Approx.) (Approx.)
Share- Stage of year of Site area GFA Attributable
Location Intended use holding completion completion (sq.m.) (sq.m.) GFA (sg.m.)
(K#) (R#)  (RB)EL
BWEREE LELAEE SBEAER
bk RERZ R EEKR BHERFH (FFHXK) (BF7K) (FHK)
A parcel of land along Residential 100% Planning - 804,000 836,000 836,000
the eastern shore of Fx stage
Tuanbo Lake, Jinhai HEIRER
County, Tianjin, the PRC
i AR BLR T 3 5
EEVALAES: V=t T
A parcel of land Residential 75% Construction In 2014 6,000 47,000 35,300
(for Phase 3) located at =% stage M-Z—MF
south of Hongai South TERE
Road, Nankai District,
Tianjin, the PRC
fir e B K 2 T A
AEmEEA — R
(ARE=H)
Three parcels of land Residential 100% Construction ~ 2014-2018 67,000 266,000 266,000
(Zone A, B, C) located at and shops stage and —T—NEZE
Ningpo Road, FERHE Planning —Z—/\F
Heping District, stage
Shenyang, the PRC TEERR
fiz e B & 5 AT [ REIRER
R =BT
(A, B, CR)
A parcel of land (for Phase Residential 100% Construction ~ 2014-2016 47,000 134,000 134,000
2 and 3) located atnorth  and shops stage and —E—EFZE
of Hong Kong-Macau Pier, R EE Planning Z—E—A%E
Jiangmen, Guangdong stage
Province, the PRC TRRERR
fi pAep B R AT MBI ER
RIS, — B Lt
(ARE=K=H)
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Schedule of P, gl

EFEYE

(as at the

Properties Under Development (continued) BREDY=E)
(b) For investment purpose (b) EREARARZR

Expected (Approx.) (Approx.) (Approx.)

Share- Stage of year of Site area GFA Attributable

Location Intended use holding completion completion (sq.m.) (sq.m.) GFA (sg.m.)
(X%) (K%)  (K#)FEfh

BWEEE BEAER BELER

ok RERSE R ERER BEHENESR (FFHXK) (FHK) (£HX)
A parcel of land located  Offices, hotel 25% Construction In 2015 57,000 259,000 64,750
in the north side of the  and shops inprogress R-ZT—HF

International Cruise PAZE TRRETH

Terminal of Hongkou BIEREE
District, Shanghai, the

PRC

fr R B LT YT P
BipfHEit Az —R it

A parcel of land located  Offices and 60% Construction In 2016 29,000 161,000 96,600
at Lot 108, No. 4, shops in progress RZ-Z—NF
Sichuan North Road, BRERBEE Ti#fTH

Hongkou District,
Shanghai, the PRC

IR AR B LI A e )|
IR SR T8 108 5%

161,350

ERRR(ER)ERAT 231 o
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Schedule of Principal Properties (continued)

FEYE-BRE)
(as at the date of the annual report)
(RAFRBEH)

Properties Held For Sale BIEHERB Y

(Approx.)

(Approx.)  Attributable

GFA remains GFA remains

unsold as at  unsold as at

(Approx.) (Approx.) 31 December 31 December

Share- Site area GFA 2013 2013

Location Intended use holding (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(X#4) (X&) s

R-B-=% R-¥-=%

(R#) (X#) +=A=+-B +=A=t-H

BEER REAER MANEZEE HAHEZRE

B RERR fR (F5XK) (FAXK) BEB(FRK) LEBE(FHX)

The shopping mall and all car Shops 100% 5,523 6,300 6,300 6,300
parking spaces, South Ocean Centre,  EJ&

Dongmen Road Central, Shenzhen,

the PRC

iz R B RY T R PI B EE /& 0

RS R REN

Various shops in Zone B & C, Shops 100% 68,000 83,000 37,800 37,800
Construction Materials Market, G115

Nanxun Economic Development District,

Huzhou City,Zhejiang Province, the PRC

Rr s BT WM T

HECEREE

BEREEMREMBERCE/

%R

Various residential units Residential 75% 48,000 103,000 71,000 53,200
(Phase 1 and 2) in FE

Tianjin Eka Garden,

South of Honggi South Road,

Nanki District, Tianjin, the PRC

i 7 FR B R T S

ATEEE AR AR LR

(B-—R-H)2ZREE

Various residential units and shops Residential 100% 48,000 55,000 21,600 21,600
(Phase 1) in Jiangmen Eka Garden, and shops

Jianghai District, Jiangmen, FERAEE

Guangdong Province, the PRC

i EEREIMMLIER

ZREE (F—H) 2 ZRETREH

118,900
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HKC

HHEER

HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ERERER)ERAT

9/F., Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BEBNERDBEREME 7555018198
www.hkcholdings.com
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